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Disclaimer:

The information contained in this English version of 2009 Annual Report is provided as
a reference only with the understanding that Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. makes no
warranties, either expressed or implied, concerning the accuracy of the translation. For
full information, please refer to Baosteel's Chinese version of 2009 Annual Report.
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To Our Investors

2009 is an extremely uncommon year.

In face of the "once-in-a<entury” financial crisis, the drasticaly changing circumstances and the volatile market, Baosteet
people are united as one to tum pressure Into dnving power and challenges into opportunties by emphasizing product man-
agement. launching all-around cost improvement actvities and implementing managenal reforms. As a result. the operating tasks
for year 2009 were fully accomplished. the sales of steel products totaled 22.429 million tons, the business income reached
RMB 14853 billion and the pre-tax profit reached RMB 7.29 billion. achrewing the best performance among domestic peers

The crisis in 2009 testfies that our team is a valant team capable of addressing various diffculties and challenges: the
crisis also sharpens our competitive edge and enhances our confidence to do better

Due to the government stimulative policies China’s economy ral: ed strongly in 2009 and the annual GDP grew by
8.7% 1n 2010 China will continue to implement a proactive fiscal policy and moderately easy monetary policy FAI and
consumption will stii maintain a relatively high level of growth. and therefore the steel demand and the steel industry are
expected to maintan a lower but steady growth

Bolstered by the warming up of global economy and the favorable domestic consumption momentum, the man
downstream industries of the Company such as automobile, home appliance, machinery and infrastructure, etc. will still
maintain certain demand growth in 2010

But in terms of cost. the costs of raw matenal and fuel including iron ore, coke and coal will also tend to rise and
constitute remarkable pressure to the Company's profitability Now the three major international ron ore suppliers have
reached the quarterly ore prices of enormous hike wih the japanese and Korean steelmakers, therefore the steel mills are
confronted w'th more uncertainty in raw material cost control To construct a benign and sustainable steel supply chain has
become a formidable challenge for global steelmakers including the Company.

2010 wil; still be a challenging year with the complicated magro-econom ¢ situations and the intensively competrtve
steel market. Baoshan ror: & Steel Co. Ltd will maintain and sharpen the existing competitive edges. respond rapidly to the
changes in customer’s demands, strengthen the irteraction of supply. production and sales. optmize the internal process,
wrprove the organizational operating efficiency and strive to continue the best performance among domestic peers.




The Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (hereinafter the Company),
along with their directors, supervisors and senior management, hereby guarantee that the 2009 Annual Report
(hereinafter the Report) is free from false statement, misleading information or grave material omission, and assume
relevant separate and joint responsibilities in regard to the truth, the accuracy and the integrity of the contents of
the Report.

Nine of the ten directors attended the board meeting. While Wu Yaowen was absent from the board meeting due to
occupation of other work, Chairman Xu Lejiang was entrusted, by Mr.Wu himself, to vote on his behalf.

Mr. Xu Lejiang, Chairman of the Board, Ms. Chen Ying, Financial Controller and Vice President of the Company, and
Mr. Wy Kunzong, Chief Accountant of the Company, attest to the truth and accuracy of the financial statements
contained in the Report.

No capital was found in the Company to be occupied by the controlling shareholder and its related parties.

No guarantee was found in the Company to be provided in manner that is against the stipulated decision-making
procedures.
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Company Profile

Chinese Name. SRS R AR LS 29’5 .
Chinese Abbreviation R AR £ ) PU EL!C FQLE
English Name: Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd

Erglish Abbreviation. Baosteel
Legal Representative Xu Lejiang

Sccretary to Boara of Directors Chen Ying

Recresentative of Securities Affairs Yu Hong

Address Board of Directors' Office. Baosteel Administrative Center, 885 Fujin Rd. Baoshan Distnct, Shanghai
Zip Code 20190C

Telephone 86-21-26647000

Fax 86-21-26646939

Email r@baosteelcom

Registered Address: South Building, 1813 Mudanjiang Rood, Baoshan District. Shanghai
Zip Code 201900

Office Address Baosteel Command Center, 885 Fupn Rd Baoshan District. Shanghar
Zip Code 201900

Offcial Webste Htp/iwww baosteel com

Emai. Address iIr@baosteel com

Cempany Announcements or Disclosures published in China Securities News. Shanghai Securities News. and Securities Times
Annudl Repcr: Website http./iwww sse comen
Copes of the Repert can be otzained 5y mail from Board of Directors’ Cffice. Baosteel Administratwe Center 885 Fupn Rd

Baoshan Distnct. Shanghai

tock Listed at Shanghai Stock Exchange
Steck Name EHER &
tock Code. 660019

Date of incerporauon 3 February 2000

PFace ¢ Incerporation. Guoyuan. Fujin Road, Baoshan Distrct, Shanghai

Crarge of Regstration 22 June 2009

F-evious accress. South Building, 1813 Mudanjiang Rood, Baosaan District, Shanghar

Corpcrate Business License Numrber. 3100000000743519

Tax centfcat on Number 310046631696382

Organizaton Code 631696382

Accourting Firry Ernst & Young Hua Ming CPA Firm

Office Aadress of Accounting Frrm Floor 16, Uat £3, Economics & Trade Tower, Oriertal Plaze, | East Chang'an Avenue
Dengcteng District, 8eijing. China

Other cnanges in regstraton were made on 30 November 2000 11 May 2005. t Sepiembe- 2005, | June 2006, 23 Apnl 2007,
18 January 2CC8, arc 22 June 2009.

ey PN e N i A A B B D A rrraey



I1.

Accounting and Financial Highlights
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Crude Steel Production (thousand tons) Steel Products Production (thousand tons)
(thousand tons)
2007 2009
Production
Crude steel . 23776 23856
Sted products 23.008 22865
Sales
Stedl products 22,600 22429
(0 Major Financial Data
(RMB million)
Item Amount
Operating profits 7.254
Pre-tax profit 7.295
Net profit attnbutable to sharehokders of isted company 5816
Net proft attributable to shareholders of listed company fess non-
5465
recuming gains and losses
Net cash flow from operating activities 23993
Non-recurring gains and losses
(RMB million)
Iten Amount
Loss from disposal of non<current assets -342
Investment income from disposal of financial assets available for sale 428
Net increase from other non-operating actvrbes 383
Impact from tcome taxes -7
Tcat of non-recurring gains and losses 351
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(I Summary of Three-year Financial and Operating Data

(RMB million)
liem 2009 2008 Increase (%) 2007
Total revenue 148,525 200638 2597 191559
Business revenue - 148.326 200332 2596 191273
Pre-tax proft i 7.295 8154 1054 19308
Net proft attnoutable 10 shareholders of hsted company 5816 6459 995 12718
Net profit attniutable to shareholders of sted company less non-rocurming gans and kosses 5465 6958 2146 12545
"Net cash flow from operating activities 23993 16,244 770 18886
;snc t.;mmgs per share (RMB) 033 037 995 073
Oiluted earnings per share (RMB) j ) EE 037 995 073
“Basic earmings per share less non-recurring gains and losses (RMB) 031 04¢ 2146 on
- ) Down by 072
Fully-diuted average Retum-on-equity (%) 627 699 percentage 1374
- - pont
Down by | 64
Fully-divted average Return-on-equity less non-recurring gains and losses () 589 753 percentage 1355
point
Net increase from other non-operating actites per share (RMB) 137 093 4771 108
(RMB million)
term As at e;d(xg As at m:)gooé Increase (%) As at erzwgoo;
Total asset 201 143 200021 056 202,008
Snareholders equrty (interest) attnbutable to listed company 95.137 91957 346 99.982
?ookvalue per share attibutable to Iisted company (RMB) 543 525 346 571
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2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009
Total Revenue (RMB million) Net Proft (RMB million) Earnings Per Share (RMB)




LI N R

SEIE 1
III.  Capital and Shareholders PUELIC FILE

vy LSS LSS LSS LSS LSS LSS S LS LSS LSS SIS LSS SIS SIS IS SIS SIS IS S S S

[(}] Changes in Share Capital

1. Changes in share capital
(10 thousand shares)

Beginning of year Changes in the penod (+, - End of year
T
| R Share
Shares o| Shae B;r::: transferred | Others| Sub-total|  Shares %
from reserve

1. Shares subject to conditional sales
|. Government shares
2. Domestic legal persons
3. Other domestic investors
Inchuding
Domestx tegal persons
Domestic natural persons

4. International investors

Including

Imernational legal persons

Imternational natural persons

1l Shares not subgect to condrtional sales

! RMB ordinary shares. 1751200 100% 0 0 0 0 0| 1751200 100%

2 Domesix listed imernational
investment shares

3. Overseas listed international
investment shares

4.Others
1l Towal 1.751.200 100% 0 0 [ [} 0| 1.751.200 100%
2. Shares subject 1o conditional sales
(Share)
Shares {rom
Conditional shares Condtional
conditional to Conditional ; Reason for
Sharehokder at begmmngeg: non-condiiona  shares added shz«lr&s::rleer;:lr restriction Date of expury
¥ in the period 4
None

[€3)) Bonds and Bils

Approved by China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) in the document of [2008)793. the Company ssued, on 20 June 2008, RMB
10 bittion convertible bonds with attached warvants with par value of RMB 100 per bond and a duration of six years (from June 20. 2008 to June
20,2014).The inquiry coupon rate range was 0B%. On 30 June 2008, 100.000.000 corporate bonds (a worth of RMB 10 biliion) and 1,600.000.000
warrants were separated

Approved by Shanghai Stock Exchange in the document numbered [2008]8!, a total of RMB 10 bition of corporate bond after separation
were Iisted in Shanghai Stock Exchange on 4 July 2008 The bond was abbreviated as “08 Baosteel Bond™ with the code of 126016 The duration is
from 4 July 2008 to 19 June 2014 and they will be repaid i1 the five trading days afie- the maturity date

Approved by Shanghai Stock Exchange in the document numbered [2008]1 1a total of 1.600,000000 warrants after separation were listed in
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 4 july 2008 The bond was abbreviated as “Baosteel CWBI ™ with the code of 580024. The duration is from 4 July 2008
10 3 July 2010 and the exeraising period in the trading days from 28 June to 3 July, 2010, during which the warrants are to cease trading
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(111)  Shareholders

1. Sharcholders and their shares
(Share)
Number of shareholders 558388

Top 10 shareholders

Shares subject  Shares

Name : ;’\'/‘:g{ Percentage  Total shares o conditional  pledged or
sales frozen
Baosteel Group Corp. State-owned 7397% 12953517441 0 None
China Constructon Bank—Yinhua CoreValue Selected Stock Fund Others 077% 135.649.789 [} None
UBS AG Otrers 039% 68.961.565 0 None
Industrial Bank Co. Ltd—Industrial Trend Imvestment Moced Type Fund Others 039% 67,875,590 0 None
'g:;“:‘gx:;&mx‘_”“"d Chartered Bank- 03% 61087110 ) None
'g("::’n:'e‘:g"éf';‘u"r:"’" Bank Of China—Shanghai Stock Others 0% 55635580 0 None
Shenyin & Wanguo-ABC-BNP Panbas Others 031% 54.598.199 0 None
murnjnn Bank—Schroder Blue Chip Stock Securtties Others 031% 53.760.559 0 None
China Construction Bank—Schroder Stabie Mixed Stock Fund Others 0.25% 43.999.798 C None
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Pk Others 024% 42247476 c None
Top 10 tradable-share holders
Sharchoigers ncondorel Sare Srare e
Baosteel Group Corp. 12953517441 RMB common share
China Construction Bank—Yinhua Core Value Selected Stock Fund 135.649.789 RMB common share
UBS AG 68961565 RMB common share
Indusinal Bank Co. Ltd—Industrial Trend Investment Mixed Type Fund 67875590 RMB common share
Internavonal finance Corporation—Standard Chartered Bank-Cmgpup Globa! Markets Limited 61087.110 RMB common share
Industrial And Commeraal Bank Of China—Shanghai Stock Exchange 50 ETF Fund 55635580  RMB common share
Shenyin & Wanguo-ABC-BNP Paribas 54598,199 RMB common share
China Construction Bank—Schroder Blue Chip Stock Securities Investment Fund 53760559 RMB common share
China Construction Bank—Schroder Stable Mixed Stock Fund 43999798 RMB common share
Morgan Stanley & Co. Intermational Pic. 42247476 RMB common share

Remarks on affitation, allance or collusion a China Construction Bank—Schroder Blue Chip Stock Securtties Investment Fund and China
the sforemenboned oo tom dharch 8 Construction Bank—Schroder Stable Muxed Stock Fund are both managed by Bank of Com-
op munications Schroder Fund Management Co.. Ltd.

Noie: The shares of the Company held by Baosteel Group, who hoids more than 5% of the shares of the Company, remainad unchanged in the
feported penod.
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2. Holding company and controlling sharcholder

1) Holding company

Name Baosteel Group Corporaton
Legal representatve Xu Lejiang
;al.e of incorporation 17 Novem-ber 1998 -
Authonzed captat | RMB 5108262099889 T

. As a governmental authorzed investment vehice and a state-owned holding company, Baosteel Group
Corporation mainly deals with state-owned assets withn the authorized scope set by the State Counal The
Corporation has also been involved in investments n areas of iron & steel manufactunng, metallurgy anc
Pnncipal businesses and mineral products, non-toxic chemscals, electnicity, piers, warehousing, transportation, and steel-related business,
operations technological development, technology transfer. technial supporting, and technical management consulung,

as well as in areas of iImport and export businesses approved by the Minmtry of Forergn Trade & Economic
Cooperaton (MOFTEC), domestc and international tradng where allowed, and import and export services
of products and technology

2) Actual controller

Baosteel's ultimate controller s the State-owned Assets Supervision and Admmistration Commussion under the State Counail {SASAC)

(3} Relationship between the Company and its controller

[ s )
@ 100%

L Baosteel Group Corporation ]]
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees
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Current Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Name Position Gender Age Term of office
Xu Lejang Chairman of Board of Orrectors M 50 200904201204
He Wenbo Vice Chairman of Board of Directors M 54 200904-201204
MaGuogang  Dwector, President M 46 200904-2012 04
Fu Zhongzhe Director M D 200904.201204
Dar Zhihao Drrector M 46 2009 04-2012 04
W Yaowen Director M 66 2009.04.201 204
“Buck Pei ndependent Director M 52 2009.04-201204
Kathenne Tsang Independent Director F 52 2009 04-2012 04
Sun Raining ndependent Director M 53 2009 04-2012.04
Edward C Tse Independent Director ™M 53 2009.04.201204.
L Chairwoman of Board of Supervisors P 5% 2009.04.2012 04
Zhou Guiquan Supervisor M 54 2009.04-201204
Han Guojun Supervisor ) M 54 2009.04-201204
Zhang Pijun " Supervisor M 51 200904.2012 04
Zha Kebing Supervisor M 35 2009 04-2012.04
Zhao Zhoul Vice Presxlent i ™M 53 2009.04.201204
LiYongaang "7 Vice Presdent ™M ) 2009 04201204
"Zhu junsheng Vice President M ) 2009 04-2012.04
Jang Lcheng, Vice President M 51 " 200904.201204
“Chenig Vice Presdent, Secretary to Board F 38 200904.2012.04
Lou Dingbo Vice Presdent M 47 2009 04-2012 04
Pang Yuanin Vice Presdent M m 2009 042012 04
Zhou Janfeng Vice Presdent M % 200904201204
Notes

(1) The'term of ctfice wil ond at the date when tho 2012 Annual Sharehoiders’ Meeting is hekd.

2 As at the end of the reported period. Ms L L owned 30,000 shares of the Company respectively, without any change n arnount in the penod
No shares o' the Company were owned by other drectors. supervisors, and executives n the Company.

() M. Ma Guogang and Ms. Chen Ying purchased 30,000 shares of the Company at the secondary market on 26 January 2010 and 29 January

2010, respecinely.

Supervisor ana senicr execut.ves led offce in 2009

Name Position Gender Age Term of office
Ouyang Yingpeng Vice Chairman of Board of Directors M 59 2006 05-2009.04
U Haping, D rector M 59 2006 05-2009.04
Laura Cha Independent Director F 60 2006.05-2009 04
LuAn Supervisor M 48 2006.05-2009 04
Peng Jonxiang, " Supervsor ™M 4 2008.04.2009 04
Cun jian Vice Fres:dent M 49 2006 05-2009.04
Notes:

(1) Mr. Ouyang Y:agpeng. Mr. Li Haiping, and Ms. Laura Cha &® 1o longer directors of the Company. Mr. Liu A anc Mr Peng Jurxang are ro
-onger supervisors of the Company, anc Mr, Cui -an 1s no longer Vice President of the Comoany due to exprration of ther terms in office.

@ Tne assistants to the Presdent ¢f the Company ae no longer among senior axecutves of the Company. as the Article 133 {3) in the Chan
of Raoshan iron & Stoeet Co., L1d.. “The Prasdent, Vice Presdents. Financial Controtler, Secretary 1o Board of Dimclors and ass'stants 1o the
Presxient a'e senior oxecutives® was rev.sea as “The Pres.dent, Vice Presidents, Fnarcrl Controlie” and Secretary to Boaro of Drectors are

senor executves’. The rewson was

approved by the 2008 Gereral Shareholdors' Meet ng held o 28 Apnl 2009
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{n Profile of Directors, Supervisors, and Senior Executives in Last Five Years

Xu Lejrang (bom in February 1959). senior engineer at professor kevel, 15 currently Chairman of the Board of Directors of Baosteel Group
Corporation as well as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mr. Xu is highly experienced in industral management in the field of steel industry Since he started to work for 8aosteel n 1982, Mr Xu held
vanious positions with the company including assistamt 1o manager of the blooming plant, vice manager and later. manager of the cold rolling plant,
assstant to the manager of Shanghai Baoshan Iron & Steel General Plant Vice President and late, acung Vice President of Baoshan Iron & Steel
{Group) Corporaton; Director, Vice President and President of Shangha: Baosted Group Corporation (hereafter referred <0 as SBGC). Director
and President of Baosteel Group Corporation (hereafer referred 10 as BGC): Director of the first and second boards of Drectors and Chairman
of the third Boards of Directors of the Company, Chairman of the Board of Directors of BGC since january, 2007 and Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company since April, 2009

Mr Xu graduated from Jiangxi Institute of Metallurgy n 1982 and furthered his study from 1995 to 1996 in WestVirginia University. He obtained
h:s MBA from a programme jointly managed by Fudan Universay and the University of Hong Kong in 2000,

He Wenbo (bom in June 1955). senior engineer, Director and Presidert of BGC Vice Chairman of the Board of Diectors of the Company.

Mr He is highly experienced in manufacturing sechnologres, marketing, management and human resources i the feld of steel industry Since
he started to work for Baosteel in 1982 Mr He held varous positions with the company, including vice manager and later, manager of the blooming
plrit. manager of the hot rolling plant and director of the department of the technology of Shanghai Baoshan Iron & Steel Generai Plant: assistant to
the President and later. Vice President of Baoshan Iron & Steel (Group) Corporation, Vice President of Baostee! International Trading and Charman
of the Board of Directors and President of Baosteel International, Director of the Boand of Directors and Vice Presdent of SBGC.Vice President
of BGC: Director of the first, second and third Boards of Directors of the Company. Director and Presdent of BGC since April, 2008; Chairman of
the Board of the Directors of Guangdong Iron and Steel (Group) Corporation since June, 2008:Vice Chairman of the fourth Board of Directors of
the Company snce Apnl, 2009

Mr. He graduated from Northeastern Unwversity in 1982 and obtaned his EMBA from China Europe International Business School in 2001
Ma Guogiang (born in November 1963). senior accountant. is currently Director of the Board of Directors and President of the Company

Mr Ma is highty experienced m industrial accounting, finance, investment and management in the field of steel industry Since he started to
work for Baosteel n Juty 1995, Mr. Ma held various postions with the company, including vice director of department of finance of Baoshan Iron &
Steel (Group) Corporation. vke director ard later, drector of the department of planning and accounting of SBGC . Vice President of SBGC Vice
President and chief accountant of SBGC; Director of the Board of the Directors of Guangdong tron and Steel (Group) Corporaton snce June,
2008. Director of the fourth Board of Directors and President of the Company since April 2009 Mr. Ma now also serves as Chairman of the Board
of Supervisors of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd. Irdependent Director of the Board of Directors of Everbright Securtues Co. Ltd . and
Independent Director of the Board of Directors of Socrete Generale (China) Limited

Mr Ma graduated from University of Science & Technology Besing in 1986 and obtained his EMBA from a programme jo ntly managed by
Anzona State Universty and Shanghai National Accounting Insttute n August, 2005

Fu Zhongzhe'(bom in June 1960), ser-or engineer a1 professor level. is currently Vice President of BGC. Drector of the Board of Directors
of the Company

Mr. Fu 15 highly expenienced in production and technique management i the field of steel industry. Since he started to work for Baosteel in
July 1982, Mr. Fu held various postions with the company. Indu;ilng vice manager of Baosteel Steel Trading Co. Ltd ., vice director and later. director
of the department of production of Baoskan Iron & Steel (Group) Corporation; manager of the steel-making plant of SBGC. assistant to President
of SBGC: BOD Charman and President of Baosteei Group Shanghai No. | Iron & Stee! Co., Ltd:Vice President cf the Company and President of
Baosteel Branch; Director of the thind Board of Directos and President of the Company.Vice Pres.dent of 8GC and Director of the fourth Board
of Directors of the Company since April 2009

Mr Fu graduated from Xian Metalturgy & Architecture Col:ege in Ju'y 1982 and obtained his MBA from Maastrcht School of Management
(MSM) in December 1995

Oai Zhihao (bom in June 1963). serior engineer. is currertly Vice President of BGC and Director of the Board of Directors of the Company

Mz Dar 15 h ghly experienced in production and marketing management in the fiekd of steel industry Since he stated to work for Baosteel
i~ August 1983, Mr: Dai helo vanous post:ons with the compary, induding secuon head of Baostee International Trading, manager <f Steel Trading
Company.Vice President of Baosteel Internatonal Trading, assistant to President of S3GC and drrector of the marketing department of the Group,
assstart to President ard later Vice President ¢f the Company, President of Baosteel Intermational Trading, President of the Trading Branch of the
Company. ke serviced as Vice President of BGC snce November 2007 ard Directer of the fourth Boarc of the Company s.nce Apnl 2009
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Mr Dai graduated from Shanghai jaoTong University in August 1983 and obtained hs master's degree fromWestVirginia University m August 1996,
Wu Yaowen (born in September 1943), s currently Outsider Director of BGC and Director of the Board of the Company

Mr.Wu s highly expenenced in industnal business management He held various postiions with the large compan-es in China, including the
chief represantative of Mixed Commassion for Cooperation with Other Countries in Offshore Petroleum, Shengli Oilfield,Vice President of CNOOC
South Yellow Sea On Company., Director of Qinghas Petroleum Administration Bureay: chief engneer or petroleum of Ministry of Energy of China;
drector of the energy industry department of Nauonal Planning Committee of China; director of the intemational cooperation department and
later, asaistant to President and Vice President of China National Petroleurn Corporation; Director and Vice Chairman of the Board of PetroChina
Company Limsted and Director of the thind Board of Directors of the Company MrWu s currently Chairmnan {Outside Director) of China National
Coal Group Corp.and Cutside Director of BGC. He has been on the fourth Board cf the Directors of the Company since April 2009

MrWa graduated from China University of Petroleum, Beying in 1967
Buck Pei (born in March 1957) s currently Independent Drrector of the Company.

Mr. Pei is an influential member of Amencan Accounting Association Among the vanous pos's he held were assistant professor, associate
professor and full professor of Arizona State University. charman of the Chinese Accounting Professors’ Association of North Amenica: Chairman of
Global Committee of Amencan Accounting Association and hdependent Director of the third Board of the Company He is currently professor of
accountancy at Arizona State University and associate dean of WP Carey School of Business and supervisor of the doctoral program at the university.
He has been Independent Director of the fourth Board of Directors of the Company since April 2009

Mr Pei graduated from Natonal Taipei Uriversity and he obtained his MBA from Southern lllinois Universty and his PhD from the University
of North Texas

Kathenne Tsang (born in May 1957) is currendy independent Director of the Company

Ms I'sang 1s highly expenenced in Geasion-making and employee adminrstration. She took vancus managenal posts at Kowloon-Canton Raihway
and Hong Kong Government. among others. In 1992 Ms. Tsang started 10 work for Standard Chartered Bank, first as HR director of kquitor Group
(the later Standard Chartered Bond Trusteeship Business Department). HR director i Asia-Pacific area and group head of organization learning She
served later on as President, Chief Executive Officer and acting Vice: Chairwoman of the Board of Directors of Standard Chartered Bank (China)
Ltd and Independert Director of the third Board of the Company Ms Tsang is currently chairperscn of Greater China, Standard Chartered Bank
(China) Lt¢ and chairperson of the Board of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Ltd Sne has been an Irdependent Director of the fourth Board of
the Company since April 2009

Ms Tsang receved her Bachelor degree 'n business from University of Alberta. Canada
Sun Haiming {(bom in june 1956). professor in economics, 1s currently Independent Director of the Company.

Mr Sun has made extensve research in the field of economics and firance Among his posts and positions were vice dean of the department
of industrial economy. Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (SUFE), visiting researcher of Sussex Unwversity. Director of research center of
finance and economics. SUFE; dean of schood of internationzl business administration. SUFE: Chairman of professer's commrtee cf SUFE: Supervisor
of the first and second Boards of Superwisors of the Company and Independer:t Director of the thid Board of Directors cf the Company. He is
currertly President of Shanghai Institute of Foreign Trade and member of the consultation board of Skanghar municipal government. He has been an
Independent Director of the fourth Board of Directors of the Compary since Aprl 2009

Mr Sun graduated from People’s Unwerstty of China and obrained his master's degree from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.
Edward C.Tse (born in June 1956) 1s currently Independent Director of the Comparry

Mr Tse has worked as senor management consukant and senicr admenistrator for more than twenty years.The posts he held included Global
Vice Presdent of Boston Consuking Group ano managing partner of the Chinese branch of the company. executive Vice President of the planning
and cevelopmert denartmert of Hong Kong Telecom and President and acting Director of the Greater China, Hong Kong Telecom He served as
Independent Director of the third Board of the Company. Currently President of Booz & Company {Greater China),Mr.Tse has been an Independent
Director of the fourth Boarc of Directors of the Company since April 2009.

Mr. Tse obtained his MSc in C.vil Engineering from Massachusetts Insttute of Technology and his MBA and PhD in Crvil Engineering from the
Unrve-stty of Calforria at Berkeley

Li Li {bom .n December 1953) s curretly Chairperson of 8cand of Superwisors of the Company.

Ms. L is now Partner of Debevoise & Plimpton LLP and Chief Representative of Sebeverse & Plimpton LLP (Shanghai) since 2002, before
which she was partaer ard vwyer of 2 well-known international law firm in New York and Hong Korg Ms. Lits highly experienced in management
0 areas of ivestment, faancing axd M&A In New Yors: Ms Li specializes in asset-tased lencing, a rplane firancing, morigage-tacked security and
proect finarcing in China. she is involved 1 cooperation with international companies, Chirese companies and fund management comparies in
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areas of securtties issuing, M8A, private equity fund management and intemational investment in China. Ms, Li was Chairperson of the third Board
of Supervisors and has been Chairperson of the fourth Board of Supervisors of the Company since April 2009

Ms U obtained her MSc in Economics from Duke University and her PhD in law from Columbia University

Zhou Guiquan (bom in August 1955) is currently Vice Secretary of CPC committee for Disciplinary Inspection and director of department of
supervision of BGC as well asVice Secretary of CPC committee for discipinary inspection and member of Board of Supervisors of the Company.

Mr Zhou is experienced in human resource management and disaplinary inspection. Since he started to work for Baostee! in August 1983, Mr.
Zhou held various positions with the company, induding director of enterprise management division. director of supervision division, and secretary of
CPC committee at hot rolling plant He was on the thed Board of Supervisors of the Company Curmently he serves asVice Secretary of CPC Com.-
mitee for Disciplinary Inspection and director of supervision department of BGC. and Vice Secretary of CPC committee for Disaplinary Inspection
of the Company. He has been Supervisor of the fourth Board of Supervisor of the Company since April 2009

Mr. Zhou Guiquan holds a bachelor degree

Han Guojun (born in anuary 1955). economist, is currenty on the Board of Supervisors of the Company and Vice Chairman of the Labor
Union of BGC as well as of the Company

Mr Han 15 experienced in administrative management, investment, fabor union work, and disaplinary inspection. Since he transferred from
Shangha No | Steel Plant. for which he started to work in 1974, 10 the Company in 1983, Mr. Han held varous posttions with the company. including
wice director of adminrstrative office of Baostee!, assistant 1o President of Fortune Trust & Investrent Co. Ltd.Vice Chairman of the Board of Direc-
tors of Fucheng Securities Brokerage Co. Ltd. and director of corporate culture division of the Company. He was on the third Board of Supervisors
of the Company. Currently he is the Vice Chairman of the Labor Union of tBGC as well as of the Company. He has been on the fourth Board of
Supervisors of the Company since Apnil 2009

Mr. Han holds a master’s degree in economics,

Zhang Pijun (born in March 1958), senior engineer at professor level. is currently on the Board of Supervisors of the Company and President
{Director) of Baostee! Research Institute (Technical Center) of the Company

Mr Zhang is experienced in technial research and production management in the field of steel industry. Since he started to work for Baosteel
in January 1982, he held various positions with the company. induding vice director and later, director of ressarch center for steel products at Bao-
steel Research Institute, asastant to President (Director) and later.Vice President of Baostee! Research Instrtute (Technical Center) He was also vice
director of the department of silicon steel at Baosteel branch. Mr. Zhang is currently Presdent (Director) of Baosteel Research hstitute (Technical
Center) He has been on the fourth Board of Superwvisors of the Company since Apnl 2009

Mr. Zhang graduated from University of Science &Technology Beiing in 1982 and he obtained his MSc from University of Science & Technology
Beging in January 1989 and his PhD from Northeastern University in March 2006,

Zhu Kebing (born in October 1974). senior accountant, is currently on the Board of Supervisors of the Company and general manager of
department of operating finance of BGC

Mr. Zhw is expenienced in enterprise finance and investment management Since he started to work for Baosteel in July 1997, he heid various
posttions with the company, induding vice director of the department of finance and accounting of the Company as well as BGC. He has been general
manager of department of operating finance of BGC since May 2009 and on the fourth Board of Supervisors of the Company since Apnl 2009

Mr. Zhy graduated from Northeastem Unmversity in 1997
Zhao Zhouli (bomn in April 1956). senior engineer at professor level, is currently Vice President of the Company

Mr. Zhao is highty experienced i production, equipment and management in the field of steel industry Since he started 1o work for Baosteel in
1982, ke held various positions with the company,inciuding assistant to manager of the blooming mill, vice director and later director of the depart-
ment of the equipment: assistant to President of BGC and assistant to President of the Company. He has beenVice Pres:den: of the Company snce
May 2000 (at the same time. President and Party Secretary of Baosteel branch of the Company from May 2007 to March 2008)

Mr. Zhao graduated from Northeastern University in 1982 and obtained his PhD in Engineening from the same university in 2002.
LiYongdang (born in October 1960). senior engineer. is currently Vice President of the Company.

Mr. Li is highty expenenced in steel production, marketing and management. Since he started to work for Meishan Company of Metallurgy in
1982. Mr. Li held vanous positions. includng vice manager and later, manager of iron-making plamt of Meishan Company of Metallurgy, member of
Board of Directors andVice President of Shanghai Meishan (Group) Co. Ltd: member of Board of Directors.Vice President, Chairman of the Board
of Directors and President of Shanghai Mershan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.: meiber of Board of Directors Vice President, and later President of Baosteel!
Croup Shanghai Meishan Co. Ltd.;assistant to President of the Company, etc He has beenVice President of the Company snce March 2008




V.

R R e S R R R S R AR R N R R R PPN NN YYDV YY Y IYYIYN

,,,,,,,, B I I Y R R I I I .

~ isors, Seni FUSLIC F
Dircctors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees wisallsr U

~

Mr. Li graduated from Northeastern University in 1982. obtaned his EMBA from China Europe Interational Business School in 2001 and his
master's degree of engineering in metallurgy from Northeastern University in 2003,

Zhu junsheng (bom in November 1960), senior engineer. is currently Vice President of the Company

Mr. Zhu s highly experienced in management of production planning, cost, and human resource. Since he started to work for Baosteel i 1983,
Mr Zhu held various positions with the company.including director of the department of production planring, vice director and later. director of the
department of cost management, vice director of the personnel department of SBGC. director of the personne! department of the Company and
assistant to the President of the Company. He has been Vice President of the Company since June 2003

Mr Zhu graduated from Maanshan Institute of Iron and Steel in july 1983 and he obtained his EMBA from China Europe International Busi-
ness School in 2007,

Jiang Licheng (bom in July 1958). engineer, is curmently Vice Presdent of the Company and general manager of the Steel Tube, Pipe and Bar
Business Untt of the Company

Mr fang 15 highly expenenced in equipment management, engineening construction, and business management in the field of steel industry.
Since he started to work for Baosteel in 1980, Mr. Jiang held vanous positions with the company. includng manager of Baosteel Shanghai Industrial
kspection Company, vice director and later. director of the energy department of the Company, director of the equpment department of the com-
pany. assistant to President of the Company.Vice President of Baosteel Group Meishan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd:; President of Baosteel Group Pudong
Iron & Steel Co. Ltd He has been Vice President of the Company as well as general manager of the Company’s Baosteel Branch since March 2008
1o Apnl 2009. He has beenVice President of the Company since April 2009 and general manager of the Steel Tube, Pipe and Bar Business Unit of
the Company since july 2009.

Mr fang obtained his EMBA from Chira Europe Internationzl Business School in 2004
ChenYing (born in March 1971). senior accountant. s currently Vice President and Secretary 1o the Board of Directors of the Company.

Ms Chen is highly experienced in finance and accounting, cost and budget management. corporate governarke, information disclosure and
investor relations in the steel industry. Since she started her career in Baosteel in 1993 she heid vanious positions with the company, including vice
director and later, director of the finance department of the Company and director of the cost management department of the Company She be-
came Secretary to the Board of Directors and Financial Controller of the Company since October 2003 Vice President and Secretary to the Board
of Directors of the Company since March 2008.

Ms Chen graduated rom People’s Uriverstty of China in 1993, obtained hes MBA from Maastncht School of Management, Holland, in 2003,
and Fudan Universty. China, in 2005

Lou Dingbo (bom in July 1962). senior economist, is currently Vice President of the Company as well as general manager of Stainless Sieel
Business Untt of the Company

Mr. Lou s highly expensenced in manufacturing and marketing of iron and steel products. Since he started to work for Baosteel in 1983.Mr Lou
once worked in the marketing division of cold rolling plant and production department. he held various positions with the company, including deputy
head of cold- rolied proctucts marketing section in the department of marketing; general manager of Baostes! Southern Company. director of the sales
department and general manager of sales center of the Company. assistant to President as well as general manager of sales center of the Company,
Vice President of the Company and general manager of the Stainless Steel Product Management Department of the Company from March 2008 to
April 2009. He has been Vice President of the Company as welt as general manager of Stainless Steel Business Unit of the Company since Apnl 2009.

Mr. Lou graduated from Northeastem University of Technology in 1983 and obtained his EMBA from China Europe International Business
School in 2003

Pang Yuanlin {born in September 1963). senior engineer. is currenty Vice President of the Company and general manager of Specal Steel
Busiress Untt of the Company.

Mr Pang is highly expenienced in production management and soentifc research management in steel industry. Since he started to work for
Baosteel in July 1985, Mr. Pang held various positions with the company,induding vice manager of Baosteel hot-roffing plant; vice director of planning
section of Baosteel Planning & Finance Department: vice director of department of construction and finance of the company. acting vice virector
and later. director of hot rolling department of the company as well as manager of the hot-rolling plant; assitant o President of Baosteel Branch of
the company and President (d'rector) of Baosteel Research Institute (Technology Center). He has been Vice President of the Company since March
2008 and general manager of Special Steel 8us ness Unit siice faraary 2C10

Mr. Pang gracuated from Wuhan University of Science and Techaology in 1985 and obtained his MBA from Shanghai Universty of Finance
and Economics in 1997.
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Zhou Jianfeng (born in September 1963). senior engineer, is currentlyVice President of the Company

Mr. Zhou is hughly experienced in production and business management in the field of steel industry. Since he started to work for Baosteel in
August 1984, Mr. Zhou held various postions with the company. including vice manager and later. manager of Baosteel hot rolling plant. assistant to
President of BGC, assistant to the President of the Company, Vice Presdent of Baosteel Branch: business supervisor of BGC and Vice President of
Hanbao tron & Steet Company. He has been Vice Presicent of the Company snce April 2009

Mr. Zhou graduated from University of Science & Technology Besing wn July 1984 and obtaned his EMBA from China Europe International
Business School in Apnl 2002

Posts in shareholding company

. = SKemuneration
' c ‘tar
Name Shareholding company  Pos:tion Start of term End ¢'term from the pany
Xu Lejang Baosteel Group Corp Chairman of Board of Directors January 2007 Yes
Vice Chairman of Board of Directors,
He Wenbo Baosteel Croup_(.lf. _ Presdent Apnl 2008 ) o Yes
Fu Zhongzhe Baosteel Group Corp. Vice Presdent Apnl 2009 Yes
Dai Zhihao Baosteel Group Corp Vice Presdent November 2007 Yes
Wu Yaowen Baosteel Group Corp. txternal Director October 2005 Yes
Ve Secretary of Committee for
Zhou Guiquan  Baosteel Group Corp Disaplinary Inspection & Director of May 2006 Yes
Supervision
Han Guojun Baosteel Group Corp. Vice Charrman of the Labor Union May 2009 Yes
Zhu Kebing Baosteel Group Corp. geneml manger of e of May 2009 Yes
peration and Finance
Posts in cthers comparies
Name Name of ccmpany Position Stant of term End of term Remuneration

from the comgany

China Padfic lnsurance

M:C_uoq:n_g _(Group) Co. ltd Chairperson of Boarioffupe—v-sors June 2007 . No
Everbrght Securities

Ma Guogang Compary Limited ndependent Director February 2008 B Yes

Ma Guoquang E‘:::;Z Generdt (China) | sependent Director August 2008 Yes

WuYiowen  CMne Natonal Coal Chairperson of Board of Directors  October 2008 Yes
Group Corp _
W P Carey School of Assodate Dean, Professor of

Buck Per Business. Arzona State Accountancy and Supervisor of May 2003 Yes
Unnersity Doctoral program
Greater China, Standard

Yatherine Tsang Chartered Bark (China) Ltd Chairperson September 2009 Yes }

Kathenne Tsang ?S:‘;:;‘lg“ﬂm Bank Chairperson of Board of Directors September 2009 No

SunHaiming  SrarEh ste T FOregn e ere September 2009 ves

Greater China Booz &

d c 2 ve
Edward C.Tse C y Edward Chairpersor: of Qo.ard of Directors. November 2009 es
LiLi Debevorse & Pkmpton LLP  Partner September 2002 Yes
ul Sharghai Office. Debevorse Heac September 2002 No

& Plimpton LLP




- 14

Vlll sty

LILILL N LELESS LI LI LIS LSS LIS LSS LS SIS LSS LSS SIS S IS IS LSS SIS LSS SIS LSS SIS r 2l S S 2

rls s

(In

Annual Remunerations

The compensation of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Exacutives for the year 2009 totaled RMB 12,241,000 (pre-tax)

(RMB 10 thousand)
Compensation from Rmmg’;ggf’; Non-yearty
Name Position share-hoiders or in reported period remuneration from
affilated company {ore-tax) the Company
Xu Lejang Chairman of Board of Directors Yes .
He Wenbo Vice Chairman of Board ¢f Directors Yes -
Ma Guoqgang Director. President No ®ae v 9684 2009.05-2009.12
Fu Zhongzhe Director Yes 02 v 210 2009.04-2009.04
Dai Zhihao Director Yes .
WA Yaowen Oirector Yes 2500
Buck Pei Independent Director No 2500
Katherne Tsang Independent Director No 2500
Sun Haiming Independent Director No 2500
Edward Tse Independent Director No 2500 “—
Lits Chairwoman of Board of Supervisors No 2500
Zhou Guiquan Supervisor Yes
Han Guojun Supervisor “Yes MO 16.14 2009 01-2009.04
Zhang Pijun Supervisor No 6
Zhu Kebing Supervisor Yes i
Zhao Zhouli Vie Presdent No 1039
Li Yongxang Vice Presden No 1039
Zhu Junsheng Vice Presdent No 1039 -
Jang Licheng Vice President No 1039
ChenYing \sl::‘r:?:;e Board of Directors No 1039
Lou Dingbo Vke President No 1298 0<ud
Pang Yuanlin Vice President No 1039
Zhou janfeng Vice Presdent No ®o 8873 2009.05-2009.12
OuyangYingpeng  Resigned Vice Chairman of Board of Directors Yes
b Haiping Resigned Director Yes
taura Cha Resigned Independent Dector No 833 2009 01-2009.04
Liu An Resigned Supervisor Yes
Peng Junxang Resigned Supersor Yes -
Cun fan ResgnedVice President Nomevn 1717 2009 01-2009 04
Touwal 1224.1

Note: *Compensation from share-holders or affisated company® refers to whether the Director or Supervisor of any other senior executive is paid by
@ shara-hoider or an gffitiated company.

Notes: {1) Presigent Ma Guogiang and Vice Presxjent Zhou Janieng receved ther remureraiions from BGC from January 2009 to April 2009. Direc-
tor Fu Znongzhe recerved is remuneration trom BGC since May 2009, when he was no longer President of the Company. Supervisor Han
Guojun recemed his remuneration from BGC since May 2009. Mr. Cui Jian received his remuneration from BGC since May 2009, when he was
no longer Vice President of the Company.

{2)The remuneration that Vice Prasident Lou Dingbo receved from the Company nciuded a sum of RMB200,000 of BOD Specal Contnbution
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(V)

Recruitment and Termination of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Executives

As approved by the 2008 General Shareholders' Meeting heid on 28 Apeil 2009, MrXu Lejiang, Mr. He Wenbo, Mr.
Ma Guogiang, Mr. Fu Zhongzhe. Mr. Dai Zhihao. Mr Wu Yaowen, Mr: Buck Pei, Ms. Katherine Tsang, Mr. Sun Haiming, and Mr.
Edward C Tse consist of the new board of directors Mr. Ouyang Yingpeng, Mr. Li Haiping and Ms Laura Cha were no konger
on the new Board of Directors

Ms. Li Li. Mr. Zhou Guiquan and Mr. Zhy Kebing are members of the fourth Board of Supervisors. while Mr. Han
Guojun and Mr. Zhang Pijun serve as the Employee Supervisors Mr. Liu An and Mr Peng Junxiang were no longer on the
new Board of Supervisors.

As approved by the frst meeting of the fourth Board of Directors held on 28 Apnil 2009. Mr Ma Guogqing was ap-
pointed the President of the Company to replace Mr. Fu Zhonghe At the same tme. Mr. Zhao Zhouh, Mr. Li Yongsdang, Mr.
Zhu junsheng, Mr. Jung Licheng, Ms. Chen Ying, Mr. Lou Dingbo. Mr. Pang Yuanlin and Mr Zhou Janfeng were appointed. while
Mr. Cui jan was no longer among the Vice Presidents

The assistant to the President of the Companty is no longer among senior exeastives of the Company, as the Article
133 (3) in the Chart of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd.. The President Vice Presdents, Financial Controller, Secretary to Board
of Directors and assistants to the President are senior executives” was edited as “The President, Vice Presidents. Financial
Controller and Secretary to Board of Directors are senior executives”. The revision was approved by the 2008 General
Shareholders Meeting hekd on 28 Apnil 2009

V)

Employees

As at the end of the period covered by the Report. the total number of the empioyees of the Company and its con-
volled companies was 42318, including 25.468 who were involved in production, 12.877 in technical functions, and 3973
in administration and management departments. Among them, 26,848 held three-year college or higher degrees. The stafl
members of the Company totaled 27.321. including 17.691 that were involved in production. 7.162 in technical functions.
and 2.468 n administration and management departments. Among them, those held three-year college degrees or higher
ones numbered 16,889 The company did not incur any expense for the retired employees in the past year.
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Progress in Corporate Governance

Ever since listed at the stock exchange in 2000, the Company has endeavored to create and execute, by means of standardizing its management
and regulatng is operation, a thorough and comprehensive corporate governance system, which features operational transparency in information
publicaton, interactive relationship with investors, and strict and effective internal auditing and monitoring system. risk-controlling systems, sound
crecit and transparency In management. in strict compliance with the Company Law. the Securtties { aw., as well as relevant rules and regulations
issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission and the Rules of Shanghai Stock Exchange for Stock Listing. Efforts have also been made for
further improvement in its corporate governance system by means of keeping abreast with domestic and international progress in management
while focusing on creativity and innovation

Prudent corporate governance

The Company established s bask management framework and a top-down approval procedure must be followed in making decrsions of
great signiScance. The Shareholders’ Meeting the Board of Directors. the Executive Directors. and the presidents have their own distinctive and
respective nghts. making an interactive and balanced system among the departments of power. decison-making, management. and superwision, who
have therr duties and responsibdres.

lndependent and etficient board of directors

The Company atways attaches great importance to the Board of Directors and eflorts have been made to improve the operating efficiency
of the Board In the reported period the Company was awarded the “Board of Directors of the Year at the 8th Forum of Corporate Governance
in China (2009). which was hosted by Shanghai Stock exchange and sponsored by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council (SASAC) and Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD).

The fourth Board of Directors was elected, lolkowing the practice of the prewvious three boards, at the 2008 annual General Shareholders’
Meeting heid on 28 April 2009.The new Board includes 10 directors. including four independent ones, who take up 40 per cent of the total In addi-
tion. MrWu Yaowen has been trusted by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council as the Outside
Director of BGC as well as one of the Directors of the Company, which makes him fairty independent from the Company

Three special committees have been formed 1o be responsible for the Board of Directors' Committee for Strategic Development, Auditing
Committee and Remuneration and Appraisal Committee. Effort has been made to expand the functions of the committees The Committee for
Strategic Development has been in charge of risk management in the Company and the Auditing Committee 15 entitled the right to recerve and
review complaints about or reports to malpractices in preparation of financial reports and action beyond one’s authonty.

Marure system o independent directors

As one of the first few companies in China which introduced the practice of independent directors, the Company attaches great importarce
to the role of independent directors and enjoys a mature system of independent directors both in institubion and practice. The four independent
directors, senior experts in security. finance and accounting. and management at home or abroad. are well-known professionals in corporate strategy
busness management. finance. commerce. and human resources Their devotion. independent stands, professional perspectives and experiences have
contnbuted greatly to the management. significant dedsion-making, and corporate governance system of the Company

The Independent Directors are found to be active in bettening the special committees, playing an important role in the special committees of
the Board of Directors.With Mr. Xu Lejiang a5 the director of the Commttee for Strategic Development. one seventh of its members are indepen
dent directors Mr Buck Pei. an accounting professor. acts as the director of the Auditing Committee, whose four independent directors take up three
fourth of ts members. Ms. Katherine Tsang is the director of the Remuneration and Apprarsal Committee, whose members are all outsxie directors.
with three fourth of ts members are independent directors. Mr. Buck Pei and Ms Katherine Tsang as independent directors serve 1o make fair and
independent decisons in the auditing and evaluation work of which they are in charge, respectively.

Innovative measures of the board of directors

The Company has been corstantly learning the theory of corporate governance and governanice by the board of directors ht has estabished
such innovative communiation mechanisms as the communication meetng of outside directors, the exchanging meeting of directors and senior
executives.and the dynamic communication meeting among the auditing committee, the intemal auditing department and external audiing depart-
ment It also founded the exacutive director system in an effort to form an independent and effident board of directors

The Company ensured the efficient implementation of the resolutions of the board of directors through ckosed loop management of the bozrd
of direciors The resolution and acwice of the board of directors were submitted to the leaders of the Company. copied to ciferent departments in
the shortest possibie tme through the "board of directors and the report of the relevant ftems” after the convening of the board meeting in addi
tion, the ma of the feedback time of the competent departments and responsibility departments was ako confirmed to ensure that the decrsion
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and advice of the board of directors could be delivered 1o the management at different levels and the relevant departments and be implemented
in time.The closed loop management ensured the efficient implementation of the board of directors.

The Company focused on the link between theory and practice. It highly emphasized and constamly improved corporate governance and
the construction of the board of directors. and applied the notion of its corporate governance to the practice of its operation. During the period
of the report. the Compiny had conducted the management research program of “the Corporate Governance and the Operaton of the Board of
Directors of Listed Companses”. exploring into the theory and the best practice of corporate governance and governance by the board of directors,
and put forwand suggestions of optimization that combined theory and performability.

S.  Full and transparent information disclosuce

During the period of the report. the Company had combined as usual the computsory and voluntary disckosures of information, treated all the
shareholders on the prinaiple of openness. mpartiality. and justice, and increased its transparency through the timely drsclosure of sensitive information
about ts stock price following the relevant rules strictly. Since early this year. the Company had conducted tmely and appropriate drscussion in its
regular reports of the severe external environment, the management stuation. and the efficient dealing of the crsss. In additon, it had also foretold
the dramatic changes of its performance in the next term over the corresponding period in the previous year in fts frst quarter report and semi-
yearly report respectively. Besides, t had discussed the unfavorable factors in the fourth quarter when the performance was obviously going up in
the third quarter and guided the market to a rational expectation of the performance in the fourth quarter.

6. Fine and interactive relation with investors

During the period of the report. the Company had taken the inttiative to improve fts work on investor relation (hersinaer referred to as
IR). making pointed communicabon with the investors. During this penod. the IR team of the Company had received a total of 645 domestic fund
managers and securities analysts in 147 batches who came to the Company for investigation and research, which was a 15 7% rise than the previ-
ous year: the Company had aiso arranged for 51 batches of investors 10 visit the factory areas. hosted teleconferences for 50 times. which were
respectively 3 15.9% and 51 5% rise than the previous year. Meanwhile. the Company had attended |3 large-scale investor exchanging meetings upon
nvitation hosted by such intemational investment banks as UBS AG, MORGAN STANLEY, and MERRILL LYNCH, made [0 conference speeches,
and particpated in |3 team activities and 31 one-to-one meetings All these had shown 10 the greatest extent fts corporate image to domestic and
overseas investors and conducting in-depth information exchanges.

The IR activites participated by the senior management of the Company regutarly had reaped fine market responses The IR team had satis-
factonily completed its regular IR activity plan. hosting 4 online news conferences on performances during the year and two on-the-spot exchanging
meetings of analysts after the publication of the annual and rwd-term reports The meetings were attended by the board chairman, president and
secretary 1o the board, who made frank and sincere communications with the investors on such issues of concern as the industrial development and
corporate management These activities had received favorable comments from the investors and drawn their constant attention

7. Programs to improve corporite governance

As early as in August 2007. the Company had completed the relevant work on the three stages of corporate governarce, namely. self-check,
public assessment.rectification and improvement, as required in“Note on the Matters Concerning Carrying out a Special Campaign to Strengthen
the Corporate Governance of Listed Companves’, winning the acknowledgement of Shanghai Securtties Regulatory Bureau and Shanghai Stock
Exchange. In addition. the Company had published “Rectification and Refrm Report of Baoshan Iron and Steel Co, Ltd. Concerring Carnpaign to
Strengthen the Corporate Governance'”. and woukd continue to improve its independent director system and intemal control system in the period
of the report. k would akso further establish and improve its medium- and jong-term incentive and disciplining scheme

8. Awards

I 2009, the Company continued 0 enjoy praises in the capital market, winning the following awards (including but not kmited to) “Board of
Directors of the Year at the 8th Forum of Coroorate Governance in China (2009) hosted by Shanghai Stock exchange and sponsored by State-owned
Assets Supervison and Administraton Commission of the State Counal (SASAC) and Organizaton for Economic Co-operation and Development
(OECD):"Top 20 of China’s Listed Companies in Corporate Governance in 2009™ evaluated by the corporate governance research center of the
Institute of World Economics & Politics of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. the Leader Examination and Assessment Center of the National
School of Administration. and Protiviti,“Top 100 of China’s Listed Companies in Corporate Market Value Management in 2009 at the “3rd Summit
Forum of China’s Listed Companies on Market Value Management” sponsored by China Center for Market Value Management and The Economic
Observer:"2008 China’s Top 10 Most Responsible Listed Companies” jointly issued by Securtties Times and Times Onine. In addrion, the Company’s
website was rated as the "China’s First Most Wekomed Listed Company's Website by Investors”."China’s First Best Information Disclosure Website
of Listed Companies ", and "China’s “irst Best Communication Website of Listed Compar.es”
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(In Performance of Directors
1 Autendance at board meetings

During the period of the report. the Company convened a total of 6 board meetings, of which 5 were regular board meetings convened on
the spot (3 meetings of the 4th board and 2 meetings of the 3rd board) and | was an interim board meeting by cormespondence

Al T -

Directors g;;dt?f:dn:; /r\rr:eeenl?r:‘sc?oi‘m ﬁ?\?;gcne g)?r;doi:e msznnfac"sg Absence uvggggjgg in

in the period spondence person of not
Xu Lejiang No 6 6 f ] 0 No
He Wenbo No 6 6 I 0 o No
Ma Guogiang No 3 3 c o [ No
Fu Znongzhe No (3 6 1 0 0 No
Dai Zhihao No 3 3 0 0 0 No
WU Yaowen No 6 4 | 2 0 Yes
Buck Pei Yes 3 5 2 0 0 No
Katherine Tsang Yes 6 S 1 1 o] Nc¢
Sun Haiming Yes % 5 ] i 0 Ne
fdward C Tse © Yes 6 5 1 1 C N¢
Notes:

(1) Drrectors Ma Guogang and Dar Zhihao are new diectors apposnted for the fourth Board of Directors and their at:endances were only based
on the number of the fourth Board meetngs.

{2)  Expianation of Two coNSecutive absences N person
Since the 18th meeting of the 310 board and the 15t meeting of the 4:h board were both convened on Apni 28, 2009, Director WU Yaowen tailed
to aftend the meetngs in person for work reasons. However, he had caretully read al the proposals belors the meetings and explained 10 the

fullest his opinions to director Fu Zhongzhe and signed a letter o authonty with him, on which hs opnions on each and every of the proposals
were Cleary stated

2. Dissents from independent directors

No independent directors have voiced their dissents on proposals of the Board of Directors and other proposals in the reported year

3. Esublishmentandimprovement of the rlevant work systems and main content of the independent directors and the performance

of independent directors

In Oameroflhechwyandnsappmd:x&l:swhocedmforlhcﬁ’mmgofﬂoamofDrmorsmeConpanyspeoﬁedmmdepmdemdlredor
system The Company had sgned Agreement on the Fimployment of independent Directors with the independent directors to clarify ther nghts and duties.

OnMard\26,2m.w\eCormanypasedeposalmmeV\brkSyswnofmeAmmlReporlofhdependmtDmorsoﬁheCm‘panyauhe
11t meetng of the 3rd Board, specrfying that the independent director should perform his rights and obiigations and work dgently in the comgilation and
dscosure of the annual report.

The independent director in performing his duties, is free of the influence of the Company's main stockholders, actual contrallers, or unds or individuals
that have a stake with the main stockholders and actual controlers.

Relred transactons requinng the defiberauon of the Company's Board of Directors or fts general meeting of sharehokders should acqurre the written
documents of the independent director recognizng the transactions and the independent opinions heid by the ndependent director

The independent director should futll hes tust. attending the board meetings actively, performing his special powers in accondance with the law and the
ad:mmwemlsandreguhhons.»oowghsopnmmkeyMlﬂetheCompany’srdamdwwbomextmulg\nmlee,mdncemvebfﬂoduwl
pvwdngproﬁmoulandwwvcﬁvesg&omhhe@vww‘smpdwﬁm&aduﬁsmwgﬂnwkdhemmgmmuﬂs&gwdhg
the legtimate rights and nterests of the Company and all the sharehoiders.

In accordance with Work System on the Avual Report of independent Directors, the Company organized the ndependent directors to pay an on-
the-spot investgation of Baosteel Intemational curing the period of making the annual report This enabled the ndependent directors to have a deeper under
starding of the Company, provided therm with nforrraton support in thesr decsion making,and hedped them increase the Board's efficie~cy of dearson-making
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(111 Independence of the Contralling Shareholder in Respect of Business, Personnel, Assets, Institutions and Finance

(1 Sales and operations The Company has fult authonty over fts sales and operations management.

2y Personnel. The Company 1s totally independent of and separate from Baosteel Group Corporation in regard to production,
human resources and payroll management The senicr executives, ncluding the Presdent, the Vice Presidents, the Financial
Controller and the Board Secretary, did not hokd any concurrent positions in Baosteel Group.

3) Assets: The Company owns all of its production processes.induding raw matenals processing sintering coking iron smelting,
steel manufacturing and stee! rolling, as well as related infrastructure and faaltties. such as ships and ports The Company also
exercises complete authority over its research and technology. manufactuning, procurement and sales processes.

“4) Organizational structure: The Company s totally independent of and separate from Baosteel Group Corporation with none
of the Company's departments overlapping with those of or reporting to the holding company

5) * Finance. Equipped with its own finance and accounting department, the Company has independent accounting, audzing
and financial management systems All bank accounts of the Company are independent of the holding company and taxed
separately

(IV)  Internal Control System

The internal control system was further improved in the repored period and ts internal management and the internal
control devices were strengthened

On the construction of the internal control system. in order to adapt to the re‘crm in the corporate organizations
and reduce the operational nsks caused by the lack of the relevant systems, the Company. based on the requirements of
Basic Standard for Erterpnse Intermnal Control, had revised its management documents and standards including interndl
Control Managemen: Reguiations, and issued them 10 the subordinate untts for implementation, so as to speafy business
procedures, nterfaces and dmision of responsibility. helping to the internal control n the Company to develop in a more
saentfic, reasonable and normatve manner.

To enhance the consgousness 1o and techniques of internal control, the Company offered training courses. which took
the Basic Standard for Enterprise Intermal Control as their leading principle, the internal control manual of the Company
and case studies as ther main contents, and strengthened the instructions 10 the subsickanes’ work of intemational controf,
whrch helped to promote the internauonal control standard.

Specifically, the fliowng measures were taken in the reported period o strengthen the internal control system

1 In order to increase the opcrability of the internal cortrol manual and .ntegrate ftinto the Company’s comprehensive manage-
ment system, the Company while upgrading the core content of s Intema! Controi Manual on a regular basis. launched at
a proper time the transticn of the intemal control manual to the comprehensive management brochure and management
standard

2 To follow up and evaluate the probrems found in Interma) control audit more effactively, the Company. in summanzing the
follow-up mechanism of the rectfication of internal control in 2008, Incorporated the “accomplishrrent ratio of internal
controf audrting and rectification”into 1s performance appraisal system. as an index to evaluate internal control .mprovement
in the different departments subordinate units and subsidianes of the headquarters This had strengthered the continuous
improvement mechansm of intemal control in the Company

3 In order to promote the effective implementation of intermal control and establ:sh a healthy continuous mprovement
mechanism the Company. follow:ng the requirements of intemaf Cont-of Maragement Regulations,completed the disdosure
of tts intemal control sef-evaluat:on report in 2008, and on this basis. worked out Methods of Managing Intema! Control
Lvaluation, which had institutionalized mterral control evaluation. In addition, it had established an interal control evaluation
system urder the mode cf oroject-based maragement realizing tie transfer from internal cortrol targets to internal centrol
projects.
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V) Assessinent and Appraisal Mechanisms for Senior Executives

The Company enjoys a well-formed structure of corporate governance, with an assessment and appraisal mechanism
for senior executives, which was approved by the Remuneration and Apprarsal Committee and the Board of Directors The
compensations of senior executives are dependant upon the performances of the Company as a whole and of themselves,
and normative procedures have been well-estabiished with regards to therr targets, dalty compensation management, achieve-
ments, and achiever ment relatonsh

(VD) Disclosures of Board's Self-cvaluation Repore on the Internal Control and Sustainability Report

1 Seif-evaluation report of the Board of Directors on the Company’s interna! control and the aud-tor's review report

The 4th meeting of the 4th Board of the Company examined and passed the Soif-Evaluation Report of the Board
of Dircctors of Baostect on the Company's Intemal Control Ernst & Young Hua Ming issued its review report, which was
disclosed at "itp//www sse com cn

~

The Company’s 2009 Sustainability Report

The 4th meeting of the 4th Board of the Company examined and passed the 2069 Sustanability Report, which was
drsclosed at “ttp//wwwisse com.cn.

(VIIy  The Company’s Accountability System for Major Errors in Information Disclosure in Annual Reports

The 4th meetng of the 4th Board of the Company examined and passed the revision of Methods of information
Disciosure Management pursuant to the requirements set cut in CSRC Document [2009) No.34 Cirxcular on Property
Handimg the 2009 Annuai Reports of Listed Companies and the Related Work.in which te accountabilty system for major
errors in information disclosure i annual reports was added.

According to the accountability system for major errors in information disclosure in annual reports. if the person lable
violates the stipulations of such state laws and regulations as Company Law. Securities Law, Administratve Measures on
Inferrnation Disclosure by Listed Companics. the Rules of Shanghar Stock Fxchange for Stock Listing, Accounting Standards
for Business [nterpnses,and China Accounting System for Business Enterprises imentonally or due to gross negligence which
has resulted in the fakse record. mssleading statement. or major omission in the annual report, the Board of D rectors shall
punsh the person(s) directly liable and other persons irable dependent upon the seriousness of the case and shall disclose
the reasons for the correction, supplement and revision as well as the influences thus caused truthfully following the relevant
stipulations by China Securibees Regulatory Commission and Shanghai Stock Exchange. 1t snall akso disclose information about
the accountabrity measures and punishment of the relevant persors liable by the Board of Directors
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V1. Sharcholders’ Meetings
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U] The 2008 Shareholders’ General Meeting of the Company was held on 28 Apnil 2003, in Shanghai. and the public notice of
the resolution was posted in the next day's China Securities News, Shanghai Secunties News. and Securtties Time.

o The first Temporary Shareholders' General Meeting of the Company was held on 2 March 2009.in Shanghai. and the public.
note of the resolution was posted in the next day's China Securtties News, Shanghai Securtties News, and Securites Time,
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Review of the Company’s Operation

In 2009, guided by Plans for Adjusting and Accelerating the Stee! Industry, China had furthered its efforts in implementing the relevant poli-
Ges pertaining 1o the adjustment of the structure of ts steel industry with a view to boosting the industral competitiveness As a result, regional
restructuning of domestic capacity had been accelerated and merger and restructunng had enered a stage of development

Driven by a package of sumulating policies by the state, the domestic production of crude steel had set a historic high. rea.chnng 568 mllion
tons. a 12.9% increase than the previous year. The rising demand, the recovery of the demand by the automobile and home appliance industres m
the second half of 2009 in particular. had made the domestic stee! prke bottom out and rebound. In general, the price had shown a trend of smatl
fluctuations a low level in the first half of 2009 and leaping high in the second half of the yearThe price fluctuation cycle of steel products shortened.
but the fluctuation range widened. The overall steel sefing price of the steel industry in the year was kower than the average level of the first three
quarters in 2008. Driven by the rising demand for steel and the recovering steel price. the import of such raw materials and fuels as iron ore and
coking coal had jumped dramatically and the purchasing prices of major raw materals and fuels like coke. coal, scrap steel, and ferroalloy entered a
up-mowing cycle from the third quarter of 2009. However. aflected by the dramatic demand shrinkage in the international market, trade protection.
and changes of exchange rate. the export of domestc steel dropped sharply than the previous year and the import rose 10 a certain extent. Major
large and medium-sized iron and steel enterprises achieved a total proft of RMBSS 39 billion in 2009, a 31 4% drop from the previous year.

Confronted with the global economic crisis and the severe market situation. all the employees in Baosteel had steadfastly carmied out various
work and the measures to address the crisis, underlining product management. sparing no efforts in lowering costs, and malang great effort to reform
the management 5o 3s to ensure the overall stabity of production and management. In 2009, the Company sold 22429 miillion tons of steel and
realzed a total revenue of RMB 14853 billion and a pre-tax proft of RMB7 29 billion, registenng a 10.5% drop from the previous year

Business scope and company strategies

With steel industry as ts focus and carbon steel, stainless steel and special steel as fts major classfications of products, the Company akso
engages in business areas such as trade. shipping, coal chemical industry, informaton services, and finance The princple products of the Company
include hot-rolled sheets and corls. heavy plates. cokl-rolfed shects. galvanized sheets, un plates, color-coated sheets, electric steel, seamless tubes and
prpes. UOE & HFW welded pipes. hot-rolled pickled sheets, high-speed wires and rods. stainless steel, and special steel, which are widely applied and
used in industries such as automotle. home appliances, il industry, machine manufactuning, energy and transportation. construction and decoration,
metal ware products, aviation. nuclear power. and electronic panels '

The Company implemented the competitive strategy of "Focus™ for fts main business of steel, focusing on the development such advantageous
products as automotive sheet, steel for household appliance. electrical steel. pipaline steed, steel for energy use, ship plate. stainless steel, high-alloy steel,
in an eflort to boost the ¢ edge of the ach £ products and maimain the Company's leading position on the domestic plate market.

Company prioritics

Improving the Companys "y petformance by intensifying efforts for market developinent

Making continuous efforts to optimuze the product mix and boost product competitiveness. Optimizing the product mex based on profit-
earning abilty. the Company realized a sale of 9.683 million tons of ts exchssive and leading products in 2009 & also expanded s market shares
in the medium and high-end markets. sefing 2.736 million tons of carbon steel products by import substtution in 2009. The sales rauos of deep
punching automotive sheets and high strength steel products had increased steadily; the electro-gahvanized products had entered the high-end OA
market (steel for office equipment use). the high-grade electric sted had broken the monopoly of forergn enterprises on steel used for DC inverter
compressors; the proportion of high-end oriented siicon steel had reached over S0%, providing steadily for over 300 users at home and abroad

Energetically promoting new product development and expansion supported by the production-marketing-research team. Making 2 dose
follow-up of its customers’ demands. the Company promoted its production, marketing and research from a broader and in-depth perspective, cen-
tering mainly around its exclusive and leading products. As a resutt, the sales rate of its new products reached 19.8% in 2009.The Meisteel cold-rolled
series products gained users’ recognition very soon. which ensured the normal trial production of the Meisteel cold-rolled series lines By means of
technology transfer and on-the-spot guidance. the productive capacities for Nigh-grade steel at Meisteel and Stainless Steel Business Unit were raised
notably, greatly improving their ability to resist market risks

Popularzing the economic operation mode of balanced production and sales to ensure the optimization of the Company’s profit. Following
the mode of economic operation. the Company had balanced its production and sales and estabished a dynamic iron and steel capacity adjustment
mechanism based on market demands. In the first half of 2009, it operated under low loads, looking for markets and accumulating stocks; in the
remaining half of 2009, & strived for stable and high output in an effort 1o satisfy the demands of the customers, in partcular those of automotive
plants. ks marketing system underwent severe tests In 2009, the Company sold 3 315 milon tons of cokd- rofled automotive sheets, occupying 50.1%
of the domestic market. In addition. it gave full play to the synergetic effect. establshed a manzgement mode of mutual-supply of matenals that gave
priority 1o economiic efliciency. and continued to proniote the inventory management of finished products based on lean operation levels.
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Enhancing the comprehensive competitiveness of the Company by intensifying efforts in material supply for major projects. In 2009, the Com-
pany partiGpated in 168 major projects and other projects or programs and the total contracted amount of materials being supplied reached 1072
mi%on tons. It had made striking achievements in supplying steel matenials to such construction projects as the second pipeline of West-to-East Gas
Transméssion project. the World Expo project. the Asian Games project. the Yangshan Deep-Water Port project, the Zhoushan Island-Land Link project,
OilTank project of CNPC and SINOPEC. the Nuclear Power project, and Honggiao Integrated Transportation Hub, This had enhanced the image of
the Company in the construction of major projects and promoted at the same time the Company’s research and development in hi-tech products

(2} Making all-round efforts o lower costs

The Company had made al-round eflorts tolower costs, adopting a series of measures, such as improving product quality. optimzing the mode
of production organization, lowering the costs of hot metal and resource utilization, increasing the resource recycling, and reducing the expenses on
maintenance and labor subcontracting As a result. the cost competitiveness of the Company was effectvely improved

The Company strengthened the management of purchase and supply, optimized the plans for coal blending and ore blending, increased control
on the target cost of hot metal. and emphasized the product quality and productivity at the procedures of coking and srtering, as a result of whih,
the per unit cost of the hot metal was lowered by 19 2% on the year-on-year basis

The Company optimized the mode of production org; blished an inventory 8¢ 1t system. and set up a model of inventory
ndex, thus forming a alert mechanism for inventory risks The Conpanys net bal of nventory at the end of 2009 was RMB 618 milion lower than
at the beginning of 2009 And its annuat days of stock rotation in 2009 was 82 days. |5 days faster than the previous year. effectively ensuring the
tumover of the operating capital and the control of management risks.

The Comgany worked hard to promote equipment e, op g the maintenance modes based on the loads of productivity of
different production lines. h strengthened routine equipment maintenance and the exarnination and approval of maintenance programs in an effort
10 reduce the maintenance load, raise maintenance efficiency, and lower matenial consumption, and as a result, the maimtenance expenses in 2009
deciined by 27.6% compared with the previous year. In addition. it compressed the subcontracted services, optimzed the manufacturing techniques.
and promoted the regional adjustment of labor subcontracting, and consequently. fts expense on subcontracted services in 2009 was 24% lower
than the previous year.

The Company spared no efforts to raise its manufactunng capacity. optimize the division of work at different production lines and lower the
quality cost In 2009, ts comprehensive ratio of merchandsse on hand was 1 94% lower than the previous year.

The Company tried hard to kower cost in energy use and its cost per ton of steel in 2009 was 22.8% lower than the previous year. [n addition,
#t optimized the management mode of meticulous use of sobd and waste resources and expanded the channels for recycling. In 2009, s rate of
recycling the solid and waste resources reached 25.4%. 1.91% higher than the previous year.

The Compary made actve efforts 1o control costs. and the marketing and administrative expenses in 2009 were RMB | .48 billion lower than
the previous year a drop of 19 6% Moreover. through the dynamic tracing of the fnancing interest rate of home and foresgn currencies and exchange
variance. it had taken such measures as the selection of low-cost finanang and the issuing of medium term notes, as a result of which its financial cost
dropped by RMB 420 milkon (20.1%) than the previous year:

(3} Raising mamagement efficiency tuough the implementation of management seform

In 2009, the Company promoted management reform from three aspects in an effort to raise its management efficiency The three aspects
were: redudng hierarchies of management. specifying the main body of management. and streambning management agencies and administrative staff.

Based on the prinaple of “simplification for efficiency”, the Company, in onder to raise management efficiency, compressed the hierarchies of
management. reducing |0 department-level agencies and 30 office-level agencies. it established the business units for stainless steed, specal steel and
steel pipes. tubes and bars and clarified the responsibility system of procduct management Currently,the thres business units were functoning smoothly
n addrtion. the Company akso promoted the flattening of the marketing system. which increased s ability to respond Guickly 10 market changes

4) Investment programs in key fixed assets under proper control

The Company set stct mit on the number of new construction projects and the scale of investment hs fixed assets investment was RMB
17.76 bilkon in 2009, a 38 |% drop from the previous year

A batch of key projects was completed one after another. For example. the new continuous arnealing l:ne added to Baosteel 2030 Cold Roling
Plant started hot koad test on December |5 ahead of schedule. settng the shortest record in the constructon of cald rolling continuous annealing
line at home and abroac. the product mix adjustment project of Meisteel’s 1422 Hot Rolfling Plant was offcially and completely put into hot load
test and production on October |, ushering in a new era for Baosteel’s open type independent integration and innovation: COREX furnace coal
brquetting project. the first one in China developed independently by the Company was successfully completed
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The construction schadule of such projects as the cold-rolled stainless steel stnp project of Stainless Steel Business Unit, the steckel mill project
and the technical revamping project of titanium-nicke! special metal sheet of Special Steel Business Unt. and Lucing Step 2 project of Medum &
Heavy Plate Branch was under control generally

Focusing on key technology to accelerate product innovation

The Company made major breakthroughs in the research and development and production of slicon steel, completing the small-scale. tral
making of top high-grade produats and successfully developing the grain-oniented siicon steel with laser scribing, the top product among the top-
grade sihcon products, breaking the monopoly of forergn products in the high-performance transformer industry

Through the implementation of the major project of ferritic stainless steel with medium chromium, the Company formed a large-scale stabie
supply ability of white coil, one of the BN series products In addition. it also developed fine stainless steel used for raitway freight cars, which was
better than the same type of materiats produced in other parts of China, Germany. and Japan.

The Company succeeded in the trial batch manufacture of uitra-high alloyed high steel grade oil tubing for the first time in China, which were
used successfilly at Puguang Gas Field, setting the records of the largest spacificaton of o tubing and the highest production of gas welks. the highest
stee! strength, the worst erosive environment in running, In add:tion, it rendered support to the construction of the second pipeline of West-to-East
Gas Transmssion project. trial-made and mass-produced the steel plates and UOE wekded pipe for X80 grade.  developed the steel plates used
in TMCP hull plate with the max thickness of 80mm, the technical indicators of which satisfied the requirements of each classification sooety and
passed their certification testing

Contriving envirconment management to greet the new challenges in the “low-carbon” era

Focusing on the promotion of environment management, the Company b a dynamic r g and control system for energy
and environment protection, worked hard to launch projects that could improve costs in energy, worked out the organizatonal system, responsibility
system and target system of environment management.in an effort to raise to a new height in energy and environment protection management and
the technology of energy-saving and emission-reduction.

The Company made rational use of energy replacement to reduce the amount of high-priced energy used. k conducted special auditing of
energy-saving and enission-reduction conducted self-duag of energy mar

2 and a netwerk of energy efficiency management
characterized by "key energy-efficiency factor” and the management ladder of “energy consumption sources . In 2009, the Company's comprehensive

energy comsumpttion for per ton of steel was reduced by 25.8 kilograms of standard coal compared with that of the previous year.

The Company optinized the operational mode of environmental protection equipment, promoted the economical operation of the environ-
mental protection equipment. made donation to build the environment monitoning center of Baoshan District in response to the city's and Baoshan
District’s three-year acton plan for environmental protection, compiled the Environmental Protection Action Plan 1o Greet the World Expo, and
strengthened and improved the environmental protection level at the factory area The Company’s total amount of SO2 emussion and COD discharge
n wastewater in 2009 were 19.5% and 28.7% lower than the previous year respectively.

Effectively optiniizing the debt structure and lowering the fund cost

In 2009. the Company registered the quota of msuing RMB 10 bilion worth of medium term notes and RMB 10 bifion worth of short term
financing bills. Seizing the favorable opportunities in the market. the Company issued RM8 10 billion yuan medium term notes at a coupon rate of
2.66% and a mawrity of 3 years, creating the two records of lowest issuing interests and largest issuing amount among the domestic peers in the
same penod.
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3.

(1)

Overall Performance in the Reported Period

Operating results

In the reported penod. with its management focus on promoting the programs of product management. lowering costs from all aspects. and
erhancing system capabilty, the Company worked. with the common efiort of the management and the whole staff. for its planned cbjectives The
sales of steel products in the year reached 22 429 million tons, a | 6% decrease as against the previous year: the total business revenue amounted
to RMB 14853 billon. 2 26% drop as against the previous year; the pre-tax proft was RMB 7.29 brlion. a fall of 105% as agamnst that in the previous
year: the net profit tota'ed RMB 6.1 billion. among which RMB 5.82 billion were attributable 1o the shareholders of the listed Company.

Distribution of business income and cost of principal business segments:

{RMB Million)

Change in
Cost of Gross Change in Change n
Segments Revenue s sokd Margn %) EVEnLe T;:; cost YOY (%) gross margin (%)
tron & steel manufactunng 126,525 115421 878% -2363% =21 85% 208% lower
Iron & steel sales 129.824 126619 247% -24B6% -2520% 045% higher
, Others 9.724 8355 1408% -1339% <1110% 2.22% lower
Ceduction between segments -117.490 -115938 1.32% -21 06% -22.88% 2.34% higher
Tota! 148,583 134457 951% -2602% -2362% 2 85% lower

Note: Based on the inierna organzationdl structure, the Company 1s dvided nto the segments of ron and steel manufacturing. iron and steel sales,
and the sector of other aftarrs. The iron and stee! manutactning segment consists of such ¥on and steel manutacturing units as carbon steel,
stainless steel, and special steel: the o and steel sale sogment consists of such trading umits as Baostoa Internatonal and overseas compa-
nes; he segment of other atiairs consists of such unas as finance, chemical ndustry and IT, etc.

Distribution as per products:

Diswibution of sales of steel products
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{a) Carbon steel

The Company's carbon steel products mainly include hot-rolled products like hot-rolled sheets and heavy plates, cold-rolled products like
plain cold-rolled sheets, galvanized sheets. electrogalvanzed sheets, color coated sheets, electrolytic tinring sheets and electnic steed, as well as other
products like steel pipes and tubes, wires and rods, and billets.

Hot-rolled products

Hot-rolled products include pipeline steel. steel for cokd forming, automotive steel, mechanical structural steel, anti-corrosion structural steel, hull
structural steel, boiler and pressure vessel steel, and 1001 steel, etc, which are widely used in such industries as petroleum and natural gas transmission.
automobile, engineenng machinery, bndge. building, ship. pressure vessel. and hardware and tools In 2009, the Company made use of its advantages
in thinning with high strength to tap the needs of the customers and develop the market of special cars, and as a resut, the shipments cf 700MPa
high -sirength steel increased by over 100% compared with that of the previous year b addition, the Company developed the BDERS50 hot-rolled
magnetic yoke steet, which had gained the recognition of the customers. The Company developed such exclusive and leading products for automobiles
as QSTE4200500TM. B420\S 10L. and MDB350, and N8O pipeline steel for oil casng It also succeeded for the first time in the development of 20Cr
alloyed structural steet used in mechanical parts

In 2009, the stpments of hot-rolled products (induding pickled products, but excluding heavy plates) was 6.952 mifion tons, making up 33.7%
of the Company’s shipments of carbon steel products. The shipments of pipeline steel was 1.044 million tons. taking up a 33.4% share in the domestic
market The sh:pments of high strength steel for engineering machinery was 141,000 tons, accounting for 384% of the domestic market

Heavy plates

Heavy plates include plates for ships. energy. pipelines.and construction. among others, which are used in industries of shipping building. offshore
oil platforms, pressure vessels, oil and natural gas transmssion, power, machinery bridge and building, etc The year of 2009 witnessed the most new
products of heavy plate with the highest grades launched by the Company 1nto the marketplace. A batch of high-end products. such as the newly
developed A517Q rack steel used in oceanic platforms, the extra-thick B610CF quenched and tempered steel. and 12Cr2Mo IR steel for reactor
ntermals. were successively applied in such key projects in China as the first Gereration IV nudlear power staton in the world and hydropower projects,
winning favorable comments from the high-end customers of heavy plates. in addition, the Company actively cooperated with the implementation
of the state’s nuclear power development planning to promote the localized production of steel for nuclear power succeeding in producing steel
plates used for the manufacturing of nuclear power steam generators. and the first batch of the products will be used i the extenson program of
nuclear power stations

11 2009. the shipments of heavy plates was 2 280 milion tons. making up | | 0% of the total shipments of the Company’s carbon steel products
Among it. the shipments of ship plates was 1.357 million tons, taking up a 7.8% share of the domestic market.

Cold-rolled products

Cole-rolled products include plain cold-rolled sheets, galvanzed sheets. electro-galvanzed sheets. color-coated sheets, tin plates, chrome plated
sheets, electric steel. and full hard coils for use in the Industnes of automobile. home appliance. construction, packaging and transformer manufactur-
ng mainly

The autcmotive sheets manufactured by the Company have been widely used in joint ventures and domestic auto makers in the country,
among which, the product quatity of automotive exposed panets. high strength steel and IF steel enjoys remarkable competitive edge in the domestic
market In 2009. the Company further optimized the procuct mix of automotive sheets and ircreased the sales proportion of deep punching steet
and high strength steel products Batch supply has been realized for automotive steel with a tensile strength of 60Kg and the production of 80Kg
grade products was organized as per forward contracts.

The Company’s home appliance sieel has been widely used in the industries of a r conditioner. refr'gerator. washing machine, mcro-oven color
televison, DVD player and computer. In 2009. efforts were made o make the refrigerator panels thnner and wider. covening a!l specificatons of
refngerator panels The electro-galvanized procucts had marched towards the high-end OA market The color-coated products for home appliance
with high surface anc gloss requirements were developed. so that the extreme specifications of color-coated and galvanized products for home
applance were further expanded

The electric steel products are mainly used in the electrx motors, compressors. ano transformers. n 2009. the Company furthered tts efforts
to expand the market of non-orented electrcal steel in DC inverter compressors and wind power generation equipment. ard the annual ship-
ments of high-grade electric steel increasec by 22% y-o-y Criented electncal steel products have been stably supplied 1n oatches to the well-known
domestic transformer enterprises.

The shipments of cold-rolled products in 2009 was 8839 mill on tons making U 42 8% of the total shiprments of the Company’s carbon steel
praducts Among taem the snipmentss of cold-rolled astcmotive sneets, hone appliance steel, high-grade color coatec sheets. and nor-orented
electncal stee! were 3315 milon ters, 2.35 milion tons, 1 32.00C tons. and | 09 m. 1on tons respect.vely, takirg up 50 1%, 37.33;, 54% ard 22 4% of
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the domestic market respectively
Stee! tubes and pipes

The stee! wbes and pipes are of two types: seamless tubes and welded pipes The former includes oil well pipes, high pressure boiler tube and
machining tubes, and the latter includes welded asings. line pipes and structural tbes These products are used in petrochenwcal industry, boiler
building, mechanical processing, geokogy. transportation. and coal mining ndustry. In 2009, confronted with the severe market situation of stee! pipe
products, the Company strengthened strategic cooperation with its users and worked actively 10 explore new cooperation modes in an effort to
win customers with value-added services. During the year. it had cooperated with its customers in developing quick joint products and BT-S13Crl 10
products. After the successful promation in 2008, the Ni-base alloy products won more customers in 2009. The grade of HFW welded line pipe
products was further improved and the shipments of X60 and above high steel grade pipelines made up over 50% of the total shipments of HFW
line pipes. The UOE products covered major customers in the country and their popularity was enhanced.

In 2009, the shipments of steel tubes and pipes reached 1.66 milson tons, making up 80% of the total shipments of carbon steel procucts
Among them, the high pressure boder tubes, oil well pipes. and welded line pipes had a domestic market share of 23.5% 20.2% and 17 8% respectively

Wires and rods

Wire and rod products include steel conds. spring steel wire rods, cold heading steel wire rods, high strength steel strands, bridge cables. and
welding wires, which are widely used in the fiekds of radial tyre manufacturing, automotive components, fasteners, bridge buikling, and mechanical
manufacturing. In 2009, the shipments of bloom steel conds exceeded 80,000 tons and its market share was increasing steadity Progress had been
made in the loxalized production of cokd heading steel wire rods for astomotive use. the qyfinder head bolt for automotive engine (B-SCM435)
passed the certfication by the users and the cylinder head bott for automotive engine (15B25M) was in tral use by the users. An agreement on the
supply of fasteners at the front axde of the chassis (35K) had been signed with the users

In 2009. the shipments of wires and rods was 46 1.000 tons, making up 2 2% of the total shipments of carbon steet products Among them, the
shipments of steel cords was 81,000 tons, taking up 9.5% of the domestic market.

Steel billets

The Company's major products of steel billets include auto axde steel, oxygen bottle steel. die steel and other high value-added products. In
2009. seizing market opportuniiies. the Company went all out to promote the sales of exclusive and leading billet products and accelerated the trial
making and production of its exclusive product. mooring cable steet RS

In 2009. the shipments of steel billets was 466,000 tons, making up 2 2% of the Company's total shipments of carbon steel products.

by Seainless steel

The stain'ess steel produts cover 300, 400 and BN senes cold-rolled and hot-rolled products. includ:ng austenite, ferrte. martensite, ultra
martensite. utrapure ferrite, dual phase steel. uhtra-low-carbon steel, ntrogen stainkess steel, etc . which are widely used in such industres as auto-
mobile. home appliance. solar energy, building decoration. pressure vessel, container. elevators, rail transportation, and metal products In 2009, while
focusing on the demands of the users, the Company continued to develop new products to sausfy the requirement of the customers, substitute
imported products,and lower the use cost of the customers. Duning the year, the Company mainly developed nicked saving stainless steel represented
by BNID/P and BNDDQ. antibactenal stainless steel represented by B430K|. nuclear power steed represented by S135 and $165,and steel for auto
exhaust pipes represented by B436L. B40IM. B441, and B432L The BA2 surface stainless steef was successfully used in mobile phone panels and
B445R was supplied for the construction of the Asan Games Stadium.

tn 2009 the shipments of stainkess steel products was 1.262 million tons, making up 5.6% of the total shipments of the Company's steel products
and taking up a 15.7% share of the domestic market.

{c} Special steel

The special steel collection includes special metallurgical senies, stainless steel series. and construction steel serves, with steel rods, seamless steel
tubes, steel wires, steel pies. steel clasps, steel discs and shaped steel, which are widely used in aviation, aerospace, energy. automobile, raiway. ship
building, machinery, power station, electronic instrument petrochemical industries In 2009, the Company succeeded in making such specially alloyed
sheets a5 2205 and incoloyBOOH and developing such hot extrusion tube blanks as 321 and 690, and realized batch production of these products

I 2009, the total shipments of special steel was 762.000 tons, making up 3 4% of the total shipments of the Company's steel products. Among
them, the shipments of special metallurgical senes was 43.000 tons, taking up | 3% of the domestic market
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The revenues and costs of major pmduds of the Company are as lollows
(10 thousand tons and RMB million)

Procuct Revene  oonsoaon o e e, gross e
Cold-rolled carbon steel 36810 30264 17.78% -324% -624% 263% higher
Hat.rofled carbon steel 28312 24,602 1310% -40B84% -3855% 3.24% lower
Heavy plates 9626 10201 -5.98% -20.12% 1899% 34.84% lower
Steel tubes and pipes 10.366 8942 13.74% .9.44% 548% 361%lower
Stainless steel 14,106 13516 4.18% -580% -1749% 1357% higher
Special steel 6.495 7.345 -13.08% -32.69% -2601% 10.22% lower
Other steel products 5.480 5546 -120% -3425% -3048% 5.48% lower
Toual 1i1,196 100417 9.65% -21.89% -1943% 2.76% lower

Naote: The shipments of steel products of the Company in 2008 included 1.437 mison tons of carbon steel products soid 1o BNA, but dd not nciude
1.89 miion tons of cold-roled products sokt by BNA.

4. Major markets

Sales revenues and cost by geographical regions:

(RMB Million)

Costof Gross margin Change in Change in Change in

Regons Revenue goods sold (%) revenue (% YoY) cost (% YoY) _gross margin (%)

. Domestic market 134,627 122,758 882% -23.64% -2119% 2 84% lower
Foreign market 13955 11699 16.17% 43.14% 42.28% | 24% lower

In 2009, the Company exported 1.727 million tons of -on and stee: products and  the regional distnbution of stee! products is as follows:

Regions 2009 2008
East Asa 47.2% 451%
Southeast Asia 210% 201%
America 125% 160%
Europe and Africa 193% 178%

Toul 1000% 1000%
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5. Major suppliers and customers
In 2009. the Company’s procurement amount from the top five suppliers accounted for 26.9% of the total annuat procurement.

In 2009, the Compary’s sales income from the top five customers accounted for 12.2% of the total business revenve.

6. Changes of asscts structure

As at the of the reported period, the total of the consolidated assets of the Compary reached RMB 201 14 billion, with an increase of RMB
112 billion as compared with that at the beginning of the year The total labdity was RMB 99 .92 billion, RMB 2.26 bil'son less than that at the beginning
of the year The shareholder’s equity reached RMB 101 22 billion, with an increase of RMB 3.38 bilion as compared with that at the beginning of the
yearThe debr-to-asset ratio of the Company was 49 7K a drop of 1.4% as compared with that at the beginning of the year.

{(RMB Million)
Increase/ Labites and Increase/
Assets 2009 2008 Decrease sharehokders' equity 2009 2008 Decrease
Current assets 52666 58759 -6093 Current habilities 70722 72,042 -1.320
Including Inverttory 29462 35645 6,183 "I;'r‘:“‘g short term 24274 24104 170
Receivables 12994 10507 2487 | Non-current lability 29202 30,141 939
Long-term equity nvestment 4207 3850 387 ::":""3 fong:term 5295 14202 8907
Foed assets 115466 109.188 6278 Total kabxlities 99923 102,183 -2.260.
. Totat of habilities and
Intangible asses 7837 5965 1.872 tders’ equty 1or219 97.838 3381
Total assets 201,143 200021 1122 | Total debts and equites 201143 200021 1122
n As the automobike and petroleum industres were recovering gradually, the sales and prices of steel products had been

gettng stabiized and ixreasing In order to promote sales and ensure the safe return of loans, the Company had increased
fts collection of notes from outside and its receivables had nsen by RMB2.17 billion,

) The Company's inventory was RMB 6.18 billion lower than the previous year. mainly because of the Company’s spedal em-
phaszs on the control and management of rational inverttory and its effort to optimize the inventory structure and compress
the occupation of the inventory funds.

3) The Company’s advance collections had increased by RMB | 83 billion as against the previous year. mainty because of the
sales recovery in the second half of the year, the intensified efforts in sales by Baosteel International, and the increase of the
advances on sale as a result of the rise of the proportion of full amount advances collection setdement.

4) The Company's iong-term loans were reduced by RMB8 8.91 bilhon and its bonds payable was increased by RMBI0 28 billion,
mainly because of the Company’s issue of RMB 10 billion worth of medium term notes in an effort to optimize its debt
structure.
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Operation and management expenses

(RMB Million)
hem 2009 2008 Ofference  Difference rate
Sales expense 1459 1.853 -394 -21.3%
Administrative expense 4592 $.676 -1.084 -19.1%

The Company's sales expenses and administrative expenses were reduced by RMB 390 milion and RMB | 08 billion
respectively In 2009. following the requirement of increasing control on cost expenses, the Company combed each of its
cost expenses carefully. abiding by the two principles of not inqurring new expenses and not increasing expenses. In addition,
efforts were made to promote cost control. adjust expense standard and strengthen control over expense budgets. as a
result of which, all the expenses had been lowered dramatically. The expenses under key control in 2009 were reduced by
one third to one half compared with 2008

Financia expenses

(RMB Million)
Item 2009 2008 Ditterence  Difference rate
interest income 34 2157 123 785%
Interest expense 1665 3223 _1558 483%
Exchange gains or losses 4 o 1020 996%
Others 8 54 -6 L103%
Total 1676 2096 420 201%

The Companry’s financial expenses were reduced by RMB420 million compared with the previous year This was mainly
because the Company had staged a senes of measures in 2009 to lower its active debts, such as increasing control over
operating funds and compressing equty-type expenses Meanwhile, the Company had seized the opportunity of interest
reduction to optimeze its debt structure through sequencing the comprehensive financing cost ratio. As a result.its interest
expense was RMB 1.56 billion kower than the previous year At the same time, due to the influence of the 6% drop of the vatue
of RMB against that of the US dollars. the Company’s exchange earnings were RMB 1.02 billion lower than the previous year.

Income tax expense

(RMB Million)
ftem 2009 2008 Ofference  Difference rate
Consolidated pre-tax profit 729 8154 -860 -106%
Consoldated mcome tax expense 1199 1,553 -354 -228%

Effective tax rate 16 4% 19.1% 26% lower

Since the Company’s tax privilege was increased slightly but s total profit was lower than the previous year. so the
actual income tax rate of the Company was dightly lower than 2008

Measure of fair value and impact of its change upon protic

The finandal assets and Rablities in the Company which are measured at their fair values include bonds, funds. stocks and
den’vaweﬁunoalprodm\/\mlemeﬁurvmedaborxiﬁmdor!odwme&n‘donmebnsofhsnmm‘mef&vam
of a dervative financat product, which has no market price. is recognized by the value calculaied and conimed in the written form
by the invoived trading partrer:

(RMB Million)
Asati the As atthe Impact upon
!
tern end 012009 end of 2008 Change ot o the penod
Transactonal fnancial asset 546 1141 -595 -3
Financial assets available for sale 1056 860 196
Transactional financial liabifity 6 12 -6 6

Total - - - -107
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9. Cash flow analysis

The Company’s cash and cash equvalents in 2009 had a net decrease of RMB 145 billion. among which the net cash inflow from operating
actvives was RMB 22.99 billion, the net cash outflow from investment activities was RMB 17.49 bilion and the net cash outflow from financing
activiies was RMB 794 billion.

In 2009 the net cash inflow from operating activities was RMB 23 99 billion, RMB 7.75 billion higher than the previous year.among which Finance

Co’s net cash outflow from tts finanaal activities of lending, borrowing payment and receipt of interests, selling and buyng back financial assets was RM8
421 billion, whike the cash outflow in 2008 was RMB 9.06 billion Without considering the impact of Finance Co., the net cash inflow from operatng
activtties of the Company was RMB 28.20 billion, a growth of RMB 2.9 billion from RMB 25.3 billion in 2008. Duning the report period. confronted
with the global financial crisss and the severe market situation, the Company’s profit was scmewhat reduced. but tts relatively higher depreciation levet
sull brought to # RMB 22.24 biton of eamings before interest and tax (EBITDA). Meanwhile, the Company worked actively to meet with the market
situavon, strengthening the control and management of cperating funds, adopting measures 0 lower stock fund occupation and ensure the tmely
tumn of sales loans. As a result the Company registered a growth in the net cash inflow from operating activitres compared with the previous year

The net cash outfiow from investment activities was RM8 17 49 bilion, RMB 10,11 billion less than in 2008. Without taking into account of
the net cash outflow of RMB 110 million due 1o the short term investment increased by Finance Co. which was net inflow of RMB 1 11 billion in
2008. the net cash outflow for investment in the Company totaled RMB 17 38 billion in 2009, a fall of RMB 11 33 billion from the net cash outflow
of RMB 2871 billion for nvestment in 2008 Thrs was mainly due to the principle adopted by the Company in 2009. characterized by lving within
s means and compressing investment in fixed assets. As a resuit the cash paid to purchase fixed assets. intangible assets, and other long-term assets
was reduced by RMB B.25 bullion than in 2008

The net cash outflow from finanding activities was RMB 7 94 billion, as aganst a cash inflow of RMB 2 7 bilfion in 2008. In 2009, the Company
received RMB 9 91 brllion of cash from issuing medium term notes and returned RMB 9.79 tillion of bank loans, fong-term due of RMB 3 67 billion.
The 1otal net repayment was RMB 355 billion, while the fund recerved from new financing activities in 2008 was RMB |1 64 biliron

10, Technology innovation and R& 1) investment

The Company's R&D investment rate in 2009 was | 75% the sell.ng rate of new products was 19 8% In addition. the Company had applied for
939 patents (among which 384 were invention patents) and licensed 659 patents Two programs, Development of 3 Cr Series O Tubngs and Casings
with Good CO, and H,5 Carrosion Resistant Proper ties and Orifine Testing Technology of High-Speed Cold Rolied Strips, won the second prizes of
National Award for Technological Invention and National Award for Scientific and Technokogical Progress respectively In addttion. in the selection of
the 2002 national metallurgy science and technology award winners, the 9 technological innovation achievementts chosen by the Company for this
event had all won prizes, making the Company the enterprise winning the largest number of prizes Among them, three achievements, Development
and Application of Tin Plates for Two-piece Rop-top Cans, Technclogical Fquipment of the Annealing & Coating Line for Non-Onented Electrical
Steel and Technoiogicel Research and Application of integrated Process Control (BPC; at Baosteel, won the frst prize

The Company conducted extended technological research for automotive sheet products. its uhtra high-strength steel reaized stable pro
duction in upstream processes anc the manufactunng capacity of 1SOKG uttra high-strength automotive sheets reached the world's top level 9
high-effic.ency ron-onented electric steel including BISAM230 and B35AH250 achieved mass production and the successful development of the
grain-onented silkon steei with laser scribing, the top product among the top-grade silicon prodicts, breaking the monopoly of foregn products in
e kigh-performance transformer industry

The 12Cr2Mol R steel plates used in the high temperature gas cooled reactor internals at Huaneng Shidao Bay Nuclear Power Co. Ltd real-
zed batch supply of goods. marking that the Company had entered the field of supplying steel plates meeting the standard of first-grace nuclear
safety The program of making 690U tubes used in nuctear power stations ir China was officially put into procuction. symbolzing that the Company
had become China’s first and the world's fourth enterprise capable of producing tubes used in nuclear power statons The Company succeeded for
the £rst time in China in producing M65 HFW technology casing and its development of the T92 high pressure boiler tuoe used in the preheating
surface of the ultra supercritical boiler filled a gap in China.

Taking susta.nabie developmert as its goal. the Company conducted research in energy conservation, environmental protection and resource
recyching ht made ngorous efforts 1o develop envronmental protection technologies like discharge recuction. research in technologres of desulfurization
technique for sintenng smoke. denigration. and reducing dioxin in fiue gas. forming a dioxin data cotection method suitadle for non-vertical uptakes
of the sintering process. The equipment for desulfurizaton of sintering smove developed independently by the Company had been in operation for
over a year and a'l the indices met the requirements previously set up The BSSF slag processing technology that 100« !0 years of research has realized
the recycling of converter slag, electncal furnace slag and ladle slag 1t also tnggered off the formation of other re'ated industnes.
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11, Performance of controlled subsidiaries and invested entities

) Shanghai Meishan fron & Steel Co., Ltd

As at the end of 2009 the Company had 74.01% shareholding of Shanghai Meshan kon & Steel Co, Ltd With 2
registered capial of RMB6.26 billion, Meishan Steel speciatizes in the production and sales of black metal metallurgy. rofling
processing and sales By the end of 2009, Meishan had a total asset sze of RMB23.84 billion, a net asset of RMBI 1.05 bilkon
and a net yearly loss of RMB 0.45 biltion

() Ningho Baoxin Suwinless Steel Co.. Lid.

As at the end of 2009. the Company had 54% shareholding of Ningbo Baoxin Starnless Steel Co. Ltd With a registered
caprial of RMB2 85 billion. Ningbo Bacxan's business mainly covers the manufacturing and processing of stainless steel sheets
and relevant technical guidance and consultation. By the end of 2009, Ningbo Bacean had a total asset size of RMB6.59 billion
and a net asset of RMB2.18 bilion and reported a net profit of RMBO.24 biifion in 2009.

3) Baosteel-NSC/Arcclor Automotive Steel Sheets Co., Ldd.

As at the end of 2009.the Company owned 50% of Baosteel-NSC/Arcelor Automotve Steel Sheets Co . Ltd (BNA)
With a registered capital of RMB3 bilkon, BNA is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and sales of cokd-rolled steel sheets
and hot-dip and electrolytic galvanuzed steel sheets for automobile and automotive parts and other services related 10 its
principal business. BNA had 1otal asset of RMBS.12 billon and a net asset of RMB3.42 billion and realized a net proft of
RMBO.18 billion as at the end of 2009.

4) Yanaai Lubao Stecl Tubes Co., Led.

As at the end of 2009, the Company owned 79.82% of Yantai Lubao Steel Tubes Co. Ltd. (Lubao Steel Tubes) With a
regrstered capital of RMB 100 million, Lubao Steet Tubes is mainly engaged in the processing and sales of seamiess steel tubes.
fts major products include structural seamless steel tubes. low/medium pressure bosler seamless tubes, seamless pipelines
for transportation of fluids, hydraubc seamiess tubes. as weil as high pressure boiler seamiess tubes, seamiess tubes for oil
pipelines, geological drillings, oil pipelines and oxygen canisters. Lubao Steel Tubes had total asset of RMBI. 16 biflion and a
net asset of RMBO 78 billion and reported a net loss of RMBI 761 million at the end of the reported period

(5) Bavsteel Huangshi Coating & Galvanizng Co., Ld.

As at the end of 2009, the Company had 39.37% shareholding of Baosteel Huangshi Coating & Galvanizing, With a
regrstered capal of USD8 million, Huangshi specalizes in the production and sales of cold-rolled coils. aluranum galvanized
steel sheets. color-coated steel sheets and related coated steel products Huangshi had a total asset size of RMBS20 million,
with a net asset of RMB110 mdbon and reported a net profit of RMBB8 344 million as at the end of 2009.

(6) Shanghai Baosteel International Economic & Teading Co., Lid.

As at the end of 2009.the Company had a full shareholding of Shanghai Baostee! Internat onal Economic &Trading Co
Ltd With a regsstered capital of RMB82 25 billion, Shanghai Baosteel Intemational Economic & Tradng is mainly engaged in the
imports and exports of goods and technology approved by the government. the imports of steel and waste steel, processing
with imported matenials and compensation trade. Shanghai Baosteel international had a total asset size of RMB30 76 billion,
with a net asset of RMB9.22 bdlion. and reported a net profit of RMB1.89 billion in 2009

7) Shanghai Baosight Software Co., Lid.

As at the end of 2009, the Company had 55 5% of shareholding of Shanghai Baosight Software Co . Ltd {"Shanghai
Baosight”) With a registared capital of RMB260 million, Shanghai Baosight is mainly engaged in computer, automation. network
communication and the research. design. development, manufacturng and integration of software and hardware, Shanghai
Baosight had a total asset size of RMB2 01 bilkon, with a net asset of RMBO.98 billion, and reported a net profit of RMB200
million as at the end of 2009
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8) Shanghai Baosteel Chemical Co., Lid.

As at the end of 2009, the Company had 100% of shareholding of Shanghai Baosteel Chemical Co. Ltd. which has a
registered capral of RMBL.1 bilfion and is mainly engaged in the production and sales of raw chemical materials and peod-
ucts,"four techniques” services in chemical industry. and import and export activities of its own products As at the end of
2009. the total asset size of the company reached RMB4.82 billion, with a net asset of RMB 350 bilion, and pocketed a net
profit of RMBO 29 billion.

“ Nantong Baasteel Steel and Iron Co.. Led.

This year the Company additionally invested RMBO043 bition in Nantong Baosteel Steed and ron Co, Ltd alone. mak-
ing fts shareholding of the investee reaching 95.82% With a registered capital of RMBO.621 billon, Nantong Steel is mainly
engaged in production and sales of rebars. round stee! bars, steel sections, and semi-finished products (billet steel and stec
ingots) as well as other steel products and by-products As at the end of 2009, the total asset size of the company reached
RMBI.85 billion, with a net asset of RMBO83 billion and a net loss of RMB9O million was reported

(10) Baosteel Group Finance Co. Ltd.

As at the end of 2009. the Comparyy had 62.1% of sharehoiding of Baosteel Group Finance Co. Ltd With a registered
capital of RMB 05 bilion, Finance Co. is mannly engaged in absorbing deposits from member companies, providing loans to
them.conducting internal financial transfers between them, helping them in terms of borrowing and investment, and engaging
in financial institution deposn_{ and deposits from or to other financal institutions. By 31 December 2009, the scale of the
Company reached RMBS. | B billon, with a total net asset of RMBI 52 brllion and the net profit of RMBO 19 billion was reported

an Yantai Baosteel Steel Tubes Co., Ltd.
As at the end of 2009, the Comparny owned 80% stake of Yantai Baosteel Steel Tubes Co., Ltd. with the rest owned by
Lubao Steel Tubes With a registered capital of RMB2 billion. Yantai Baosteel Steel Tubes 1s mainly engaged in manufactunng,
processng and sales of steel pipes, their complimentary products and by-products. k 256 provides technical consuftation
services on steel tube rolling technology. storage. shipping and exporting services. The company at present is still under
construction. Yantai Baosteel Steel Tubes had total asset of RMB1.94 billion and a net asset of RMBI 93 billion and reported
a net loss of RMB60 million at the end of the reported period

12) Oveseus subsidiaries
By the end of 2009, the Company had overseas subsidiary companies in USA, Japan. Germary, Singapore, and Hong
Kong These overseas subsidiaries extended the Company’s sales and purchase networks, and played a critical role in enhanc-
ing the Company’s international competitiveness
12, Special purpase entities controlled

None
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(1D The Company’s Development in Prospect
1. Trend of development of the steel industry and the competitive market

(1) ‘Trend of development of the steel industry

Though the global economy has bottomed out and stabiized, there still exasts a lot of uncertainties on its way of recovery. The economic
prospect of China is relatively opmustic. The Chinese government will continue to implement pro-active fiscal policies and moderately easy monetary
polxcies and will maintain the continuity and stability of the policies. k will strive to realize a stable. relatively rapid economic and social development
centenng around the theme of “ensuring growth, adjusting st-uctures, promating reforms, and benefiting the people”

The world’s steel industry will maintain a sow growth and the recovery of the steel market will be a dow and complicated process full of
fluctuations As the economy continues to recover, the consumption demand for steel, especialy by the downstream automobile and home appliance

industries. will resume growth and the cost increase in the steel industry will finally prop up the price of raw steel matenials. Cost competitiveness
will remain the fundamental factor of the steel industry.

In the long run. since industralization and urbanization will support the continuous growth of China’s demand for iron and steel, and the heavy
chemical industry wall continue to dominate China’s industrialzation, China’s steel industry st has space for development Due 1o the current imbal-
ance of supply and demand in China’s steel industry, the strain of the upstream resources, the export restrctions, the government's adjustment of
the economi structure. and the change of the mode of economic growth in the years to come. China’s steel industry will face adjustment in the
growth mode and structure, which will be a challenge as well as an opportunity.

2) The competitive market the Company faces

Competition in China’s steel industry manifests the foowing characteristics (3) There is an overall production capacty surplus in the steel
industry and the strategic restructuring of the steel industry is being accelerated, gradualy forming a pattern of the co-existence of trans-regional
enterprises and local enterprise groups (b) With the product mex adjustment and technological advances of iron and steel enterprises. competition
n homogeneity of high-end products has become increasingy fiercer and this s especially true of high-grade sheets (c) The cost pressure of the
enterprrses becomes increasingly heavier and iron and steel enterprises have entered an era of “meager profit”. (d) Iron and steel enterprises have
intensified their efforts to invest in resources overseas and enhancing resource supply will become normal in the industry. (€) tron and steel enter-
prises will focus more on the combination of scale. technology and cost. seeking sustainable and comprehensive competitive advantages This trend
of competition will have a farreaching impact on the pattern of market competition the Company faces.

The Company stil maintains its advantageous postion in the field of high-end products In terms of carbon steel, its shares in such strategic
products as cold-rofted automotive sheet, high-grade colorcoated sheet, high-strength stee! for engineering machinery, and steel for home appliances
i China’s domestic market reached 50.1%, 54%, 3849, 37.3% respectively and those i high-end D! tin plate and K plate accounted to 100% and
67.7% respectively In terms of stainless steel, t maintained the second postion In production and sate on the domestic market against a depressing
market and an emvironment with increasingly fiercer competition and the stainless steel sector had a domestic market share of 15.7% In terms of
special steel, the special metallurgy long products occupred | 3% of the domestic market.
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2. Future opportunities and challenges

1) Opportunities

The stabiizing macro-economy provides a fundamentat prerequisite for China’s stable market demand for iron and steel In 2010, China will
continue 10 implement pro-active fiscal poficies and moderately easy monetary pokdes and fully improve its package plan and polky measures
designed 10 address the impact of the global financial anisis. its investment in foced assets and consumption wifl maintain a refatively high growth and
the iron and steel demands and the steel industry are expected 10 keep a slow but steady growth

China will continue to promote the change of the development mode and the continuity of the policy on maintaining a stable and relatively
quick economic develop will help the d pment of domestic large and medium-szed iron and steel emterprises The government will continue
1o enhance and improve macro<control and will take ensuning growth. expanding domestic demands, and adjusting the structure as the fundamen-
1al method to meet with environmental changes and realize sustainable development The measures to stimulate consumption, such as providing
subsidy payment to home appliances and automobiles sold to the countryside and changing old home applances for new ones, will continue to be
implemented For the steel industry, the principle of merging and reorganzation, total amount ¢ontrol and structure adjustment will continue to be
implemented and effort will be made to give ful play 1o the role of large enterprise groups and cuftvate large and super-farge iron and steel groups
with Intemational competrtiveness

The low carbon economy and environmental operation pose a severe challenge for the steel industry, but at the same time provide a new
opportunity for the development of the large and medium-sized iron and steel enterprises that have implemented the sustainable development
of environmental operation. Meeting climate and environmental changes and energy and resource securtty have become a topic of world concemn
Devebpedcmneshaveukmmedevdopmeﬂoflwalboneconomyandnewenergyisal\ewbmzkthmugh for economuc growth and in
the future, low carbon economy and technology will become an important aspect of national competitveness Hf the iron and steel enterprises can
seuze this major opportunity of world industrial adjustment and the rule of development in the new ear, they will stand at an advantageous position
in this new industrial revolution

@) Future challenges

Restricted by the rapkl change of the extemal environment. the Company is faced with the adjustment in its onginal mode and means of
competition. There exists an overall production capacrty surplus in China’s steel industry and competrtion in homogeneity of high-end products
has become ingreasngly fiercer. Affected by the price of resources and other factors. the cost of the iron and steel enterprises is stll at a high level

As international competstion is becoming fiercer. the Company faces severe challenges in expanding intermnational management The recovenng
process of ths round of world economic crisis might be difficult and long, the international trade protectionism is stepping up. and the increase of
the demand of iron and steet on the imernational market is generally skower than on the domestk market Therefore, the domestic steel industry
shows a tendency of gradually opening for foreign capitals

As the upstream and downstream industries are constantly integrated, the Company 1s confronted with double attacks, which further increase
ts pressure The high degree of international monopoty of wron ore supply and the financialuzation of some raw iron and stees materials pose a threat
W the safe supply of strategic resources of iron and steel enterprises The fluctuation of the exchange rate of the US dollars will possibly bring about
uncontrollable price risks for iron and steel raw materials The implementation of China’s plan 10 adjust and revitalize some of its industries further
integrates the downstream industries of iron and steel

Confronted with 2 strain in resources and the development of a kow carbon economy, the Compary faces higher pressures in energy conser
vation and emssion reduction. ft might also be threatened with carbon tax and carbon tanfl. in the years to come. carbon emission reduction might
become one of the biggest pressures of China's iron and steel enterprises.

(3) Strategy for future development

Along with the rapid changes of domestic and overseas environment for development, the Company is confronted with the adpsstment of
s development strategy and the change of its development mode. k wil continue to take as s mission "becoming a world<lass iron and steel
manufacturer and committing to providing value-added products and service to the society”, “integrity, cooperation, innovation. and the pursutt of the
maximzed value of the enterpnse” as its core valve, and “becoming the world's most competitive steeimaker” as its strategic goal. In addrion, t will
adhere to the principe of steadfast B 1t and stable d and follow a road of sustainable development that focused on intension. On
the course of Baosteel's second pioneening, the Company will taka the scientific outlook on development and environmental operation as the guide.,
impiement the intensional development strategy that takes the enhancement and redevelopment of its core competitiveness, product developmer,
technologxal innovation, management innovation. system capactty, and socal responsibility as its strategic focus, and the mode of management and
control technological innavation, ability cultivation. environmental operation. cost control, talent devetopment.and risk management as s major measure

The Company wil combine such methads as product Gevelopment (quality and performance), the enhancement of product service and the
expansion of production nuix to constitute product differentiation mix and integration step by step




PUCLIC e = 249

NV LD 0002008000000 008 0808000080008 0080000800000 000000000750800200000200000020 0800000020000 000700000000000.

LISLILI LSS 1 LIS LS SIS L LS ILS LSS SIS LIPS SIS SIS LSS SIS LSS LSS SS SIS SIS0 7SS 7SS S 7
3. Plan for capital needs and use and sources of capital

(1) Plan tur capital needs and use
The Company is expected to make RMBI9.55 biion fed assets investment in 2010, which will mainly be used for a
batch of projects to be continued, such as the construction of the subsequent oriented silicon steel project, Luoging Step 2
project of the Medium and Heavy Plate Branch. and the relocation project of Lubao Steel Tube Co. Ltd and adjustment of
its product mix. it wil also invest in projects of technical revamping,

After purchasing the relevant assets of the Luoying project of Baosteel Group Shanghai Pudong Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.
the Company will according to the agreement, pay RMB2 87 bilkion in 2010 to Baosteel Group Shanghai Pudong Iron &
Steel Co. Ltd. for the purchase

) Sources of capital
The above-mentioned capital will come from the Company’s own capital and finanging.

4 Risks and counter-measures

m Major risks

The basis for the recovery and growth of the world economy and Chinese economy 15 stll not solid and there are
stll uncertanties and risks

The slow growth of domastc steel demands and the relatively sustained and rapid growth of iron and steel capacrty
bring a new impact on the supply and demand balance of iron and steel. China's export of steel products will continue to
be suffocsted Meanwhile, the acceleration of the expected inflation and the gradual withdrawal of the economy stmutating
policies desgned to fight inflation may bring a new impact on the steel industry

Carbon emission reduction and arbon tanff may become a realistic pressure for the Company.

(2) Counter-measures
In line with the changes in domestic and overall environment for development, the Company will conduct strategic
adjustment, change its development mode and implement a new round of development planning under the gurdance of
the scientfic outlook on development and the notion of environmental operation. ft will adhere 10 the road of intentional
development to fully improve its core competitiveness

On the basis of its construction of the sk management system in recent years, the Company will improve its system
of holding regular meetings on nsk and risk report, promote its own abilty and the abiity of other units to fight against
risks. and construct the mechanism of promoting key risk management programs i will manage well | | key risk programs
includ ng market risks.

Based on a new round of planning, the Company will conduct work centering around three themes, production
management, cost improvement, management reform and system ability enhancement it will take market as its orsentation
of development, strengthen the dynamic interaction between production and sale, optmize the intemal flow, and increase
operational efficiency. in an effort to create the best performance in the industry in China against a market environment
that is most competitive
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(V)

Operational Plan for 2010

The year 2010 s a year of opportuntties and challenges. In ths year. the Company. centering around a new round of strategic
planning, will continue to promote product management, consolidate the achievements made in 2009 through reversed trans-
mission of the pressure, upgrade system competitiveness through management reform, fully launch work on environmental
operation and strive to realize sustainable development. For this purpose, the Company puts forward the new requirement
of "product management and cost improvement” to adapt itself to new competitions, and the overall management gudeline
of “improving ability, conducting ervironmental operation and forging new competitive advantages”. h aims to realize a total
operating income of RMB170 billion, make the proportion of its exclusive products reach 9% fully complete its contracts.
and make its comprehensive energy consumption per ton of steel less than 746 kilogram of standard coal

In 2010, the iron and steel production is planned to reach 2349 and 26.39 million tons respectively: the sale of products is
planned to amount to 24.99 million tons the total operating income and the cost is planned to reach RMBI170 bdlion and
148.1 billion respectively. As the bass for the word's economic recovery s stil weak and the export prices of such major
materiaks as iron ore. coke. coal. staintess steel raw matenials, and ferroalloy are still uncertain, the management of the Com-
pany will handle this stuation positively and implement the measures in great detail, o as to maintain the best performance
in China against a frercely competitive market environment.

Priority work to be done

tn 2010, the Company will promote 16 key programs in 3 aspects centering around product management, cost improve-
ment. management reform and system capacity k wil put at the first place adaptation to market changes respond to the
changes of customer demands quiddy. strengthen the interaction among supply. production. and sales, further optmize the
nternal process. mprove the operational effidency of the organization. and strive to maintain and enhance its comprehensive
competitve advantages The programs are as follows

*  Promoting the mutual matena! supply of sheet manufacturing and optimizing the product moc

+  Enhancing the inventory management of iron and steel products;

*  Promoting the production, sale. and research of the 6 major types of products including automotive sheet and
heavy plate:

*  Lowering the cost of hot metal;

+  Continuing to optimize the naintenance mode and controlling maintenance cost.

+ Continuing to optimize the subcontracted services and lowening the cost of production subcontracting:

+  Controlling expenses on sales, administrative and financial expenses.

*  Lowenng the use cost of enargy.

. Promoting all-round cost improvernent benchmarking,

. Promoting the synergy amang the production, supply and research of matenials, equipments and components;

+  Controliing the investment in construction programs and increasing the management and control ability in the
whole process of investment,

. Innovating the management mechanism cf research and development and promoting technotogical advances
i different areas:

¢ Giving full play to the synergetic advantages and improving the competitiveness of the cold-rolled products of
Mersteel:

. Concentrating the product quality improvement and upgrading the manufacturing capactty,

+  Promoting work on environmental operaton;

*  Increasing the capability to fight against risks
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) Investments

1. Investment in fixed assets

In 2009, the Compary invested RMB 1 7.76 tthon in fixed assets.

[4)) Fund-rising projects

The project of stambess steel cokd-rolled stainfess stnp was started on 26, April, 2006 and was expected to be fully completed in August. 2010.

2) Non-fundraising projects

A senes of projects have been completed and put o production on schedule, Icluding the overhaul of No | fumace. the cominuous annealing/
galvanizing piot unit proyect. the continuous annealing ine newly added to 2030 cokd rofing plant. and the structural adjustment and technical renovation
of 1422 hot-rolled products of Mersteel. Some key projects are proceeding smoothly according to the plan, inckuding steckel mill project of the special
steel unit.the project of the technial renovaton of ttanium-nicket special metal sheet of the special stee! unit. the relocation project of Lubao Steel Tube
Co..t1d and adjustment of s product mix. and Luoging Step 2 prorect of the medium & heavy plate bracnch A senes of key projects have started to be
constructed, like the progect of technical revamping & upgrading of the product mix and technologecal equipment at Mersteel.

) Completed projects having been put into operation
The overhaul of No.l furnace: lgnited and put nto production in February, 2009, this project can ensure the corstant and stable supply of high-

quality hot metal and 3t the same time, the independent integration innovation of the project has ako hetped to form the localization of furnace production
unigue of Baosteel and the technology of rapid overhaul

The conunuous annealing/galvantzing pilot unit project Completed and put into operabon in March, 2009, this project symbolizes that Baostee!
has possessed the production capacity of 100kg uitra high-strength galvanized sheets and 150kg uitra hegh-strength galvanzed sheets for the first tme.
Meanwhile, through independent integration innovation. the project has atso helped to form the unique Baosteel technology of pertydrous fastcooting
and water quenching fast-cooling used for the production of ukra high-strength steel

The contnuous annealing line newly added to 2030 cold rofling plant Completed and put 1to operaton in December, 2009, this project has had
a capactty to produce 860.000 tors of high-grade automotive sheets annually and has formed the post-treatment capacty of home appliance sheets. R is
of great signricance 10 the product upgrading of Baosteel's second phase cold-rolled production line

The project of structwral adjustment of 1422 hot-rolled products of Melsteel: Completed and put imo operaton n October: 2009, this project
15 the £rst large-scale sheet cold rolling project constructed in the mode of open and independent integrabon innovavon. it is a successful example of
Chuna's localzation of the metallurgical equipment.

b Continued proiects

Spechal steed steckel hot rolling mill project: it aims at bulding a set of steckel mulls, which, aer completon, wdl produce 282,000 tons of steel
sheets and coils annwally, among which will be 26.000 tons of ttarum and ttanium alloy, high-temperature alloy. Ni-base cormosion-resist alloy. and preci-
sion akoy. The proect was started in September, 2007 and the sheet production line was already completed. The ¢oil production line was planned to be
completed in February, 2010.

The project of the technical renovaton of dtanlum-nicke! special metal sheet of the special steel unit r aims to buid a production \.ne for
ttanum-nicke! special metal sheets, which wall produce 75.000 tons of special steel cold-rolled sheets and coils and 24,000 tons of hot-rolled pckied coils
every year The progect is now at the stage of equipment installabon and is planned to be completed in February, 2010

The project of the production line of hot-extruded steel tubes of the special steel unic: t ams to buikd 2 new hot-extruded steel tube line and
s matching equipment whxch wall produce 23,000 tons of seamiess stee! tubes, including Ni-base alloy, ttantum and ttaruum alloy, duplex stainless steel
The p-oject was started on 9, January, 2008 and s planned to be completed in March. 2010

Luojing Step 2 project of the medium and heavy plate branch: it 2ims to butd the Corex process of iron-malking, converter steel-making slabcasung,
oxygen production. CCPP power generation, etc.. among which. the No. 3 continuous caster project was started on 28, February, 2008, the Corex process of
iron-making on 20.Apnl, 2008, and the oxygen producing project on 19, June, 2008 The continuous casber project is planned to be completed in May. 2011

The retocation project of Lubao Steel Tube Co. Ltd and adjustment of Its product mix: i a:s 1o build a production line for hot continuous rolling
tubes and for tube processing, and a temper recoiling line for high-pressure borler tubes, which will produce 500000 tors of high-end seamiess steel tube
products. inchuding hugh-grade steel, cormosion resistant pipes for ol use only, high-pressure boiler tubes. The first phase of the project. the production hne
for tube processing, was compieted in December. 2009 and the second phase. the production Iine for hot continuous rofiing tubes is under construction
and s olaned to be completed in Apnl. 2011

() Newly-started programs

The project of technical revamping & upgrading of the product mix and technological equipment at Melstee!: Productions lines of newly bult
furnaces, continuous casting, and hot rofing have been butit The project s planned 10 be fully completed in May 2012
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2. Other investments
The Company completed RMB 2.32 bilhon worth of equity ivestment programs in 2009.

3 Management and use of finnds raised

[4)] Funds raised

Approved by China Securtties Regulatory Commession (No. {2008]739 document), the Comparnty rssued RMB 10 bilkon converuble bonds featur-
g the separation between warrents and bonds on 20th june, 2008. which was invested in the No S cold-rofled mll and its coordinated equipments.
cold-rolled stainess steel stp project. the purchase of the relevant assets of the Luojing project of Baosteel Group Shanghai Pudong ron and Steel Co.,
Ltd. and the adjustment of debt structure. ht raised RIMS 9.94 bilion of funds after the RMB 60 million of underwriting fee and recommendation fee was
deducted. The funds were deposited into a special account for rarsed funds on 26th June, 2008

) Management of funds raised

(2)The replacement of the funds rassed As was disdosed in the application document rssued by the Company i July, 2008, the Company replaced
the RMB8.12 bilion of funds raised by rself from January 10 June. 2008 and the funds were transferred from the special account for raised funds 1o the
Company’s general account.

(b)Day-today funds rarsed are paxd through a specul account According to the relevant stpulabons in the Company’s Method of Raised Funds
Management, the unit of use shak gather last months actual use of the funds in INvestment programs earty in this month, which shall be transferred from
the special account for rarsed funds to the Company’s general account after examination and approval by the relevant head of the fnancial department
of the untt of Use and the head of the financial department of the Company.

(3) Use of funds raised
(RMB million)

Total raised funds used in the present year 383
Total raised funds used 9940

Total funds rased 9,940

Project of commitment Changes  Fund to be Fund As scheduled Expecied proft  Actual proft

made nvested invested
No.5 cold-rofled mill and s sflated No  Abow2200 2062 Yes RR 1335% RMB 1.836 bilion
equipments
Cold-rolling stainless steel strip project No About 1,500 1509 Yes IRR: 11.2% Not applicable
Purchasing the relevant assets of
the Luojing project of Shanghai Pudong No 2869 286% Yes IRR 12.54% -RMB 0.998billion
Iron and Steel Co. Ltd
Adjustment of debt structure No 3500 3500 Yes Not applicable  Not applicable
Total - 9940 Yes - -

The Medium & Heavy Plate Luging Project witnessed a loss of RMB 0.998 billion in the period, mainly as a re-

Statement of sult of the shrunk market demand in downstream ship building industry and continuously falling prices of heavy

not meetng the planned plates due o the global financial aisis. In addrtion, the cost per unft increased as the Company operated with a
. low-lozd economic model. As the demand in downstream ship building industry recovers and the COREX step
progress and expected proft 2 project is competed in 2010. effort will be made 1o improve the profitabilty of heavy plates with help of cost
control and optimized product structure

Statement of the reason(s) and
procedure(s) of project change
Future use and direction of
remaining fund

None

None

) General assessment of the storage and use management of raised funds

In December 2007, the Company passed Method of Raised Funds Management - an effort to regulate the stcrage. use, management and supervi-
sion of the rarsed funds. At the end of 2009. ts auddting department audried the use and storage of the funds raised, which showed that the storage and
actual use of the funds raised conformed to the regulasons stipulated in Method of Rarsed Funds Management and the wse of the funds raised conformed
to what was disclosed 1n the Statement of Rasing Caprial Through Share.
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(V) Explanatory Notes from Auditing Firm

No explanatory notes were provided by the firm in the penod reported

(VI) Change in Accounting Estimare

The Company has adjusted the useful life of some of the machines and equipment for stainless stee! products from 9.15 years to |5 years on
the basis of results of on-site evaluations. The adjustment has resulted in a rise of RMB 049 billion in the pre-tax proft in the period, while the net
profit attriutable to the parent company increased by RMB 0.32 bifion in 2009

(V1) Routine Work of Board of Directors

1 Mectings and resolutions in the period reported
Public announcements of the Board were all posted in China Securities News, Shanghar Securtties News and Sacurities Times

(1) The sixteenth meeting of the Third Board of Directors was held by means of wvoting by correspondence in February 2009, and the public
announcement of resolutions was posted in the above newspapers dated on 14 February 2009.

(2)  The seventeenth meeting of the Third Board of Directors was held in 26-27 March 2009, and the public announcement of resolutions was
posted in the above newspapers dated on 28 March 2009

(3)  The eighteenth meeting of the Third Board of Directors and the first meeting of the Fourth Board of Directors were held in 28 April 2009,
and the public announcement of resolutions was posted in the abave newspapers dated on 29 Apnil 2009

(4)  The second meeting of the Fourth Board of Directors was held in 28 August 2009, and the public announcement of resolutions was posted
in the above newspapers dated on 29 August 2009.

(5)  The third meeting of the Fourth Board of Directors was held in 29 October 2009. and the public announcement of resolutions was posted
in the above newspapers dated on 30 October 2009.

2 Board of Dircctors” implementation of resolutions of General Shareholders’ Merting

m Mediun tenm note and shore term financiog bill

As approved by the first temporary shareholders’ general meeting held on 2 March 2009, the acting directors were enttled to manage issues
conceming the issuing of the medium term notes and the short term financing bills (Temporary 2009-002 Notwce). National Assocation of Finanal
Market Insttutional Investors (NAFMIT) approved the regrstration of RMBI0 bilion medium term note in its “Notce of Acceptance of Registration™
(NAFMII[2009] MTN47) and “Nctice of Acceptance of Registration” (NAFMII[2009] CP47).The note and the bill can be issued within the following
two years. The notice was published by the Company on 25 May 2009 for issuing the first tranche of three-year medium note and three-year fnanc-
wng bill worth RMB 5 billion. respectivety. with a coupon rate of 2.66% The fund was 10 be recerved by 26 May 2009 for bank loans and operating
expenses. The second tranche, with the same worth, coupon rate and maturity, was issued on 30 June 2009, the fund was received in the next day
and used for operating expenses,

2) Implementation of profit appropriation

According 10 the resolutions approved at the 2008 shareholders’ General Meeting held on 28 Apnil 2009 the propased profit appropration
for 2008 as follows: All shareholders were entitled to a cash dividend of RMB 1.80 per 10 share (taxes included), for a total dmdend payout of RM3
3.15 billion. Details of the dividend distnbution were published in the China Securities News, Shanghai Securities News and Secunties Times of 9 June
2005. The final share registration date for the drvidend entitlement was |2 june 2009. with the ex-dvdend date set at 15 June 2009 and divdend
payout cate on 19 June 2009. All shareholders, as registered with the China Securtties Depostory and Clearing Co. Ltd's Shanghai Branck after the
market closed on |2 June 2009, would be entitled to such cash dividends
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3. Performance of Auditing Committee under Board of Directors

The “Procedure Rules of Auditing Committee of the Board of Directors” was drafted and revised, in which the structure of the commitiee.
the term of office. duties, and procedures are speafied. The first edition of the document was approved by the ninth meeting of the First Board of
Durectors on | August 2002. and it was later revised on the second meeting of the third Board on 26 August 2006 and the eleventh meeting of the
third Board on 26 March 2008 for improvement.

The “Procedures for Work of Audtting Commttee of Board of Directors with Regard 1o Annual Reports” was approved on the eleventh
meetng of the third Board on 26 March 2008

Constructive suggesuons and opinions about the finance and internal control were put forward on the four meetings hetd by the Committee
in the reported penod

The'"Procedures for Work of Audting Commettee of Board of Directors with Regard to Annual Reports” was strictly followed by the Com-
mittee in revewing the 2009 Annual Report. acting as an inspector to the Company's financial information. imternal control and other performance

The Auditing Cormnittee had examined the 2009 auditing plan and the financial statements compiled by the Company and issued its written
suggestions for the documents before Emst & Young Huz Ming the accounting firm, started the audting work The Auditing Committee notced the
changes in the items of the report as against the previous year and required that the Company 10 interpret the drastc changes of sgnricant events
in the 2009 annual report so that investors could have a better understanding of the finandial situaton of the Company.

Later. the auditing members issued a letter to Emst & Young, urging the firm to complete the auditing according to the time mit stipulated in
the 2009 annual audting plan: the committee examined the accounting report again and offered their opinions in written form, after they reviewed
Emst & Young's initia! suggestions for the auditing work Meanwhée, the committee evaluated the auditors performance and the quality of their audit-
ing work The audrtors formed a book of suggestions for the problems found in the auditing, which helps the Company to standardize #ts operation.

The Auditing Committee discussed and reviewed the proposal to hire Detortte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. as the independent auditor for the
penod of 2010 and agreed to submit it to the Board of Directors for examination
4. Performance of Remuneration & Appraisal Committee

The Committee met three times in the period to profoundly drscuss “Methods of Performance Evaluation of Senior Management” and the
evaluation indicators and operation target for the President with the outcome of constructive suggestions and opinions.

The Committee met cn 23 March 2010 1o make a full drscussion and examation of the Report on the Annual Remuneration of Directors,
Supervisors, and Senior Management, Proposal on the Performance Assessment and Remuneration of Senior Management in 2009. and Proposal on
the Performance Assessment Target and Goal of Senior Management for 2010 and agreed to submi the abowve report and proposals to the Board

of Directors for examination.
5. Pecformance of Strategic & Risk Management Commitice under Boaed of Directors

The Committee met on 29 March 2010 10 make a full discussion and examinaton of “Proposal on All-round Risk Management Report in
2009" and ag-eed to submit the proposal to the Board of Directors for examination
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(IX) Proposed Profic Appropriation

The net proft of the Company in 2009 totaled RMB 5076.871.428 16 With the addtion of the RMB 17,397.044 206.32 of undistributed
profit at the beginning of the perod and deduction of the RMB3,152.160.000.00 of cash dividend payment for 2008, the distributable profit at the
end of 2009 was RMB 19 321,755,634 48

For the Company’s long-term sustainable development and the concepuon of ‘maximizing sharehokders'value™ the Board of Directors proposes
the following profit appropriating scheme for the year of 2009:
t Ten per cemt of the net profit, or RMBS507.687.142 82. shall be allocated as statutory uming; reserves.
2 Ten per cent of the net proft. or RMBS07 687,142 82. shall be allocated as drscretonary eamings reserves:

3 0 accordance with the demand for fund of the Company in 2010, the Board of Directors has proposed a cash dividend payout of RMB2 0
per 10 shares (pre-tax), with tctal of dvidend payable of RMB 3.502.400.000.00

4 Other modeis of d.stribution, such as capitalizing of common reserves, would not be adopted

5 Dividend-net profit ratios from 2006 to 2009

Irom 2009 2008 2007 2006
Cash dividend per share (pre-tax) (RMB) 020 018 03 035
Total cash dividend (RMB 100 malion) Y 352 6129 6129
Net profit for legal person ;senled in financial statements (RMB 100 mullion) 50.77 5077 9948 13339
Net proft attnbutable 10 parent company in consolidated statements (RMB 100 millon) S8 16 6849 1272 1300
Cash dwidend against net profit for legal person - 6899%  6209%  6161% 4595
Cash dividend against net profit attnbutable to parent company in consolidated statements 6022% 4602% 48.25% 47013

Note: The cash divdend for 2009 s the proposed profit appropraton by the Board of Directors, which s sub,ect 1o approval a1 the 2008 General
Sharehokder's Meet.g.

2006 2007 2008 2009 2006 2007 2008 2009
Cash Dividend Per Share (RMB) Cash Dwidend Against Net Profit for Legal Person (%)
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(X) Regulations on Report and Submitting Information to the Outside

The fourth meeting of the fourth Board of Directors approved the revised edition of Methods of Information Drsclosure Management pursuant
1o the requirements set out in CSRC Document [2009] No.34 Announcement on the 2009 Annual Reports of Listed Firms and Associated Tasks,
n which regulations on report and submitting information to outside are included

According to the regulations on report and submitting information to outside, eflorts shoukd be made to strengthen the management of
reporting and submitting information to the outside by emphasizing the procedures of the whote process

No information from any unit of the Company shall be submttted. following relevant legal procedures, 10 outsiders earlier than the date on
which the Company publishes the brief of its performance The brief shall not cortain less nformation than that provided for outside users.

In case that information should be submitted to the outsids in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, an earfier remainder shall be
submitted to the outsde unit regarding the fiing of the knower and the obligation 1o keep confidential the information

(XI)  Others

None
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h Summary of Board of Supervisors’ Performance
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In the reported period. the Board of Supervisors labored 10 ensure that the Company’s operations, financial aydrung. and
performance by the directors and semor managers are carried out n strict complance with the rules and regulations set in
the Company Law and the Charter of the Company The Board of Superwvisors attended the seventeenth and eighteenth
meetings of the third Board and the first three meetings of the fourth Board to superwise the convening of the Board meetings
and ensure that voting procedures on resolutons conform to relevant laws regulations and the Charter of the Company.

The Board of Supervisors was convened for five meetings in the reported penod and the resolutions were published n
ume.The details of the meetings by the Board of Supervisors are listed as follows.

On 27 March. 2009. the Board of Supervisors neld fts fourteenth meetng of the third Board in Shanghar and approved the
{ollowing proposals

«  Proposal for R;a-election of Board of Supervisors for the Company.

. Board of Superwvisors’ Report,

. Review of Board of Directors'* Proposal for Prowisions for Impairment Losses of Assets of the Company as at the
end of 2008"

*  Review of the 2008 Annual Report and ts Abstract™;

*  Review of the “Report of the Final Annual Accounts of the Company at the End of 2008"

*  Review of the proposal of “Sustamnabiiity Report {2008) of the Company”

* Review of the proposal of “Seif-Evatuation Report on the Internal Control by the Board of Directors of the Company”

. Review of the proposal of Board of Directors’ Proposal of the "2008 Annual Profit Appropnaton Proposal of the
Company”.

. Review of the proposal of "Ad,ustment to the usefut life of some of the machines and equipment in Stainless Steel
Branch and Ningbo Baoxn™

. Review of Board of Directors’ Proposal of “Related Transactions of the Company in 2009 .

. Review of Boa~d of Directors’ Proposal of the * 2009 Budget of the Company™;

*  Review of the Board of Directors’ Proposal 1o re-hire Ernst & Young Hua Ming as the auditor of the Company

* Review of the Board of Durectors’ Proposal of "2008 8oard of Directors’ Repert”

On 28 April, 2009, the Board of Supervisors held its fieenth meeting of the thind Board in Shanghai and approved the fol-

lowing proposals

*+ Review of Board of Directors Proposal of the "Proposal for Provisions for Impairment Losses of Assets of the Company
as at the End of the First Quarter of 2009™;

*  Review of the “First Quarter Report of 2009

On 28 April. 2009. the fourth Board of Supervisors held its first meeting in Shanghai and approved the following proposals
. Proposal to elect the Chairperson of the fourth Board of Superwisors

On 28 August 2009. the fourth Board of Superwisors held its second meeting in Shangha and approved the following pro-
posals

. Review of 30ard of Directors’ Proposal of the "Proposal for Provisions for Impairment Losses cf Assets of the Company
a5 at the End of the First Ha!f of 2009

*  Review of the "2009 Imerim Report and lts Abstract”.

*  Review of the Board of Directors’ proposal to revise the *Methods of Performance Evaluation of Senior Management®
of the Company and the proposal 1o adjust the evaluation incexes and targets of the President

On 29 October 2009, the fourth Board of Supervisors held its third meeting in Shanghar and approved the following pro-

posals

* Review of 30ard of Directors' "Proposal for Provsions ‘or Imparment Losses of Assets of the Compary as at the
Trird Quarter of 2009™,

*  Review of the " Frst Quarter Report of 2009”
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(I} Opinions on the Company’s Operations

The Company has a well-structured interal control system and has followed the proper legal proceedings in making
s decssions and formulating ts policies h has complied strictly with retevant rules and laws, and regulated the Company’s
operations accordingly Board directors and senior managers have behaved responsibly and assiduously in performing their
duties and carrying out the resolutions passed by the board and the shareholders alike None of the directors or senior
managers was found to have breached any rules. laws and regutations of the country and the Charter of the Company or
conducted any deed that has harmed the Company’s interest

I~ the reported penod no breach of commtment 10 information disclosure has been discovered

(II)  Opinions on the Company’s Financial Status

The Company was in good and solid financial health in the reported period s financial management and internal
control system have been further strengthened. its 2009 financial statements are a true reflection of the financial condition
and operating results of the Company in all major aspects, and the standard, unqualified op:nion issued by Ernst &Young Hua
Ming in the auditors’ repert 15 fair and objective. No malpractices were discovered with regard to their professional duties

(V) Opinions on the Company’s Use of Fund from the Latest Financing Program

The fund from the latest financing program was used exactly in the way 3s the Company promised and no change
was found in the actual projects

V) Opinions on the Company’s Acquisitions and Sales of Assets

No insider trading or deeds that harmed the shareholders' interests or resutted in loss of Company’s assets were
discovered in acqussiton and purchasing activities of the Company in the reported period

(VI}  Opinions on Related Party Transactions of the Company

In the penod reported. the related party transactions were carried out according to Related Party Transacticn
Management Methods of Baoshar iron & Steel Co. [ td at fair prces and withour any damage ‘o the Company’s benefits
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)] Legal Proceedings

The Company was not nvolved in any matenial Itigation or arbitration proceedings in the period reported

(Ih Bankruptcies and Re-structuring

No bankruptcies and re-structuring were expenenced r the reported period

(1} Shares Held of other Listed Companies and Financial Enterprises

1. Investment in securities

(Share/RMB million)

Initial Book value Weighting
Type Code Name nvestment Shareholdng asatendof  asatendof Profit
cost period penod (%)
| Stock 600089 TBEA 2936 1.346,084 3204 507 030
"7 Bond 058012 05BEIH-ZY(5) 1000 100,000 1035 171 o3
3 Stock 601088 Shenhua Energy " 893 271000 944 153 042
Other bonds held as at the end of period ° 53488 53490 9169
Profit In bonds sokd - - 200
Total $83.36 586.73 _ i00% 1.64
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2 Stacks held of other listed companies
(RMB million)
\ntal y Change in
ic:;k Stock name mveslrggr;’i Iélloc:irzz% ‘:i:iﬁj gl' Profit sl’:]rj:\yo:ge.;\se Accounting type ::3:;
period perod
601699 Luan Emvironmental Energy 505 044% 30577 16960 12566 Fnancal assets avatable for sle e
o when ssued
600508 Shanghai Energy 555 077% 14015 7183 3656 Fnancal assets avadable for sate J;:::ujd
600997  Kaluan Corporation 351 0.28% 11748 6279 5151 Financil assets available for sale Investmert
when nsued
601001  Datong Coal ndustry 257 031% 8098 46.10 3341 Financial assets avalable for sale nvestment
when rssued
601111 Ar China 3570 003% 3868 298 Financal assets avallable for sale Purtr:a_se o
600030 CITIC Securtues 068 002% 3366 029 298 Financal assets svalsble for sale  Purchase
600000 SPDBank 31483 002% 3243 B 240 Financal assets avalable for sale  Purchase
601899 Zyn Mining 3276 002% 3150 1365 “126 Financial assets avalable for sae Purchase
600999 China Merchants S«u;mes 3035 003% 2878 -1.58  Financial assets avalable for sale Purchase h
989  China Shipbuildng industry 2614 005% 2766 152 hnancal assets avalable for sale Purchase
601666 Pingmer Coal Mining 2760 006% 2692 067 Financal assets avallable for sale Purchase
601618 Metallrgeal Corporaton of Chra 1263 001% 1263 - Financul assets avalable for sdle  Purchase
002122 Tunrma Bearng 996  005% 927 070 Financil assets avalable for sdle  Purchase
601299 Chma CNR N 769 002% é48 079 Financul assets ava:'\ablé ;L;r sale Purchase
300002 Uhr;xpox;er Software 416 0GC6% 755 339 Financal assets avalable for sale Purchase
000002 SherghenWarke 1182 001% 649 148 534 Financal assets avalable for sale Purchase
300028 Geeya Technology 205 0% 564 359 Financal assets avalable for sdle  Purchase
“3?)663") Kabao Pharmaceutcal 424 0.10% 42“4 - Financual assets avalabte for sale Purchase
600048 Baoh Estate 45 ooo% 385 232 065 Financal assets avalable for sle  Purchase
002304 Yanghe Brewery 200 001% 381 180 Financial assets avalable for sale Purchase
00001 TGOOD Eecre 213 oo 378 165 Financal assets avalable for sle  Purchase
300003 Lepu Medical Device 205 002% 362 157 Financal assets avanlabi; ;o( sale
300008 Bmwa; ;:1:nne Engneenng 196 0.14% 359 163 Financial assets avallable for sale
300006 Lummy Pharmaceutical 158 010% 321 TTTTI62 Frnancal assets avalable for sale
300004 Nanfang Ventlator 187 009% 320 - 133 Franca! assets avalable for sale
30001C  Lanxum Technokogy 1.66 009% 301 1.36 Financa assets available for sale Purchase
002309 Zhongh Seience nd Technology 209 003% 278 069 Financat assets avalable for sale  Purchase
300026 Chase Sun Pharmaceutcal 181 006% 275 094 Financial assets avallable for sale Purchase
W}ZO Hainan Strart Swipoing 176 003% 269 092 Financial assets available for sale Purchase
300034 Csn-Gaona 132 006% 234 101 Finanaal assets available for sale Purchase
300009 Anke B.otechnology 093 CO6% 232 140 Financial assets available for sale Purchase
ml Dinghan Technokogy 116 00ex: 219 103 Financial assets available for sa'e Purchase
300023 Bode Energy Ecuipment 109 009% 215 16 Finarcial assets available for sa'e  Purchase
}4000!8 Zhongyuan Huadan 142 007% 215 072 Fnancal assets available for sa'e Purchase
300031 Boton 8elt 138 007% 205 - 067 Financal assets available for sale Purchase
601139 Shenzhen Gas 079 001% 191 o 112 Financal assets avaiable for sale  Purchase
002317 Zhongsheng Pharmaceutical 147 003% 190 042 Financal assets avanlat;.e_for sale Purchase
300015 Aer Eye Hospital 188 080 Finarcial assets available for sale Purcnase
-3(,:':‘02: ..S_u-;un Robot 188 084 Ffinaraal assets availlable for sale Pmc'na_sé -
300007 Fanwer Elccvo.:nc_; 186 ’ b72 Finar:cia: :s:els avallable for g;- Purchase
300019 Gubao Science & “echnology 0%  cosy 183 T Y issets avalable f .

Financu: assets available for sale

Purchase
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g Equi Book Charge in

i pernod penod
300042 Netac Technotogy 182 007% 182 - - Financual assets avalable for sale Purchase
002308 Vtron Technologres 134 003% 180 - 045  Financal assets available for sale  Purchase
300035 Zhongke Electnc 1.28 006% 173 - 044 Financal assets available for sale Purchase

300012 Centre Tesung 103 005% 172 - 069 Financal assets_avallable for sale Purthas_e__
002333 Lopsking Alumnum 167 00s% 167 } . Financial assets avallable for sale  Purchase
52_307 Bencn Road & Bridge 052 003% I.g - 113 Fu.nanoal assets available for saie Purchase
000928 Sinosteel pin Carbon " 030 0072 | 65_— - 067 Financral assets avarlable for sale Purchase
002302 \;es(_éons\r-\::uon 077 004% 1.63 - 086 Financial assets avalable for sale Purchase
002303 MYS T 130 003% 162 } 032 Fnancal assets avalable for sale  Purchase
002300 Sun Cable 100 004x  1e2 } 062 Financal assets avalable for sale  Purchase
300017 Wangsu Scence & Technology T090 oo 160 . 070 Financal assets avaiable for ssle  Purchase
002306 Xiangeqing B 0ss oo 56 - 067 Financal assets avalable for sale  Parchase
002315 Focus Technology 090 002% 148 - 058 Financial assets available for sale Purchase
7300025 Huaxng Chuangre 058 007% 135 ) 078 Fmnancal assets avalable for sale  Purchase
002325 Hongtao Decoration 109 003% T 025 Financal assets avalable for sale  Purchase
300014 EVE Energy 059  004% 129 - 070 Financial assets avalable for sale  Purchase
300005 Toread Outdoor Products 0s8 004% 1.26 - 068 Fmancial asct_s avalable for sale Purchase
002301 Come Stabonery 071 oo 126 . 054 Financial assets avadable for sale | Purchase
300013 Xunreng Logstics o 059 o0t 123 . 065 Financial assets avaable for sale  Purchase
002305 Langold Real Estate 073 00l% 116 - 043 Financial assets avalable for sale  Purchase
~0023I6 keybndge Communications 068 003% 112 - 044 Financial assets avallable for sale Purchase
002323 Zhonglan Flectrc 073 00%% 098 } 026 Financal assets avalable for sale  Purchase
300036 Supermap Software o 048 003% 093 . 046 Financal assets avalable for sale  Purchase

002322 Ligong Online Monrlo;ng 060 002% 093 - 033 Fman‘cnal assets available for sale Purchase
002332 Xianu Pharmaceutical 080 003% 080 - - Financial assets available for sale Purchase
002331 Wantong Technology 072 cosx 072 . T Financal assets avalable for sde Purchase
002313 Sunsea Telecommuncatons 043 ooxs . on . 028 Financial assets avalable o sale  Purchase

Toul 34750 101567 36510 28692

Note: The securtties are mainly hek1 by Finance Co., a subskdiary of the Company
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3. Transactions of shares of other listed companies
(Ten thousand share/RMB million)

Sharehokding as a: Shares traded Shareholding as at

Name the beginning of the period nthe penod  the end of the penod Cost Proft
Stocks 411385 422080
Shares bought 705569 48494
Shares sokd 694875 49246
(IV)  Significant Acquisitions, Sales and Consolidations .
No significant ac . sales and s occurred in the penod
|
V) Progress of “Share Incentive Scheme™ and lts Impacr on the Financial Status and Performance of the Company

None i
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Significant Related Party Transactions

Day-today related party transactions

The major related partes of the Company are legal persons contolled by the Baosteel group The transactions conducted between the
Company and its major related parties in the reported penod included:

Purchases and sales of products and purchases of services

(RMB million)
Affliates Transactions Prc.ng Amount
Baosteel Development Corp Sales of iron and stee) products, audliary matenals, etc. Market 2038
Baosteel Metat Co., Ltd Sales of iron and steel products, etc Market 950
Baosteel Resource Co., Ltd Sales of raw matenals and fuels Market 2097
Baosteel Group Shanghai Meishan Iron & Steel  Sales of iron and steel products, raw matenals and fuels. awaliary
Market

Co.ltd matenals. etc. 951
Sub-total of sales 6036
Baosteel Development Comp. Purchase of raw matenals and fuels, awdliary matenals, etc Market 1079
‘é‘:‘t:‘ Group Shanghat Meishan ron & Steet Purchase of raw matenials and fueks. awdliary materials, etc. Market 1245
Shanghai Baosteel Engineering & Technological Purchase of equi @ Market
Co.ltd 1316
Baosteel Group Bay Iron and Stee! Co. Ltd Purchase of iron and steel products Market 1185
Baostee! Rescurce Co, Ltd, Purchase of raw matenials and fuels Market 5032
Bao-kland Trading Co. Ltd Purchase of raw matenals and fuels Market 2475
Sub-total of puchase 12332

Comprehensive logrstics, project installation services, equipment
Baosteel Development Corp. examination & maintenance serace, storage and transportation Negotiation

services, etc 1.154

Comprehensive logsstcs. project instaliation services, equipment ex-
Baosteel Group Snanghai No.| Stedl Co. Lt aminaton & maintenance service, and transportation services, etc. Negotiauon 484
Baosteel Group Shanghai Meishan Iron & Steel  Comprehensive logistxcs. project istaflation services, equipment ex- Negotiation
Co.ltd Amination & maintenance service. and transportation services, etc N 831
Baosteel industrial Examination Corp Services 1n examingbons, ec. Negotiation 553
Shanghar Baosteel Equipment Bamvnation & Project installation services and equipment examination & mainte- Negotiation
Maintenance Co. Ld nance service. etc. i 768
Sub-wal of services 3790

The sales above accounted for 4.1% of the Company’s revenue from its principal businesses in the reported period; purchases and services

recerved took up 9.2% and 2.8%, respectively. of the Company’s cost for its principal businesses in the reported period

All transactions were settled either by cash or by check.

Financial seevices

Baosteel Group Finance Co. Ltd (hereafter refermed 1o as Finance Co). a national non-bank financial company with the Baostee! Group (with
35 18% of the shares) and the Company (with 62.1% of the shares). was established for central management of the funds of the Company so as to
raise the efficiency of fund use. it provides a comprehensive service of internal accounung settlement. fund deposited and loan, short term caprtal
financing. nvestment and fund-raising for companies within group level

In the period reported. Finance Co provided., at the RMB interest rate as set by the People’s Bank of China, a total of RMB 591 bilion koan to
the Group and tts controlied companies, with outstanding koan of 2.74 billion and a total interest ncome of RMB 110 million. At the same time. t
absorbed a total depasit of RMB 6 98 billion of the balance funds at the end of the penod of the Group and its controlled comipanies, paying a total

of interest of RMB 100 milton

In the penod reported. Finance Co discounted a total of RMB 089 b.lion o controlled companies of the Group at the discount rate set by
the Peoples 8ark of China with the closing balance of RM8 0.87 brlion and a total sum of interests of RMB 2.760 mlion
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(3) Necessity and continuity of related party transactions

Based on the mutual maximum profits and operation eficiency, the Company and the related parties choose each other so that both can make -
the best of each other’s advantages in professional collaboration, each becoming more competitive. The related transactions between the Company
and the affiliated parties are expected to continve

2. Transfer of assets or equity

No assets and equity were transferred in the penod

3. Affiliaced external investments with atliliated parties

No affikated external investments with affillated parties were conducted in the reported period.

4. Claims, liabiliries and guarantees between the company and the related parties

Claims and labitities arise from day-to-day related party operations and transactions that result in trade receivables and payables, as wel as from
long-term dues to the holding company for acquisition of assets and from entrusted loans to the Company fom Finance Co as entrusted by the Group

The C. was not involved in any guaranteeing activity in the reported period.
-ompany ny g pe

5 Fund approprations and their solutions

The Company was not involved in any non-operating fund appropriation in the reported peniod

(VI1})  Major Contracts and Performance
1. Major trusieeships, contracts or leases
The Company was not involved in any major trusteeships contracts or leases in the reported penod

2. Major guarantees

The Company was not involved in any major guarantee in the reported penod

3. Major entrusted cash management

The Company was not involved in any major entrusted cash management in the reported period




IX.  Significant Events

(VIIl} Convertible Bonds with Attached Warrants

Convertible bonds with attached warrants

Approved by China Securiues Regulatory Commission (CSRC) in the document of {2008)793, the Company issued. on 20 june 2008,
RMB 10 biion convertible bonds with attached warrants with par value of RMB 100 per bond and a duration of six years. The coupon rate
was 0.8% On 30 June 2008, 100.000.000 corporate bonds (a worth of RMB 10 billion) and 1.600.000.000 warrants were separated.

Approved by Shanghai Stock Exchange in the document numbered [2008)81.a total of RMB 10 billion of corporate bond after separa-
ton were #sted in Shanghai Stock Exchange on 4 July 2008 The bond was abbreviated as "08 Baosteel Bond™ with the code of 126016 The
duration is from 4 july 2008 to 19 June 2014 and they wil be repaid in the five trading day after the maturity date.

Approved by Shanghai Stock Exchange in the document numberad [2008]1 1. a total of 1.600.000,000 warrants after separation were
Iisted in Shanghai Stock Exchange on 4 |uly 2008 The bond was abbreviated as “"Baosteel CWBI " with the code of 580024. The duration is

from 4 July 2008 to 3 July 2010 and the exercising penod in the trading days from 28 June to 3 July. 2010. during which the warrants are to
cease trading

Shareholdings of 08 Baosteel Bond

Shareholders as at the end of the peniod 15053

Top ten holders of 08 Baosteel Bond

s e
China Paafk Insurance (Group) Co., Ltd 1.625 192,000 16.25%
New China Insurance Co. Ltd . 1,447.333.000 1447%
Ping An Insurance (Group) Co, Ltd 919.471,000 2 19%
Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of China, Ltd —Tradtion—Ordinary Products 628.521.000 629%
Ping An Life Insurance Company of China , Ltd 568350000 ' 568%
National Social Security Fund Combination 305 499.158.000 499%
E‘:::::a?;::‘:;nds New China Life Insurance Co. Ltd —Universal Life nsurance—Deyi 384,108,000 384%
China Petroleum finance Co, Ltd 377.073.000 377%
China Paafic Lde Insurance Co. Ltd 367,160,000 367%
China Petroleum finance Co., Ltd. 316.977.000 3i7%

Adjustments 10 conversion price of Baosteel CWBI

R
gﬁm‘ﬁ; of f;\gr’::lies?on Disclosedon  Drsciosed by ad?:l::is conver-
pnce SION pnce
China Securtties News, Shanghai Securitics News,
15 June 2009 RMB 12.16 1S June 2009 Securtties Times and the official website of Shanghai  Ex-dividend

Stock Exchange (http/Aiwww.sse comcn)

Newly adjusted exercise price as at the

end of the RMB 1216

The profitabiity. assets status and credit rating of Baosteel Group, the guarantee of the Company’s “08 Baostee! Bond”, have not experienced
signiicant changes

In the reported period. the asset-liability ratio was 48.3%, an indication of a stable capital structure.In the coming years, the Company would
repay s due bonds by its own capita and debt financing




)

I‘T'U-J._P flLE 232

o //////t/l//////////////////t///l////////l/////////l////////////////I//I///i/I//I//////////////l/

M A L L L L R A A L R A A L A A R R R 2 A R 2 P V2V VR P2 N e 2 222

(IX)  Commitments of Companies or Sharcholder with Over 59 Stake in and to Reported Period

1. Baosteel Group undertook the following two commitments as at the establishment of the Company:

(O] All related party transactions will be carned out in complance with relevant laws. regulaions and rules set by the authorities
and will not damage the legitimate interest of the Company nor s minority shareholders

Q) Baosteel Group will not directly participate in any business activity or directly own an interest in any business activty or
entity that poses a competition to the Company However, Baosteel Group can maintain its existing interest in other com-
pany (companies). as well as manage and develop thrs business which may or may not be in competition with the Company
Baosteel Group akso promuses that, when Baosteel Group or any of its subsidiaries is about to engage in any new business,
investment or research that may pose a possible competition to the Company, the Company enjoys the priortty of being
the first to develop or acquire the said business. investment or research

These commitments will stay in force under two condrtions:
(a) The Company is hsted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and domestic stock exchange of China; and
(b} Baosteel Group owns no less than 30% of the Company’s issued shares.

In addition.on |3 june 2001.and 6 September 2002, Baosteel Group further pledged to uphold these two commitments
after the Company’s acquisition of the assets related to construction of its phase 3 project and all remaining assets thereof.

These commitments were published on China Securtties News. Shanghai Securities News and Securtties Times on
21 june 2001 and |2 September 2002 and the official website of Shanghai Stock Exchange (http/fwww sse com ) as well

2. Commitments made in issuance prospectus by Baosteel Group
(] The Company has the right to acquire the holding assets and businesses which may be i competition with the Company;
@) The Company shall enjoy the priority of similar busness opportunities acquired by Baosteel Group, who will not invest until

Baoshan Iron and Steel gives up the commerdal opportunties;

3) Baosteel Group 15 commated 1o helping dealing with the relevant ptopety certificates for bulkdings and lands after the
Company completed the mergers and acquisitions;

These commitments were publicty posted on official website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (httpJ/iwww sse comcn) in
Apni 2005

3. Commitments Baosteet Group undertook about new factory project of Handan Group

Baostee! Group sought the Company’s opinion of investment on the New Factory Project of Handan Group on 7
August 2007 in written form of “Solicit Letter abowt Ivestment on the New Factory Project of Handan Group™ and "Com.
mitments about New Factory Project of Handan Group™. The Company agreed that Baosteel Group could invest on the
project, but retamed that right to purchase the equity of the joint venture.

Baosteel Group promise that  would invest on the New Factory Project of Handan Group if the Company has deaded
1o give up opportunity and that it would transfer s share of equity of the joint venture at a fair price in line with relative laws,

regulations, and other documents and on basis of asset estmating results as conducted by an individual estimating organization

These commitments stay in force under two conditions (a) the company is listed at a stock exchange and (b) Baosteel
Group owns no less than 30% of the company’s issued shares.

The aforementioned commitments were published on China Securities News, Shangha; Securities News and Securites
Times and the offical website of Shanghai Stock Exchange (http/iwww.sse comcn) of 6 September 2007

In the report period. Baosteei Group had completely withdrawn its investment from Hanbao Iron & Steel Co . Ltd
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4. Commitments Baosteel Group underntook about Luojing Land

Baosteel Group Shanghai Pudong Steel and Iron Co. Ltd. (hereafter, Pudong Steel), a wholly owned subsidary of
Baosteel Group. was oflering its construction-in-progress and related fixed assets in Luojing (hereafter, Lucjing Assets), which
the Company intended to purchase. Luoging Assets cover an area of 3.228 mdiion m? for which Pudong Steel has paid some
initial expenses. but not the land transfer expense. When the assets are to be purchased. the unpaid land transfer expense
and the Pudong Steel’s intial @enses as on the asset-assessing day (30 September 2007), RMB 2 8 billion, as preliminardy
estmated, need to be paid. Baosteel Group promises

(1) f the Company intends to purchase the Lucjing assts. Baostee] Group and/or Pudong Stedl would help the Com-
pany go over the transfer procedures and other matters as required by the Company.

{2) in the event of the total actual expense exceeding RMB 2.8 billion for the procedures. Baosteel Group or Pudong
Steel shall fully cover the exceeding amount in time, by means of paying the Company or government (as 1s required)

The aforementioned commitments were published on China Securities News, Shanghai Secunties News and Securities
Times and the official website of Shanghai Stock Exchange (http /iwwaw sse comen) of 12 December 2007

5. Supplementary commitments about the land involved in 2005 share capital increase of the Company
Baosteel Group promised in written form dated |1 April 2008 concerning the land use right and change in ts area

As regards to the prece of land whose use right has been suspended due to change in Baoshan land planning program,
Baosteel Group shall fully cover the possible kosses (including, but not limited to, the cost of the land and the interests involved,
removing expenses. and loss due to dosing down) due 10 loss of the land use right within 30 days

Baosteel Group shall try its best to help when the Company applies to relevant official departments for the use right
of the land in question or when 1t uses the land in the manner it is used now

These commitments were included in Prospectus of Convertible Bonds with Attached Warrants publicty posted on
offical webste of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (http/Awwwise.comen) in June 18, 2008,

Baostee! Group did not commet any breach of the aforementioned commitments to the Comparty in the penod covered

6. Commitments the Company undertook about land use right in 2005

(1) The Company imtended to purchase. by the fund from the five billion share issued in 2005, from Baosteel Group
23 pieces of state-allocated land and 14 preces of empty land. After the transactions completed. the Company would go
over the procedures of changing the state-allocated land into state-owned transferable land and changing the empty land
into state-owned transferable land with no brmrts in rght.

(2) The Company and related companies that came under control of the Company after the acquisttion shall negotiate
in an active manner with relevant administrative offices to go over the procedures. within 18 months after the land acquis-
tion, of the certificates for using the state-owned fand or for owning the estates of the aforementioned pieces of tand The
land users of the aforementioned Land shall be registered in the Company or related companies that came under control
of the Company after the acquistion

The transfer procedures for a piece of land in Baoshan District covering an area of 581 000m2, which involved in the
in 2005 increase in share capital, has not completed at the end of the reported penod The Company was informed that
the piece had been planned by Shanghai Municipal Planning Bureau as part of the “land for landscapes™ due to change in the
overall plan.Yet, up to the date of disclosure of the Report, the Company has not been informed that the land shoukd not
be used in the way it is used. Furthermore. on the land are workshops of bright steel plant and axygen generating plant of
Special Steel Branch of the Company rather than key operating workshops of the branch
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Engagement and/or Termination of Auditor's Service

The services of the accounting firm Emst & Young Hua Ming were retained by the Company in reported year The compensa-
tion paid to the accounting firm, which has served the Company for the past ten years,is detailed below:

1 The approach to and amount of the compensation payable to the accounting firm for services rendered to the Company is
determined and subject to approval at the Shareholders’ Meeting. Meanwhile. compensation for auditing ser vices rendered
to the Board of Directors is determined by the Board. Independent directors gave their unanimous consent to the com-
pensation for the accounting firm

2 As approved by 2008 Annual Shareholders' Meeting the auditing fees payable to Emst & Young Hua Ming in 2008 was RMB325
milion. The auditing fees for the year of 2008 were RMB 325 million. Expenses and costs related to auditing service and
advanced by the accounting firm are rembursed and bome by the Company In addntion. the Company paid Ernst & Young
Hua Ming RMB 150,000 for its service in the internal control auditing work. which does not influence the independence of
the audrtors in their work for the Company, as the Board of Directors bebeves

3 Signatory audrtors to the Company’s 2008 Financial Statements are Zhou Youme: and Gu Xiaogang, while Yang jun and Gu
Xiaogang signed on the previous years audrory report ’

(XD

Neither the Company, nor its dircctors, supervisors, senior manager, shareholder or actual controller was the
subject of an investigation by the China Securities Regulatory Commission in the report period, neither were
they punished or penalized or cited by the commission, or apenly denounced by any administrative department

or Shanghai Stock Exchange for any wrongdoing.
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{XII)  Index of Important Announcements

ltem K Ursclosure date

1 Oocumentation for the First Temporary General Shareholders' Meeting of Baoshan ron & Steel Co. Ltd. in 2009 2009-2-14
2 Announcement of the Resolutions of the Sixteenth Meeting of Third Board of Directors and Announcement of 2009.2-14

the First Termporary General Shareholders’ Meeung of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd in 2009 -
3 Legal Opinion on the First Temporary General Shareholders’ Meeting in 2009 2009-3-3
4 Announcement of the Resolutions of the First Temporary General Shareholders’ Meeting in 2009 2009-3.3
S Notce of Online Publication of the Performance of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd in the Year of 2008 2009-3-26
[ Notice of Related Party Transactions in 2009 of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co, Ltd 2009-3-28
7 Announcement of the Rasolutions of the Fourteenth Meeting of Third Board of Supervisors of Baoshan kron & Steel Co. Ltd . 2009-3-28
8 Special Remarks on Baosteel Funds Ocaupied by Controlting Sharehciders and Related Parties & Guararttees Provided by 2009.3.28

Baostee! for Controlling Shareholder and ks Enterprises
9 Annual Report of Baoshan lron & Steel Co. Ltd 2009-3-28
10 Abstract of the Annual Report of Baoshan kon & Steel Co., Ltd 2009-3-28
m Announcement of the Resolutions of the Seventeenth Meeting of Third Board of Directors and Anncuncement of the 2008 2009.3.28

General Shareholders Meeting of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd.
12 Annual Report of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. (revised edttion) 2009-4-1
13 Further Issues Concerning 2008 General Shureholders’ Meeting of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd 2009-4-8
14 Matenals for 2008 General Shareholders’ Meeting of Baoshan kron & Steel Co. Ltd. 2009-4-10
1S Notice of Online Publication of the Performance of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. in the First Quarter of 2009 2009-4-25
16 Announcement of the Resotions of the First Mecting of the Fourth Board of Directors of Baoshan iron & Steel Co, Ltd. 2009-4-29
17 Announcement of the Resolutions of the First Meeting of the Fourth Board of Supervisors of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd 20094-29
18 Legal opinion on 2008 General Shareholders’ Meeting of Baoshan lron & Steel Co. Ltd B 2009-4-29
19 Announcement of the Rasolutions of the 2008 General Shareholder's Meeting of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd 2009-4-29
20 First Quarter Report of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co, Ltd 2009-4-29
21 Announcement of the Resolutions of the Eghteenth Meeting of the Third Board cf Directors of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd 2009-4-29
22 Announcement of the Resolutions of the fifteenth Meeting of the Third Board of Superwisors of Baoshan kon & Steel Co . Ltd, 2009-4-29
23 Remunder of Successful Registration of Medium-term and Short-term Notes 2009-5-18
24 Notice of Results of the First Medium Term Notes in 2009 by Baoshan iron & Steel Co. Ltd 2009-6-1
5 Announcement of Implementing 2008 Annual Dradends Appropriation of Baoshan [ron & Steel Co. Ltd 2009-6-9
26 Notie of Divdend Distribution of 08 Baosteel Bond by Baoshan Iron & Steel Co, Ltd h 2009 2009-6-15
27 Notce of Icome Tax for QFll in Dividend Distnbution for Baostee! Share in 2008 by Baoshan tron & Steet Ca., Ltd 2009-6-17
28 Notice of income Tax for QFIl in Dividend Distribution for 08 Baosteel Bond in 2008 by Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd 2009-6-17
29 Corporate Charter of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd (2009 revised edition) 2009-7-3
30 Note of Onkne Publication of the Performance of Baoshan kron & Stedl Co. Ltd in the first Ha!f of 2009 2009-8.28
31 Announcement of the Resolutions of the Second Meeting of the Fourth 8card of Directors of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd 2009-8-29
32 Announcement of the Resolutions of the Second Meeting of the Fourth Board of Supervisors of Bioshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. 2009-8-29
33 Intedm Report of Baoshan kon & Steel Co. Ltd 2009-829
34 Abstract of the Interim Report of Baoshan Iron & Stee! Co. Ltd. 2009-8-29
35 Announcement of the Resalutions of the Third Meeting of the Fourth Board of Supervisors of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd 2009-10-30
36 Notxe of Onfine Publication of the Performance of 8aoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd in the Thind Quarter of 2009 2009-10-30
37 Third Quarter Report of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd 2009-10-30

38 Announcement of the Resolutions of the Thixd Meeting of the Fourth Board of Directors of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd 2009-:0-30
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(X1) Other Significant Matters

No significant event occurred in 2009

(XIV) Significant Matters in Controlled Companies

No significant event occurred in any of 1ts controlled aompany in 2009
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Auditor’ s Report

Emst & Young Hua Ming
(2010) Audit No. 60428378 BO1
To the sharcholders of Baoshan Iron & Stee! Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Baoshan ron & Steel Company Limited (the “Company™) and the
consolidated balance sheet of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) as of 31 December

2009 and the related income of changes in cquity and cash flow statement of the Company for the year
ended. the consolidated income t, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement of
Baosteel Group for the year ended, and a y of'signifi accounting policics and other explanatory notes.

1. Management’s Responsibility (or the Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair p ion of thesc fi ial n accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprise. This responsibility includes: (i) designing. implementing and main-
taining internal control relevant to the prep and fair p| ion of fi | that are free from matenal

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; (ii) sclecting and applying appropnate accounting policics; and (iii) making
accounting estimates that are ble in the ci

2. Auditor’s Responsibility
Our respansibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements bascd on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing for Certified Public Accountants, Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain bl whether the fi ial
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedurcs to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

The g dures selected depend on the auditor’s judg luding the of the risks of matenal

of the fi ial whether due to fraud or error. In making those nsk assessments. the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair p on of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are approprate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropr of accounting policies
used and the rcasonableness of accounting esti made by r as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the financial statements.
We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion

3. Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and of
Buosteel Group as of 31 December 2009, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in ac-

cordance with the Accounting Siandards for Business Enterprises and China Ac ing Svstem for B Enmterprises
Ernst & Young Hua Ming Certified Public Accountants
Beijing. P.R. China Registered in PR.China

Zhou Youmei

Gu Xiaogang

March 31,2009
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. Z‘Z/f

Consolidated Balance Sheet
31 December 2009

RMB
Assets Noie 5 3 Dece?&%r 3 Deca;&;
CURRENT ASSETS
Monetary funds ) 555827615291 685160437454
Funds lent to other finandial institutions [03) - -
Trading financal assets 3 54637706835 - 1.141,165,15885
Notes receivable 4) 6674.251,784.05 45011 I2,I4;§8—
Trade receivable ©) 5662872715 526919088179
Payment in advance ) 4.099.365.175.79 4,600807.31348
Interests receivable @ 5702089 26 14759478 14
Other receivables 8 753857.108.28 736,214,627 64
Inventories &) 29.462.17138342 35.644.590875.74
Toual current assets 52.666.28804121 58.759.444,854 56
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Loans gramed and cash advances (10} 4.13227699330 1907.753.092 68
Available-for-sale financial assets (n 1056020521 34 860,182,984 66
Longterm equty investment 12 4207.114.19586 384950462127
Investment real estates (13) 13053531725 136.754.792.01
Fixed assets (14) 115.465901991.79 109.187.870.660 63
Construction-in-progress (15) 13.746,832,781.17 1627590935826
Project matertals (16) 669.829.86301 1.114501.06725
Imangible assets un 7.837.110.155 00 596455156191
Long-term deferred expenses (8 3453855427 5772330883
Deferred income tax assets 19 1.054.669.754 72 177948035348
Other non-current assets (20) 121.664.327 46 127460272 60
Teta! non-current assets : 148,475.494.47517 141.261.69207358
TOTAL ASSETS 201.142.782.51638 200021.136928.14

The accompanying noies on pages 75 to 155 constitute an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheet coninued)
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31 December 2009
e
Labiiies & Shareholders' Equity Note § 31 December 2009 31 Decemnber 2008
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowings Q2 24274429.78595 24,104,126921 47
f:::i(‘:‘“‘“m deposits and deposits from or to ather finandial @3 701861067845 9.256,840,186.79
B Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions. (4) 34,141,00000 -
Transaction hiabilities (25) 6.285,02495% 11,500444.73
Finandial assets sold for repurchase 294,000.000.00
Notes payable (26) 4.855,355.992.37 4251242.72568
Trade payable [e)] 18,582.613.44064 1862167564372
Receipts in advance (28) 11,045412,382%5 9.219,197.16195
Accrued payrol 29) 1.595.130,198.30 1.716,327,357.44
Taxes payable (30 (94637073337) (1799.441 23731)
T nterests payable a1 24045654577 35573032099
Dividends payable (32) 16,683.769.64 19.951,672.62
Other payables (33) 1.016.238.301.24 1.140848514.14
Curmrent portion of non-current Labilities (1) 298296001444 4.050.420.366.30
Current portion of long-term amount due to holding company . 800,000.000.00
Total current liabilities 70.721.946.40093 7204242007852
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term borrowings (35) 529493213433 14201.884.772.41
Bonds payable (36) 18.067.156.259.62 7.785.029.71821
Long-term payabies 37) 5092440941 36 754473199448
Special payables 38) 11091433145 1887892071
Deferred income tax labifites 19 265.472,181.46 431.657.612.06
T Other noncurrent liabies ) 37061949107 15884645373
Total non-current labrities 2920153533929 30.141.029.471.60
Total kabitrues 99.923481,74022 102.183.449.550.12
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
T Caprtal stock (40) 17.512,000.00000 17,51 2,000.000.00
Capital reserve “n 37.314.308.49873 36.806,692.59598
Special reserve (42) 8.314,857.96
Surplus reserve {43) 17.827.770.213.00 16.812.395.927 36
Und stnbuted profits (44) 22583995111 4t 20,935,302,00395
Foreign currency translaton difference (109.491.17896) (109.520,780 55)
Equity attributable to the parent company 95.136,897.502.14 91.956.869.746.74
Minority interest (45) 6,082403.274 02 5.880.817,631.28
Total shareholders’ equrty 101.219,300.776.16 97.837.687.378.02
TOTAL OF LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 201.142782516 38 200021.136928 14
The accompanying notes on pages 75 10155 constitute an integral pant of the Financial Statements.
The financial statements on pages 60 to 155 were singed by
Statutory representative: Xu Lejiang Financial controlier: Chen Ying Chief accountant: Wu Kunzong
I
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co, Lid.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
For the Year Ended 31 December 2009
RMB
Note 5 2009 2008
| TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 14852526899944  20063800856503
Including Business income (46) 148326.36390994 200331,77381959
T interest ncome 19690623765 29674867320
Income from service fees and commissions 199885185 948607224
I TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 142.117550906 22 193014426451 59
Including Business cost (46) 134.332.458,30502 175893827.31650
Interest expense 12399121126 382883449 36
Expenses on service fees and commussions 21199159 10521850
Sales tax and surcharge “n 56963429213 1219.135.766 64
Sales expense 1.456.74094842 185251962001
T Administrative expense 4592.1 1509069 567634581076
T Firanoal expense “8) 1675503461 87 209574111757
Loss on the asset imparment/(reversal) “49) (635.104.39476) 589386815225
Add Net (loss)/gain from change in fair vatue (50) (107.40371341) 3.4209%063
Investment gains ) 95345186175 67716595060
Inchuding Gains from investments in joint vertures and assoaated entities 26437670298 24723365420
I TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT 725376624156 8.304.169.054 67
Add’ Non-operating income (52) 49559926018 47247745345
Less: Non-operating expense (53) 454810,10587 62228087069
Including Loss from disposal of non<urrent assets 34202203750 32390666147
V. PRE-TAX PROFIT 729455539587 815436563743
Less Income tax expense (54) 1199.35367779 155327251752
V.NET PROFIT 609520171808 660109311991
Net profit attibutable to the parent company 5B816.227.393.10 6.459207 46021
Including Net profit/loss of merged partes before combination under the same control (390.190885 33)
e o e et o e o 7 sow 5555
Profit and loss attributable to minority sharehoiders 27897432498 14188565970
Including Net profit of merged parties before combination under the same contro! -
6095.201.71808 660109311991
VI EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic EPS 5 033 037
" Other consoidated income 56) 31607075700 (754.603.538.67)
Total consohdated income 641127247508 $.846.489.581 04
Including Consolidated income attributable to parent company N 6,106329.41980 $.758380380.74
T Consohdated income attributable to minority sharehokders 30494305528 88.109.20030

The accompanying notes on pages 75 10155 constitute an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Baoshan lron & Steel Co., Ltd. F L%

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equnly
For the Year Ended 31 December 2009

Capita' stock Capttal -eserve Special reserve
| Opening balance in the period 17.512,00000000 36806 69259598
IL Amount of increase o~ decrease in the year
(1) Net proft B
(2) Other consoldated income . 29007242511
Total consolrdated income - 29007242511

"(3) Capral paid in and reduced by owners

1 Capnal paid in by minorities in subsidiaries

2 Acqusition of equrty from minority sharehokders i subsdiaries - (652 650.54)

3. Others - 21819612818

(4) Proft distribution

I Surplus reserve provision

2. Distnbution to sharehotders

3 Dmdend paid 10 minority imareholders

(5) Spe(na. reserve

I Provision ‘or the year - - 22“-585,557 62
2 Amcunt used . . (14,270699 66)
il Closing balarce of the year 17.512.000.000.00 3731430849873 831485796

The accompanyng notes on pages 75 10155 constitute an integral part of the F.nancial Statements.
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RMB
2009
Sharehokder’s interests attabutable to parent company Total of
Difierence in Minority interests sharehoider's
Earnings reserve Lhdlslnt;ngg foreign currency Sub-total vy interests
exchange translation
16812.395927.36 20.935.302.00395 (109.520,780.55) 91,956.869.746 74 5.880817.631.28 97837687.378.02
581622739310 5.816227.393.10 278974.32498 6095201.71808
29.601.59 290.102,026.70 2596873030 316070757.00
5.816.227.39310 29.601 59 6,106.329.419.80 304.943055.28 641127247508
- 86,044,008.59 86,044 008 59
(652.650.54) (20.277.84083) (20930491 37)
218.196.128 18 3393057 21823005875
1015.374.285.64 (1.015.374.285 64) - -
(3.152.16000000) {3 152.160.000.00) - {3152.160.000.00)
- (169.157.51087) (169.157.51087)
22,585.557.62 22585557 62
- (14.270.699.66) . (14270.699.66)
17.827,77021300 22583995.111.41 (109.491.17896) 95.136,897.502.14 6,082.403.274.02 101219300776.16
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Baoshan lron & Steel Co., Ltd. s b o

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ EQuity Cominucds
For the Year Ended 31 December 2009

Vs

Caprtal stock Capitat reserve Special reserve

1. Closing balance of last year 17.512.00000000 3364580560477

Add Busness combinations under same control - 1147812953403
1L Opening balance in the penod 17.512,000.00000 45.123935.13880
18 Amount of increase or decrease in the year
(1) Net proft
(2) Other comprehensive income - (662791949 84)

Total consolidated income - (662.791.949 84)
(3) Caprtal paid in and reduced by owners

1. Business combination under same control - (10.196276961.49)

2 lssuing convertible bonds from transactions . 231247297702 .

3.Capnal paid in by minortties in subsidianes

4. Acquisiton of equity from minonity shareholders in subsdianies

5. Reduction from disposal of subsidiaries - .

6 Others - 209.353.391 49

{4) Proft distnbution

| Surplus reserve provision - -

2 Distribution to shareholders - -

3_Dividend paid to minority shareholders

IV Closing balance of the year 17.512.000.00000 36.806.692.59598

The accompanying notes on pages 75 10155 constitute an iniegral part of the Financial Statements.
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RMB
2008
Shareholder’s interesis attributable to parent company Totalof
Difterence in Minority interests shareholder's
Earnings reserve Undls(nb;l:‘g foreign cumency Sub-total Y interests
exchange translation
1579630021428 21620790256 82 (71.485,65092) 88,504,01042495 6096.984.64323 94.600,995,068 18
- - 11.478.129534.03 - 11.478,129.534.03
15.796.900.214.28 21620.790.256.82 {71.485.65092) 99.982.13995898 6.096.984.64323 106.079,124.602 21
6459207 460.21 - " 645920746021 141885659 70 6.601,093.11991
- {38.035.129.63) (700.827.079.47) (53.776.459 40) (754.603.53887)
6459207460 21 {38.035.129.63) 5.758.380.380.74 88.109.200 30 5.846.489.581.04
(10.196276.961 49) (10.196.276 961 49)
233247297702 - 233247297702
- 26.829.50000 26.829.50000
- (21.684,391.12) (21.684.391.12)
- (108.659.086 86) {108.659.086 86)
209.3533%1.49 2938.12058 21229151207
101549571308 (1015.495.713.08) . .
(6.129.200.000.00) (6.129,200,00000) - (6.129.200.00000)
R . - - (203.700.354.85) (203,700,354 85)
16812.395927.36 20935.302.003.95 (109.520.780.55) 91.956.869.746.74 5.880817.63128 97.837.687.37802
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. LI

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the Year Ended 31 December 2009

RMB

Note 5 2009 2008

1 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTNITIES

Cash received from sales of goods or rendering of services 170.302,10061065 233286.85321699
Net decrease in depost reserves in central bank and deposits from or

1 other financial natitutions 45162761372 600,630.944.13
Cash received from interests, service fees. and commissions 207.962478.38 309.711.899.36
Net increase in deposits from customers and from or to finandal institutions . 42,366,680 00
Net inease in borrowing from banks and other financial institutions 34.141 00000 -
Net increase i financial assets sold for repurchase - 294.000,00000
Tax refunds receved 13741335121 156,672.452.35
Cash recerved relating to other operating activities (57 782.365.538.60 582,355.390.71
Sub-tota! of cash inflows 171915610.592.56 235272590583 54
Cash pad for goods purchased and labor services received 126,354 894.461.12 180,859.601.400.26
Net increase in customer foans and cash advances 224245390062 1093.720329.71
Net decrease in deposits from customers and from or to financial institutions 2.238229.508 34 878552670591
Net decrease in financial assets sold for repurchase 294,000,000 00 -
Cash paid for interests, service fees, and comnssions 12420320285 42392186002
Cash paid to employees and for employees 7543949,345.19 709331823825
Payment of taxes 621371875380 1556541192657
Cash payments relating to other operating activities (57) 2911.039.43953 5.207.538076.98
Sub-total of cash outllows 147922.488,611.45 219.029.038537.70
Net cash flows from operating actvities (58) 23993121 981 11 16.243552.045.84

[0 CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from retums of investments - 121.880.721.67
Cash recetved from retums on investments 219.309.051.24 448927.507.73
e ;h‘:rm":":;": disposal of fixed assets.intangtle assets 1731129238 13398561550
Net ash recerved from the dssposal ¢f finanaal assets - 1.287.909.899 41
Net cash and cash equivalents recerved from the disposal of subsidiaries - 3375728192
Net cash from finandal assets availible for sale 717.384.148 29 -
Cash received relating to other investing activities (57 33729.231.67 157.140,673.12
Sub-total of cash inflows 987.733.723.58 2.183,601,699.35
Cash paid g:::"::‘; 3nd construction of fxed assets inangible assets 18236437204 60 2648694462035
Cash paid for investments 147.271,003.00 23741077486
Net ash for purchasing transactional fnancial assets 9649773293 -
Cash paid for Luoying assets - 286883368010
Cash payments relating 10 other investing activities - 192,103.653.09
Sub-tatal of cash outflows 18.480.205.940.53 29.785292.72840
Net @sh flows from investing activities (17.492.472.21695) (27.601.691,029.05)

The accompanying notes on pages 75 10155 constitute an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co.. Ltd. AT s i
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement «ontinueds
For the Year Ended 31 December 2009
RMB
Note § 2009 2008
. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received by absorbing investments 86.044.00859 1,110839.301 06
Induding: Cash received by subsidiaries from minonity shareholders’ investments 86.044.00859 26.829.50000
Cash received from debts 69.620220.747.78 85.514.351.93895
Cash receved from issuing convertible bonds - 9.940,000.000.00
Cash recerved from issuing medium term nctes 9.910.000.000.00
Sub-total of cash inflows 79.616.264.756.37 96.565,191.24001
Cash paxd for repayments of debts 7941134287116 8381020095757
Cash paid for dstnbxstion of dividends or profits, or cash payments for interests 447817578379 9.25126220681
Indluding. Drvidends subsidiaries pard 1 minonty sharehokders 17242541385 18704691316
Cash paid for Lucying assets 2.868,833680.10 .
Cash paid for assets of Phase-3 and acquisition of parts of assets under custody 800,000,000.00 800.000.00000
Sub-total of cash outflows 87.558.352,33505 93861463.16438
Net cash flows from financing activities (7942.087.578.68) 270372807563
N iF,:E)Cég;FSQRLEJISELEE,)\ﬁ;MNGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH (704427817 (182513361 33)
\ NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1.44B.482092.69) (8836.924.26891)
Add Balance of cash and cash equivalents at beginrung of period 6272564999 67 15109489268 58
vi BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE PERIOD 59) 4.824.082,906 98 6272564999 67

The accompanying noles on pages 75 10155 constitute an inegral past of the Financial Statements.
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Baoshan Iron & Stecl Co, Ltd. R g
Balance Sheet of the Company
31 December 2009
RMB
Assels Noie 11 31 December 2009 31 December 2008
CURRENT ASSETS
Monetary funds 1767.579.044.85 3.182.690.34286
Trading énancal assets - 114.59875075
Notes receivable 15.028.797.350 4 8.592.061.194.53
Trade recenables 0] 5.730.373.09721 5.588.834,929.34
Payment in advance 1929 570.050 69 2323.393.029.61
Other receivables ) 238.860829.07 124.791.695.83
Inverttones 19171 004.17336 22231758491 63
Total curent assets 43866.184.545 52 42.158.128.434.55
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Long-term equty investmert ) 25526.158.15003 23913628552.28
Fixed assets 9042019351781 9193223541215
Construction-in-progress 1103221291266 8.953.563859.3)
Project materals 54 46.39742990
Intangible assets 363859849123 3407.121 836.15
Long-term deferred expenses 17.085.879.05 3076168325
Deferred income tax assets 316562.32396 111272683463
Ofther non-current assets 117905780 14 117.905.780 14
Total non-current assets - 131.079.834.18030 129514341 3878
TOTAL ASSET 1749460187258 171672469822 36

The accompanying notes on pages 75 10155 constitute an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Balance Sheet of the Company Cauninved)
31 December 2009
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RMB

Liabities & Shareholders’ Equity

Note 11 31 December 2009

31 December 2008

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short term borrowings

20890937.335.18

21.137.467.584 30

Notes-payable 344864029344 236988504255
Trade payables 14.053.09894589 15272996.018.72
Receipts in advance 9.063.340499.13 7.259.374935.06
Acaued payroll 1.130.478960.54 1,170529.78521
Taxes payable (725.35043307) (1.348.286.755 40)
Interests payable 203.156.969.24 29008749758
Crher payables 316.477072.22 344.156.29359
Currem portion of non-current liabiliues 2925,170.774.44 3924.376,646.30
Current portion of long-term amount due to holding company 800.000.000.00
Other current kabilities 4,632,246,27071 1.418812,393.05
Total current habilities 55.938.196.687.72 52.639,399.44096
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term bormowings 5.109.205.094 33 15.234.545932.41
Bonds payable 18067.156,259.62 7.785.029.71821
Long-term payables 5.092.440941 36 754473199448
Spedal payables 104.914,331.45 18.184.797.90
Deferred income tax habilities 11392687431 147.824,808.07
Other non-current liabirties 92,685803.47 -
Total non-current liabrdities 28,580.329.304 54 30.730.317.251.07

Total liabilrties B4,518.52599226 83.369.716.69203
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capdtal stock 17.512.000.000.00 17.512.000000.00
Capital reserve 36.761.341.171.72 36.581.312996.65
Surplus reserve 17.827.770.213.00 16.812.395927.36
Undsstributed profit 18.306,381,348.84 17.397.044.206.32
Toul sharehoklers’ equry 90.427,492,733.5¢ 88.302.753.13033

TOTAL OF LIABILITIES & SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

174946018725 82

171.672.469.822.36

The accompanying notes on pages 75 to155 constitute an integral pan of the Financial Statements.
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RMB

Note 11 2003 2008

1 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE . (4) 116288373505 .74 150529.103.380.96
Less: Business cost (4) 105.771,765958.70 134.056,075,10592

Sales tax and surcharge 35594155766 915,798.702.07

Sales expense 65143372796 731.14579573
Adminstrative expense 274921824200 342676792075
Financial expense 166303833834 1.771.13%.601.90

Loss on the asset impairment 495685046 06 410242141483

Add: Net (loss)/gan from change i fair value (114,598.750.74) 283,678477.45
Investment gatns (5) 1299.401,708.34 397.964,577.38
Including Gains from investmernts in joint ventures and associated entities 243552.265.14 312986,784.42

i TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT 5.786,093.592.62 6.207.397.894.59
Add Non-operating ncome 240.242,894.30 21257011788

Less Non-operating expense 138499.236 42 353580675 15
including; Net loss from desposal of non-current assets 85.948,606.84 149,075,976.34

1] PRE-TAX PROFIT 5.887.837.25050 6.066.387 337 32
Less:income 1ax expense 810.965.822.34 98890877195

V. NETPROFIT 507687142816 507747856537
Other consolidated mcome (381,164.80) 20.099.315.00)

Total consotidated income 5.076.490.263.36 5057.379.250.37

The accompanying notes on pages 75 10155 constitute an integeal part of the Financial Statements.
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co.. Ltd. ST 1L TG il
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity of the Company
For the Year Ended 31 December 2009
RMB
2009
Capxtal stock Capital reserve  Earnings reserve Urdlstnbsloeg SnarehT:llda;rgs{
interests
1. Opening balance n the period 1751200000000  36.581,31299665 1681239592736 17.397.044.20632  88,302.753.130.33
Il Amount of increase or decrease in the year
(1) Net proft . . 507687142816 507687142816
(2) Other consolidated income - (381.164.80) (381.164.80)
Tota! consolrdated income - {381.16480) 5.076.871.428.16 5.076.490263.36
(3) Capital paid in and reduced by owners
1. Others - 200409.339.87 200409.33987
(4) Profit distribution
1. Surplus reserve provision . - 101537428564  (1.015.374.285 64) s
2. Drstribution to shareholders . - - (3.152,16000000)  (3.152.160.000.00)
1l Closing balance of the year 1751200000000  36.781.341,176.72 1782777021300  18306.381. 4884  90.427.492,733.56
2008
Capral stock Capital reserve  Earnings reserve Und&nb;‘;ﬁ Sharer;rgl!da;r?s'
interests
1 Opening balance in the period 1751200000000 3317593475811 1579690021428  19.464.261.35403  85949.096.326 42
ILAmourt of increase or decrease in the year
(1) Net profit - - 5.077,478.565.37 5.077.478.565.37
(2) Other consolidated income -~ (20099.31500) . (200%9.315.00)
Total consoldated income - (20099.315.00) 5077.47856537 $057379.250.37
{3) Caprtal paxd in and reduced by owners
| Business combination under same control - 891.661.687 21 891.661.687.21
2. Issuing convertible bonds - 233247297702 233247297702
3 Others - 201.342,889.31 - 201.342.889.31
(4) Proft drstribution
"1 Surplus reserve provision ) - 101549571308 (1.015495.71308) R
2. Orstribution to shareholders - - {6.129.20000000)  (6.129.200.000.00)
1l Closng balance of the year 1751200000000 3658131299665 16812.395927.36  17.397044.206.32  88302.753.130 33

The accompanying notes on pages 75 10155 constitute an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. v e e s ’
Cash Flow Statement of the Company
For the Year Ended 31 December 2009
RMB
Note 11 2009 2008
| CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMITIES
Cash receivad from sales of goods or rendering of services 129.666.772.978.31 i79.086.590.131.63
Tax refunds recesved 2.822,007.3) 94,956,00000
Cash received relating to other operating activities 789,405,368 30 48445034047
Sub-total of cash mflows 130.459.000.353.92 179.665996472 10
Cash paid for goods purchased and labor services recened 102,112,144,15358 140684.728.139 77
Cash paid to employees and for employees 5.068.686.279.59 4579.488.17283
Payment of taxes 3808969.258.14 HL11771422350
Cash payments relating 10 other operating adivities 1.701.831.064.96 1668365621 85
Sub-toul of cash outflows 112,691.630.756.27 158050.296.15795
" Net cash flows from operating activities ) 17,767.369.597.65 21615700314 15
Il CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from returns of investments - 372928206
Cash received from retumns on investments 1.061.315.363.20 52721751405
E:;_‘l::’“’:::" from the dspoml of fored assers,imangble assets and other 1712201752 4924681815
Cash received relating 1o other investing activities 2420376846 190275041 32
Sub-total of cash inflows 1.102.641,149.18 77046865558
xmﬂ’e&i’“’ and consiruction of fixed assets. intanglle assets and 1278638315589 1946146053846
Cash paid for investments 1,390.000,000 00 -
Cash pad for Lugjing assets 2868833.680.10
Cash payments relating 10 other investing activities 11450744475
Sud-toul of cash outflows 14,176,383,15589 22444 801,663.31
Net cash flows from investing actvities (13073742006 71) (21.674.333.007.73)
n CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIMITIES
Cash received by absorbing investments 69.260,679.212.30 87964.536.678.60
Cash received from issuing convertible bonds - 9.940000.000.00
Cash received from issuing med:um term nctes 9.910.000000.00 -
Cash received from other fnandng actvities 321336924674 1.720803.034.63
Sub-towal of cash inflows 82.384.048.45904 99.625.339.71323
Cash paid for repayments of debts 8062349073488 90.021.308.560 45
Cash paid for distibution of dvidends or profits, or cash payments for interests 4.192983.88553 8988436351 07
Cash paid for Luojing assets 2.868.833,680 10
Cash paid for assets of Phase-3 and acquisttion of parts of assets under custody 800.000.0000C 800.000.000 00
Sub-toul of cash outflows 8848530830051 99.809.744.911.52
Net cash flows {rom fnandng activities (6.101.259.84147) (184.405.198.29)
W iF’\F‘E)CTCA%LFSgSI'\C;XILEL«T:;MNGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH (7479.04748) (234.206.296.00)
NET DECREASE IN CASHAND CASH EQUNNALENTS (1.415.111,29801) (477.244,187 87)
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3.182.690.342 86 365993453073
Vi BALANCE CF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE PERIOD {8) 1.767.579,044.85 3.182,690.342 86

The accompanying notes on pages 75 10155 constitute an integral part of the Financial Statements.




Baoshan Iron & Stee! Co.. Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2009

RMB

1. Company Profile

Baoshan Iron & Steel Company Limsed (hereinatter"the Comparny ) was incorporated and regrstered on 2 March 2000 in the oty of Shanghai, the People’s
Repubix of China (herenafter "PRC), as a lented company, with the registration number of 3100001006333, under the law of the PRC.The Company was
esiablished by Shanghas Baosteel Group Corporation, Ltd. (formerty Shanghai Baosteel Group Corporation; herematter "SBGC" or “the Group™) as the sole
onginator. under the offcial approval document No. [1999) 1266, as issued by the State Economic & Trade Commission of China

The Company issued 1,877.000.000 ordinary shares (A shares) to the general public with a par value of one RMB each and an offer prce of RMB 4.18,
by means of on-line stock exchange listing coupled with off-ine ratoned subscription, from 6th to 24th November 2000, in compliance with the approval
document No. [2000] 140, 1ssued by the China Securities Regulatory Commussion (hereinafter the "CSRC™)

Following the approval by the CSRC, as prowded in the approval document No. {2005]15, during the 21st 1o 26th of April 2005, the Company issued
five bibon shares with a par value of RMB | each and an offer prxce of RMB 5.12 per share, including three béhion state-owned shares to S8GC and two billion
to the general public, with the latter on a combinatory basis of preferential claming pro-rata and online and ofi-ine bading inquiry.

Approved by the CSRC (No. 739 documernt in 2008). the Company issued RM3. 10 billion of convertible bonds featunng the separation between stock
nghts and bonds on 20, June, 2008.Thrs time, the ong:nal lating s for sale (of shares) conditions were gven the priority for placing
and the rest of the bond were soid to institutiona) nvestors through price inquiry and to ontine applicants. The bond was issued based on its face value, which
was RMB 100 per stock The dividend was pard once a year and the prinaipal was returned once and for all when the time expired The annua! contract inten
est rate was 0.8% The purchaser of the bond was able to obtain 16 copies of stock purchase warrants issued by the issuer. the durabon of the warrant was
24 months from the date of s being lsted on the market, and the exercaing perod was the last S tradng days of the duration. The exercise proporton was
21 and the initial exercrse price was RIMB 12.50 per stock The stock warrant and bond were bsted and traded on Shangha Stock Exchange on 4 July 2008,

The business scope of the Company covers ron and steel procuction and s related processing, power generation, coal, industrial-gas generation, port
terminals, warehouse storage and transport. It is alo engaged in technology and transter, gy services and g mante-
nance, exports of steel products and technology. imports of related materials, machinery, parts and . as well as. ]y (except for
restricted tems 1. where imports and exports are prohibried by the Government). The Company also engages in import processing as well as a subsidized
trad:ng business In summary, the pnncipal activies of the Company are the manufacture and sales of iron and steel products as well as the sales and services
of the by-products generated duning the process of steel producton and sales.

The Compary s regrstered in the South Buiding, Baoshan Hotel. 1813 Mudanjiang Road, Baoshan Drstrict, Shangha. ks business address is Baostee!
Headquarters Center. 885 Fujin Rd Baoshan District. Shanghai. The controlling shareholder of the Company is Baosteel Group, while its actual controller &
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Admsnistration Commission of the State Counail (SASAC)

The Fnancial Report was approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2010 it will be submitted to the Shareholders’ General Meetng for approval
in accordance wrth the Charter of the Cornpany.
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Baoshan lron & Steel Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continuech
31 December 2009

RMB

(1

(2)

(4)

(5

Principal Accounting Policies and Accounting Estimates

Bauis for the presentation of the financal statements

The fnancial statements were prepared in accordance with the newly revised Accountng Standards for Business Enterprises (February. 2006) published
by the PRC Minsstry of Fnance. which includes the basic standard and 38 specific standards as wel as the implementaton guidance, explanatons and other
related documents, which are referred to as Accounting Swndards for Business Enterprises.

The fnancil statements have been presented on the basis of on-going operations

The financial statements have been prepared on the basrs of Frstoncal cost method, with the exception of certan £nancial instruments. Nion <urrent
asset held for sale 1s measured at the lower of its onginal carrying amount and fair vakie less estimated costs Where assets impairments occur, preparations
for the impa:rments are made accond:ng to relevant regutatons.

Declaration on compliance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

The financut statements gve a true and accurate view of the financial posion of the Company and of the Group and of ts financial performance and
15 cash flows for the year ended December 31,2009 in accordanxe with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterpnse

Accounting period
The accounting year of the Group 15 from 1 January to 31 December of each calendar year.

Reporting currency
The reporting currency of the Financial Statement is Renm.nb (RMB). and the unit 15 RMB yuan, except as indicated

The overseas subsiduries. however, have their chaices of reporting currency which in line with ther £inancial settings When drawing up consolidated
accounting statements, these curmencies are converted into RMB

Business combination

The term "business combinadons” refers 10 a transaction or event brng:ng together two or MOre separate enterprises IMo one. reporting entity Business
combnations are classihed into the business combmations under the same control and the business combinations not Lnder the same control

Business combinations under the same control

A business combinaton under the same control 15 a business combination in which all of the combining entarprises are itimately controlled by the same
party or the same parbes both before and after the bustness combination and on whih the control is not temporary In a business combinabon under the
same conrol. the party which obtains control of other combining enterprise(s) on the combining date 1s the combining party, the other combining enterpnse(s)
15 (are) the combined party The term “combin:ng date” refers to the date on which the combining party actually obtains cortrol on the combined party.

The assets and liabritties that the combining party obtains in a business combination are measured on the basis of their carrying amount in the combined
party 01 the combxning cate. As for the balance between the carrying amount of the net assets obtaned by the combiing party and the carying amount
of the consideration paid by & (or the total par value of the shares ssued). the addronal pard-in capital are adp:sted If the addiwonal paid-in capital is not
sufficient to be offset, the retaned earmings are adjusted

The direct cost %or the business combination of the combining party 15 recorded into the profits and losses at the current penod

Business combination not under the same control

A bLsiness combinaton not under the same control 1s a business ¢ 1 which the ¢ g enterprses are not ulimately controlied by
the same party or the same parties both before and after the business ¢ In a business combi not under the same control the party which
obtans the control on other combining enterprise(s) on the purchase date is the acquirer. and other combining enterprise(s) s (are) the acquire. The term
“acqusrion date’ refers 20 the dite on which the acquirer actudlly obtains the control o the acquire

For a business combination not under the same control. the combinat:on costs are the farr values, on the acqus:uon date, of the assets paxd, the labilives
ircurred or assumed and the equrty securtties issued by the acquirer in exchange for the control on the acquire For a business combinaton realzed by two
or more transacons of exchange, the combination ¢osts are the summaton of the costs of all separate transactions Where any future event that s ikely
10 affect the comb naton costs 1s. n the contract or agre st 1f 15 hikely to occur and fts effects on the combination costs can be
measured relably, the acquirer records the said amount ino the combinaton costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements «Continued
31 December 2009

RMB

(6)

(%]

For 3 business combmation not under the same conrol.the acquirer shall,on the acqueition date, measure the dentiable assets, labikties and contingent
liabilibes it obtains from the acquire in Iight of therr far values

The acquirer shall recognae the positive balance between the combinabon costs and the far value of the Wenhable net assets t obtains from the
acquiree as good wil. For the negative balance between the combination costs and the farr value of the identffiable net assets it obtains from the acquiree,
it shall reexamine the measurement of the fair values of the dentifiable assets, Babirties and comingent lubrdres it obmins from the acquiree as well as the
combination costs: I{ after the reexamination, the combmnation costs ase st less than the farr value of the identdable net assets t obtains from the acquiree,
1t shall record the balance into the profts and losses of the current period

Consolidated financial statements

The scope of the consolidated financial statements rs based on control, including the financial statements of the Company and all of fts subsidianes as at
31 December 2009. Subsidiaries refer to invested enuties that are controlled by the Group.

The consolidated inancial statements have been prepared by consistent accounting policies and accounting peniod for both Company and rts subsidiaries
Where dffferences exist between the policies of any of the subsidiaries and of the Company, those of the subsidiary has been adjusted under the Company’s
policies. Gains and losses resuRed and to be resu'ted from transactions among the entiies of the Group are balanced when consolidated

The porton of owner's equrty of any consolkiated subsidiary whih does not belong to the Group s presented indvidually under minomty shareholders’
equity in the consoldated financial statements

The management performances and cash flows of subsidianes from busness combinations not under the same control are included 1Mo the scope
of consoldated fnandial statements since the date of control before the Group terminates the nght of control of the entity. VWhen preparng consolidated
financial statements, the Group adpusts the fnancial statements of the subsidiary company on the basis of the farr values of the identifabla assets, habilties and
conungent labikties determined on the acquisibon date.

The operating performance and cash flows from the beginning of the current period of the combined subsidanes under than same control are con-
solidated in financial statements. In comparative tnancial statements. relatve items are adjusted as i they were available since the date when they are lately
controlled by the combining party

Cash and cash equivalent

The term “cash™ refers to cash on hand and deposits that are avalable for payment at any tme. “"Cash equivalents™ are short term. highly iqusd invest-
ments by the Group which are readily convertbie into known amounts of cash and where there s no sigdficant mk of 2 change in value.
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Baoshan Iron & Steed Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
31 December 2009

RMB

8)

9

(10)

Foreign currency transaction and foreign currency translation

The Group translates the amount in a foregn currency IMto amount in fts functional currency

At the time: of mftial recognbon of a foregn currency transaction, the amount n the foregn currency are ransited nto the amount 1 the functional
currency at the spot exchange rate of the transaction date. The foreign currency monetary tems are translated at the spot exchange rate on the balance
sheet date. The balance of exchange arsing from the difference between the spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date and the spot exchange rate at
the tme of inbal recognriion, other than that anising from acquistion of assets elgible for capitalization, which is dealt under the praciple of capta'izavon,
recorded into the profits and losses st the current penod.The foresgn currency non-monetary items measured at the historical cost are translated at the spot
exchange rate on the transaction date, of which the amount of functional currency are changed. The foreign currency non-monetary tems measured at the
fair value are translated at the spot exchange rate of the date of far value recognrion and the balance of exchange arising from the dfference are recorded
into the profits and losses or other consohdated income reserves at the current period

For overseas business operavons, the Group converts ther currencies into RMB when prepanng consolidated accounting statements: The asset and
tabity tems in the balance sheets are translated 2t 3 spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Among the owner's equity tems. except the ones as
“undstnbuted profits”. others are be translated at the spot exchange rate a1 the bme when they are incurred; the income and expense tems in the proft
statements are transizted at the average spot exchange rate of the transaction penod The balance arisen from these transiations of foreign currency are
presented separately under the owner's equity tem of the balance sheets When dsposing an overseas business. the Group shets the balance o the disposal
profits and losses of the current perod, while overseas businesses drsposed partally are cakulated on the drsposal rate and shall shift them into the profits
and losses of the current period.

Thcaxchzngemeuscd‘o(metnmlamofushﬂowsmafomvgncumncymdlheashﬂmofmmne&ssubx-durykthaaver:gespclmhmge
rate in the penod of the cash Sows The eflect of a change 1 exchange rate on cash is, as an adjustment ftem, separately presented in the cash flow

Inventories
Invertones include raw matenals, work-in-progress. firushed goods and spare parts and consumables

Inventones are nibally measured at their cost, which comprise the purchasing cost, processing cost and other costs The actual cost of inventories is
determined by the weighted average cost method The Group amortizes the carrying amount of low cost and short-Iived consumabie tems and packaging
materals and suppl:es through the one-off wite-off method.

The perpetual inventory system 1s adopted for inventones.

On the date of balance sheet, the inventories shall be measured according 10 the cost or the net realizable value, whichever is lower i the cost of inven.
!onashrperthanlhenetruhablevdugtheprovlsaonlorthelosondedaenvdueolm:monusmademdncbdedm!hepmfmandkm&dlhe
current penod Hf the factors, which cause any write-down of the inventories, have dsappeared, the amount of write-down s resumed and reversed from the
provision for the loss on deline in value of inventones which has been made. The reversed amount 15 included in the profits and losses of the current period.

The net realizable value refers, in the ordinary course of business, to the amount after deducting the esuimated cost of comp subsidiary companies, joint
ventures and associzted enterpases esbmated sale expense and relevamt taxes from the estimated sale prce of invertones. The provision for loss on decline
in value of inventonies s made on the basis of each item of invertories.

Long-term cquity investments

Long-term equity investments, including those invested on subsihary companies, joint ventures and associated enterpises as well as those on the invested
en‘.zrvrmmn!heGroupuno\auetocomrolandonthemvaueden‘.mamnlheerpdoesnolpmxcmvvlordoesncthsqprﬁ(mlmﬂuen:smd
has no offer in the active market and ts fair value cannot be rehably measured, are ntially measured on basis of the intial costs of investment.

The pnce of a long-term equity investment measured by employing the cost method is included at its Intial investment cost. For the merger of enten
prises uncer the same control, the share of the book value of the owner's equity of the merged enterprise is regarded as the indial cost of the fong-term
equity investment. For the merger under dfferem control, the merging party shall, on the date of merger. regard the merger costs as the nftial cost of the
long-term equity investment.

The cost method s employed for long-term equrty investments on the invesied enterprses that the Group does not joint conmtrol or does not have
sigmicant influences and has no offer in the active market and s farr value cannot be reliably measured. The method & also used for long-term equrty invest-
mens on the invested enterprises that the Group does joint control in indvidual £nancial statements The intial cost of a long-term equity investment obtained
by other means is ascertained in accordance with the following standards: For a long-term equity investment obtained by making payment in cash, the inral
cost ncludes the purchase cost actually paid, expenses directly relevant to the obtanment of the long-term equity investment, taxes and other necessary
expenses. The fair value of the equity securities issued is regarded as the initial cost of a long:-term equity investment obtained on the basis of ssuing equrty
securties. The intl cost of a long-term equity investment of an investor is the value stipulated  the investment contract or agreement except the unfar
vilue stpulated in the contract or agreement.
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The price of a long-term equty 15 by g the cost method, when the Company does not do joit control or does not have

signdicant nfluences on the invested entity and the entity has no offer in the active market and rts far value cannot be rekably measured. However, the equity
method 15 used when the Company does ront control or has signricant influences over the investae

The investment income from long-term equity investment by the const method is recognized on the basrs of the dvdends or profits declared to dis-
tnbute by the invested entity, with the exception of the amount of paxd for the nvestment or the declared but undistnbuted cash dvmdends or profits in the
consideraton and recorded in the current investment iIncome. At the same time, deczsions were made in accordance wh related policies of asset imparments
as 1o whether 1t was necessary to confirm the impairment loss

The equity method was used in cakulaung long-term equtty investment in subsidiaries before | anuary 2007. Under the new standards. the cost method
has been employed instead. The management of the Company beheves & 1s not feasible 1o make retroactive modulatons 1 long-term equity investments
prior to the date of inial adoption of the new standards. Therefore. accending to Accounting Standards for Enterprises No. 38 - Inal implementation of
Accounung Standards for Enterpises if a long-term equity investment 15 generated from a busmess combination under common control, the unamortized
equity mvestment dffference is entrely stenized. the retained earnings are modulated, and the book balance of the long-term equrty investment after the
stenkzzon of the equity investment difierence s considered as she cost recognition on the date of infial implementaton. For any other long-term equrty
nvestment cakulated by equity method, in case there 15 any equity nvestment diffierence on the credit side. 1t stenlzes the credt balance, the retained eam-
ings & modulated, and the book balance of the long-term equrty investment afier the sterikzation on the credit sde is considered as the cost recognmtion on
the date of inal mpiementaton i case there ts any equity investment diference on the debit side, the book value of the long-term equity ivestment is
consxdered as the cost recogniion on the date of intial mplementation

The gans from investment income that was not retroactively modulated and recorded in long-term equity investment of subsidiaries was recognzed
as current investment income on the basrs of the cash dvidend or profit for the mvested entity as declared and. at the same time, decrsions were made n
accordance with related potiies of asset imparments as to whether t was necessary to confirm the imparrment loss.

Long-term equrty imvestments of the Group on invested emsbies over which the Group does joint control or has sgnrficant influences are measured by
employing the equity method The term “joint comrol refers to the control over an economi activity in accordance with the contracts and agreements, which
does not exsst Lnless the invesing partes of the economic actmty with one an assent on shanng the control power over the relevant important nancial and
operating decrsons, while the term “signfficant influences” refers to the power to partiipate 1n making decisions on the financial and operating policies of an
enterpnse, but not o control or do joint control together with other partes over the formulation of these policies.

When the equrty method is empioyed, if the infal cost of a long-term equity uvestment 15 more than the nvesting enterpnse’ attnbutable share of the
fair value of the nvestad entity’s idemrfiable net assets for the investment, the inrial cost of the long-term equity nvestment 1s be adjusted: If the initial cost
of a long-term equrty investment 1s fess than the investing enterpnse’ attnbutable share of the far value of the nvested entty's dentfiable net assets for the
investiment, the dfference s included in the current profts and lkosses and the cost of the long-term equrty 1s ad,usted

When the equity method 1s employed. after the Group obtarns a long-term equity investment. it recognizes, n accordance with the attributable share
of the net profits or losses of the invested entity, the nvestment profits or losses and adjusts the book value of the long-term equity investment The Group
recognuzes. on the ground of the farr value of al identifiable assets of the invested entity when & obtains the investment and in line with the accounting polies
of the Group to balance the internal losses and gains n the mternal transactions between the Group and fts pint venture and assocated enterprise before
the shares attnbutable to invested enterprise are measured according 1o the shares they hokl (however. the assets impawrments i imternal transactions should
be confirmed in full amount) the attnbutable share of the net profits and losses of the invested entity ater t acjusts the net profits of the invested ety As
for long-term equrty nvestment on joint ventures and associated enterpnses that existed prior to the date of int:al implementation of the new standards,
in case there (s any equity investment difference on the cred: side. the Group recognizes the profits and losses of the investment after the credtt balarce. as
amortized by the straght-ine method over the remaining period, s steriized The Group. n the ight of the profits or cash dividends declared to distribute
by the mvested entrty, calculates the proporton ft should obtain, and reduces the book value of the long-term equity investmen: correspondingly The Group
recognizes the et losses of the rvested enterprise untl the book value of the long-term equrty Investment and other long-term rights and interests which
substantally form the net investment made o the invested entty are reduced to zero. unless the Group has the obligation to undertake extra losses Where
any change 15 made to the owner’s equity other than the net profi's and losses of the invested entrty. the book value of the long-term equity investment is
adjusted and be included in the owner’s equrty. It will be recorded into current losses and gans in proportion when the project is disposed

When disposing of a long-term equrty nvestment, the difference between rts book value and the actual purchase price is included 1n the current profits
and losses. For long-term equity investments calculated on basis of the equrty method, the part recorded in the shareholders'interests is transferred, according
o a relative proporton. to the current profits and losses

Refer to Note 2 (18) for how the asset imparment test 15 conducted and provisions for imparrments are prepared concerning long-term equity invest-
ments on subskliaries. jo:nt ventures and assocuates and note 2(16) for the same methods concerning other long-term equtty mvestments for which there is
1o quoted pnce in the actve market and whose fair value cannot be relably measured
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{11 Investment real estates

The term “investment real estates” refers to the real estates heki for generating rent and/or caprtat appreciation, which include the right to use any land
which has already been rented: the nght 1o use any land whxch 15 held and prepared for transfer after appreciation. and the nght to use any bulding which
has already been rentec

The investment real estate s intially measured at fts cost For the follow-up expx elating to an real estate. f the economic benefits relating
to this investment real estate are likely 10 flow into the enterpnise and the cost of the investment real estate can be rehably measured, they shall be induded
1n the cost of the investment real estate, Otherwise, they are included 1n the profts and losses of the current period when they are incurred.

The Group makes a follow-up measurement to an nvestment real estate through the cost method. Depreciation s calculated on a straght-ine basis 10
write off the cost over fis useful ife. The useful Iife, expected net salvage value and the depreciation method of each type of fixed assets s as follows.

Categories Useful Ke Saivage value Depreciation rate
Busdings and plants i5 . 35 years 4% 27% - 64%
Land use nght 50 years 2%

Refer to Note 2(18) for details about how the impairment test & concucted and provisions for Impawments are prepared concerning investment real
estates whose icliow-up measurement 5 conducted on the basrs of the cost modal

(12) Fixed asset

Fxed assets refer to the tangible assets held for commodity production, labor service, lease, operation or management ard with a use term of over
one fiscal year.

Fexed assets are recognized only when the economx: benefts pertinent to them are likely to fow into the Group and their costs are measured reliably.
If the subsequent expenses related to a fixed asset meet these recogniton condtions, they are ncluded in the cost of fxed asset and the recognmon of the
book value of the replaced part is terminated: otherwse. they are included in the current profits and losses.

The inal measurement of a fixed asset shal be made at ris cost, with s expected drscard expenses taken into consideration. The cost of a purchased
foced asset consssts of the purchase price. the relevant taxes, and other expenses tha bring the fixed asset 1o the expected condrbons for use

The depreciabon method used for fixed assets 3 the straght-ine method The useful life expected net salvage value and the depreciaion method of
each type of foced assets 15 as follows

Category Useful ife Sahvago value Depreciation rate
Buikdings and plants 15.- 35 years 4% 27% - 64%
Machinery ana equipment 7-15 years 4% ) 64% . 137%
Transport vehides S 10 years 4% 96% - 192%
Office and other equeoment 4.9 years e 107% - 24.0%

The Group has a check. at least at the end of each year, on the useful Ife. expected net salvage value. and the depreciation method of the foed assets.
If there 15 21y difference between the expected useful lfe and the previously estimated useful Iife of a fixed asset, the expectad Lsefu: Iife of the ficed asset
shall be adusted

Refer to Note 2(18) for detals about how the impairment test 1s conducted and provisions for imparments are prepared concerning fixed assets

(13) Construction-in-progress

Constructon-in-progress & carmed at cost and includes 2!l direct construcbion costs. capralized borrowing costs before it comes to the expected condr
vor, and other relevant costs

Constructon-in-progress s transferred to fixed assets when the asset 1s ready for fts :ntended use

Refer to Note 2(18) for detads about how the impairment test 1s conducted and prowisions for imparments are prepared concerning constructions-
In-progress.
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(14)

(15)

Intangible assets

The intangible assets of the Group are inttally measured accord:ng to their costs. The service life of an intangible asset is measured by the period in
which it can bring economic bernefits to the Group. If 1t s unable to forecast the penod when the intangble asset can bring economic benefts to the Group.
@t rs regarded as an intangible asset with uncertain service Iife.

Intangble assets are amortuzed evenly over the following penods

Category Amortization period
Land use rghts 46. 50
Software copynghts 5

The land-use nght that the Group obta:ned was measured as imangible asset, whie buikdings constructed by the Group. including plans. and the related
land-use rights and buildings were cakulated among intangble assets and foced assets respecuvely. The payment for purchases of land and buikdings were
dstributed between the acquired lands the buikiings. Where the disribution was impossible, it as 3 whole was considered fixed asset.

Intangible assets with a imrted service ke are amortized by the straight-Ine method The Group checks, at least at the end of each year.the service life and
the amortzation method of intang ble assets with imited service Ife and necessary adjustments are made regarding the years and method of the amortization.

The expendtures for its internal research and development progects of the Group are classified nto research expenditures and development expenditures.
The research expendrtures for the internal research projects are expensed when incurmed.

The development expendtures of the Group are capitalzed only when they meet the following condiions smultanecusty: t is feasible technically to
fir:sh intangible assets for use or sa'e: t 1s intended to finish and use or sell the intangible assets. the usefulness of methods for intangible assets to generate
economic benefits shall be proved, ncluding being able to prove that there 's a potential market for the products manufactured by applying the imtangble assets
or there 15 3 potertal market for the intangible assets rtself or the intangible assets will be used internaly. it 1s able to finrsh the development of the intangible
assets, and able to use or sefl the irtangble assets. wrth the support of sufficient technologies, financial resources and other resources. and the development
expendriures of the intangible assets can be reliably measured. Otherwise they are expensed when incurred

Refer to Note 2(18) for detass about how the imparment test 1s conducted and provisions for Impairments are prepared concarning intangble assets

Long-term deferred expenses .
Long-term geferred expenses are amortzed from the date they incur over the benefary penod
Expenses ansng from preparations in the Group and rts consolidated subsidiaries recorded nto the profits and losses of the current penod.

Where a long-term deferred expense tem does not benefit the future accounting perod the remaxung value 1s transterred fully imo profits and losses
of the current period
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Financial instruments

The erm “¥nancial instruments” refers to the contracts under which the financial assets of an enterpnse are formed and the financial labikty or nght
mstruments of any other entty are formed.

Recognition and termination of financial instruments

When the Group becomes a party to a financial mstrument it recognezes a faancial asset or financial liabiirty
Where a financial asset (or part of t or of a set of similar assets) savsfies any of the following requirements, the recognrtion of t shall be termmated

(1) Where the contractual rghts for collecting the cash flow of the said financal asset are terminated, or

(2) Where the enterprse maintains the nght to recenve the cash flow of the £nancial asset and undertakes the obligaton, as agreed upon in a contract, 10
pay the cash flow 1t recerves 10 a thind party, or where the sad financial asset has been transferred and meets the following condrbons for recognizing the
terrination of financal asiets. (a) Where an enterprise has transferred nearly all of the nsks and rewards related to the ownership of the financial asset

10 the transferee. or (b) the enterprise gives up rts control over the fnanca! asset, while reta:ning all the nsks and rewards related to the ownership of
the financial asset

A financial labilty 15 derecognized when the obligation under the llabiity & discharged or carcelled of expires Where an existing finaxcial hability i
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exasting hability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modifcaton 1 treated as derecognrion of the onginal kabiy and recogniton of a new labiity. and the difference between the carrying amounts of the
onginal labity and the far value of the new labilrty is recognizad and recorded in the profit and loss of the current period

Regular transactons of financial assets are recogrized and derecognzed on a settiement date tasis. Regular transactions of fnancial assets refer to
transactions in which financial assets are purchased or sokd during the tme penod as stipulated in a regulation or practiced as a corvenbon on the bas's of a
contract between two parties The term “the transaction date” refers to the date when the Group promises to purchase or sell a financial asset.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

FRnancul assets of the Group are dassified 1o the following four categones when they are inftially recognized the financial assets which are measured
at their farr values and the vanation of which 1s recorded into the profits and losses of the current perod, the investments which will be hekd 1o the'r maturtty.
loans and the account recevables; financal assets avadable for sale, and the designated derivative nsruments which are effective hedging instruments The
financial assets of the Group are measured at their fair values when they are intally recognized. For the financial assets and habiibes measured at their fair
values and of which the vanabon rs recorded 1o the profits and losses of the current penod. the transaction expenses thereof shall be cirectly recorded into
the profits and losses of the current penod. for other categones of financul assets and financual kabirties. the transaction expenses thereof shall be incluced
nto the inftually recognized amount.

The follow-up measurement of a financial asset depends on the category 10 which 1t belongs.

Financial assets at their fair through profit and loss

The financul assets which are measured at thesr fair values and the varation of which 1s recorded into the profits and losses of the current penod include
transactional financial assets and the financual assets which are measured at their far va'ves and of which the varation s included in the current profits and losses.

The firancial assets meetirg any of the folowing requirements are classéied as transactional financial assets. (1) the purpose to acquire the said financial
assets s manty for selling or repurchase of them in the near future.(2) forming a part of the identifiable combination of financial instruments which are managed
n a centra'zed way and for which there are objective evidences proving that the enterprise may manage the combination by way of short term profit making
in the near future. and (3) being a dervative instrument, exclucing the desgrated denvative instruments which are effective hedging instruments, or derrvative
nstuments to financial guarantee contracts.and the auve inst ts which are ¢ with the equity Instrument invesiments for which there & no
Quoted price in the actve market whose far value cannot be reliably measured, and which sha!l be settied by delvering the sad equity instruments Subsequent
measurements on these financial assets are mace accordng to therr far values, with represent and! future gans and losses recorded into the profits and losses of
the current penod The dividends or interest income related to financil assets at their fair through profit and foss 1s recorded in the current profits and losses

Held-to-maturity investment

The term’ held-to-maturity nvestment” refers to a nor-denvative financul asset wrth a fixed date of maturtty, a fixed or determinable amount of repo
pnce and which the enterprise holds for a defintte purpose or the enterpnise 5 able to hokd untl ts matunty The Group makes subsequent rmeasurement
on these investments held unti ther maturty on the basis of the post-amortzation costs by adopting the actual interest rate method.The profits and losses
that anse when such financia) assets or financial Yabirties are terminated from recognition. or are mmpaired or amortzed are recorded into the profts and
losses of the current penod.

Loans and the account receivables

“Loans and accounts "ecevable” refers to the non-dervatve fnancial assets for which there 1s no qucted price in the actve market and of which the
repo amount 15 fxed or determinable The Group makes t on these heid unul the:r matunty on the bags of the post-

anorbzabon cosls by edopbng tite actual witérest rale method The profils a4 iosses that arise when such financial assets are impa:red or amortuea e
recorded .mo the profs and losses of the current penod.
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Sellable finandial assets

The "sellable financial assets” refers to the non-derrvatve financial assets which are designated as sellable when they are inibally recognzed as wel as
the financial assets The subsequent measurements on these fnancul assets are made at therr fair values. Their premiums or reduced values are amortized by
adopting the actual interest rate method and recorded into the interest income oc expenses loss of the current period The profits and losses ansing from
the change in the fair value of a sellable fnancial asset are included in capdal reserve and recognized a separate item directly in the owner's equity, with the
exception of mpaiment losses and the gap ansing from foreign exchange conversion of cash financial assets in any forergn currency, which are recognized
13 profit and loss of the currer penod, unti] the said assets are terminated or the accumulated profit or loss recognized in capiial reserve have transferred.
when the imparment incurred, mto the profit and loss of the current penod. The cash dvidends or interest income of a sellable financial asset are recorded
nto the profits and losses of the current period.

An equity instrument ivestment for which there is no quoted pace in the active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured is measure
on basis of its cost.

Classification and measurement of finandal liabilities

Financial labilities shall be classriied into the followang three categones when they are inibally recognized. the financial liabigies which are measured at
their fair values and of which the vanation is included In the current profits and losses: other fnancial kabrkves; and the designated derivative instruments which
are effective hedging instruments. For the financial assets and labdries measured at their fair values and of which the vanation is recorced into the profits and
losses of the current penod. the transacton expenses thereof are directly recorded into the profits and losses of the current period, whie for other categories
of financial assets and financial labilrues, the transaction expenses thereof are included into the inally recognized amount.

The subsequent measurement of fnancial labiires depends on the category to which they belong

Financial liabilities at their hir value through profit and loss

Financial Labilties which are measured at their far values and of which the vanation s incuded in the current profits and losses indude transactional
financial habilives and the designated financial labikties which are measured at their far vakies and of which the variaton 15 included in the cumrent profits and
losses. The financial labikties meeting any of the following requirements shall be classied as transactional financial babsltties:

(1) The purpose for undertaking the financial labisties s mainty for repurchase of them in the near future;

{2) Formingapartofthe i of fnancial instr h are managed in a cemralized way and for which there are objective endences.
proving that the enterprise may manage the combmnation by way of short term profit making in the near future; and

(3) Being a derivatve nstrument, excluding the designated denvative instruments which are eflective hedging mstruments, or dervative instruments to
financial guarantee conracts, and the dervative instruments which are connected with the equity instrument investments for which there is no quoted
price in the active market. whose farr value cannot be rebably measured. and which shall be settied by deSvenng the said equity instruments.

Subsequent measurements on these financial assets are made according to their farr values, with represent and future gains and losses recorded 1o
the profits and losses of the current penod.

Other financial liabilities

Other financul labilres are measured on the basis of the post-amortization costs by adopting the actual interest rate method.

Financial guarantee conuracts

Financal guarantee contract as used in the Company means an agreement pursuant to which a surety and a creditor agree that the surety shall perform
the obiigation or bear the labiity according to the agreement, when the debtor fails to perform hrs oblgaton. financial guaramee contracts are measured
intially 2 their fur valves. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized nally at their fair value. For the financial guarantee contracts which are not desgnated
as a financial kabilty measured at its fair value and the variation thereof is recorded into the profits and losses of the current penod. a subsequent measure-
ment after the inttial measurement, is made after they are intally recognuzed according to the higher one.

Derivative financial instruments

Oenvatve financial instruments used by the Group are measured inbially on basis of rts fur value as on the date the contract is sgned and the follow-up
measurement 15 conducted on basrs of ts far values. A derivative fnancial instrument with posrive fair value & recognized as an asset, while that with negative
fair value as a hiabiitty However, ‘or the derivative instruments which are connected with the equrty nstrument investments for which there s no quoted price in
the active market. whose far va'ue cannot be reliably measured. and which shall be settied by delivering the said equity instrument, the cost method 15 employed.

The profits and losses armsing from the change in the fair value of a fnancial asset or financial liabilty are directly recorded Imo the profits and losses of
the current penod. with the exception of the effective portion n cash flow hedging. which & recorded into other consalidated income.
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Convertible bonds

The Group confrmed whether the convertble bonds 1t is to issue includes components of kabiity and equity VWhen they include the two components.
these components are separated and processed n different manners upon infial recog The liabalry s at s fair value and the
equity component is assigned the residual amount after deducting fair value of the financial habxlty component from the fair value of the convertble bond as
a whole. The kabiirty component is recognized n the labikty and s subsequently carned at amortized cost untl the bond is canceled, converted or redeemed.
The equity 15 recog! and 1s not

Fair value of finanial instrument

As for the financial assets or financial liabilites for which there 1s an active market, the quoted pnces in the active market are used to determ:ne the fair
values thereof. Where there is no active market for a financal nstrument, the Group adop?s value apprassal techniques to determine tts far value. The value
appraisal techniques manly nclude the prices adopted by the partes. who are familar with the condion, in the latest market transaction upon their own
free will, the current far value obtained by referring 1o other financial instruments of the same essenbal nature, the cash flow aprtaizaton method and the
opton preing model, among others

Impairment of financial assets

The Group carmies out an inspection, on the balance sheet day, on the carrying amount of the financial assets. Where there is any objective evidence
proving that such financial asset has been impaired, an imparment provision shall be made The expression "cbjective evidence proving that the £nancial asset
has been impaired” refers to the actually incurred events which. after the financal asset & inttially recognized, have an impact on the predicted future cash flow
of the said inancial asset that can be relably measured by the enterprse

Financial assets measured on the basis of post-amortization costs

When objective endences show the impairment of the financial asset the carrying amount of the said financial asset s wiitten down to the current
value of the predicted future cash flow (exciuding the loss of future credits not yet occurred). and the amount as wrtten down 1s recognized as loss of the
imparment of the asset and is recorded nto the profts and losses of the current period. The current vaue of the predicted future cash flow s determined
acording to the caprtalzation of the original actual interest rate of the said fnancial asset. taking Into account the value of the relevant guarantee.

An impairment test & made on the financial assets with sgnificant single amounts. If any objective evidence shows that 1t has been impaired, the

celated fosses are L and recorded 1Mo the profits and losses of the currert penod With regard to the financial assets with insgnificant

sngle amounts, an independent impa.ment test 1s camed out, or they are ncluded in 2 combination of fnancial assets with similar credtt risk features so as

o cary out an impairment-related test Where, upon independent test, the financial asset (including those financial assets with sgnificant sngle amounts and

those with insignrficant amounts) has not been mpared, . s included in a combination of financial assets with smiar risk featues so as to conduct ancther

impa.rment test The fnancial assets which have suffered from an imparment loss 1 any single amount are not included in any combnation of financial assets
with similar sk features for any impairment test.

Where a fnancial asset measured on the basis of post-amortizaton costs 15 impaired. the carrying amount of the said fnancial asset 1s written down
1o the current value of the preducted future cash flow (excluding the loss of future credits not yet occurred), and the amount as written down s recognized
as loss of the impurment of the asset and i recorded into the profits and kasses of the current period. The current value of the predicted future cash flow
shall be determined according to the capitatzation of the onginal actual mterest rate of the sad financial asset (the actual interest rate as determined when
the financial asset was nibally recognized.), taking imo account the value of the relevant guarantee. With regard to the fioating interest rate loans, accounts
recervable, and the investments held untl their maturtty. the current actual interest rate as stpulated in the contract shall be adopted as the capdalization rate
in the calculation of current value of the cash flow, *

Seliable financial assets

When objective evidences show the imparment of the financial asset, the accumwlative losses ansing from the decrease of the far value of the oaner’s
equity which was directly included are transferred out and recorded into the profits and losses of the current period. The accumulative losses transferred out
are the balance obtained from the inftially obtained costs of the sokd fnancial asset after deducting the principals as taken back, the current fair value and the
wmpairment.related losses a5 was recorded into the profits and losses of the current period.

As for the sellable dett instruments whose impairment.-related losses have been recognized. f, within the accountng period thereatter, the far value has
nsen and are obyectively related to the subsequent events that occur after the onginally impaus lated losses were r the onginally s
imparment-related losses are reversed and recorded into the profts and losses of the current penod. The impairment-related losses incurred 1o a sefable
equry insTument nvestment are nos reversed through profits and losses and the increase in the'r far value s confirmed in other consoldated income.

Financial assets measured on the basis of costs

When objective evidences show the imparment of the financial asset. the gap between the carryig amount of tne finac a! asset and the current value
of the future cash flow of similar financial assets captalized according 1o the returns rato of the market at the same urre s recognized as impairment-related
fosses and recorded 1nto the profits and losses of the current period. The imparment-related ‘osses incurred to these fnancial assets, once recognized. are
hrough profis and loszes
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Where an equity instrument investment for which there is no quoted pnce in the active market and whose fair value cannot be relably measured. and
which is measured on basss of s cost according to Accounting Standards for Enterprises Na2 ~ Long-term Equrty Investment, its impairment is dealt with
using the above pnnciples.

Transfer of financial assets

.

Where the Group has transferred nearly all of the ersks and rewards related to the ownership of the nancial asset 1o the transferee. the Group stops
recognizing the financial asset If it has retained nearly al of the risks and rewards related to the ownership of the financial asset. it does not stop recognaing
the finacial asset.

Where the Group does not transfer or retain nearty all of the msks and rewards related 10 the ownership of a financial asset, ¢ deals with &t according
0 the circumstances s follows, respectively: if ¢ gives up its control over the financial asset, it stops recognzing the financial asset and recognizes the resuftant
assets and labiities. f it does not give up its control over the financial asset. 1t recognizes, acconding to the extent of s continuous involvement in the transferred
financial asset, the related financial asses and the relevant labilty accordingly.

Borrowing cost

The term “borrowing cost” refers to the interest and other costs incurred by the Group in connection with the borrowing of funds, including interests
on tization of or p on borrowings. ancilary expenses, and exchange differences on foreign currency bormowings.

The borrowing costs incurred 1o the Group which are directly atinbutable to the acquismon, construction or production of assets elgible for capraliza-
tion are capahzed, whie other borrowing costs are recorded in the current prots and losses. The term “assets eligible for capalzaton” refers 1o the fxed
assets. ivestment real estate. inventories and other assets, of which the acquisttion, construction and prodixtion takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for fts imtended wse or for sale.

The borrowing costs are not unless they satrsty the following requirements:
(1) The asset dsbursements have already incurred;
(2) The borrowing costs have already incurred; and
(3)  The acquisttion, construction or producbion actvities which are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have started
When the qualified asset under acqursiton and construction or producton is ready for the intended use or sale. the caprtalzation of the borrowing

costs shall be ceased. The borrowng costs mcurred after the Gualified asset under acquistion and construction or production ¢ ready for the intended use
are recorded into the profits and losses of the current penod.

During the period of caprtalization, the to-be-—capitalzed amount of interests in each accounting penod is determined according to the following pronsions:

(N Asfor loans, the to-be- amount of interests are determined in Iight of the actual ¢ost incurred of the specially borowed
loan at the present penod minus the Income of interests earned on the unused borrowing loans as a depostt in the bank or as a temporary nvestment.

(2) Where a general borrowng is used. the Group cakulates and determnes the to-be-capralized amount of interests on the general borrowing by muty-
plying the weighted average asset disbursement of the part of the accumulative asset dsbursements minus the general borrowing by the caprtakzation
rate of the general borrowing used.

Where the acquisition and construction or production of a qualfied asset 15 interrupted abnormally and the interruption penod lasts for more than
three months, the capttalizztion of the borrowing costs s suspended The bomowing casts incurred during such period are recognized as expenses, and are
recorded into the profits and losses of the current period. b1 the acqurstion and construction or production of the asset restarts.

Impairment of assets

Imparments of assets other than invertores. deferred income tax assets, financial assets, as well as long-term equity investment assets for which there
5 no quoted pnce in the actve market, whose fax value cannot be reliably measured and which s are measured on basis of their costs in the Group, are
measured following the principles as described below:

The Group makes a judgment an the day of balance sheet.on whether there & any sign of possible assets impairment Where any evidence shows that
there is possble assets impairment the recoverable amount of the assets shall be estmated and an nparment test is conducted. No matter whether there
15 any sgn of possble assets impaiment, the good will formed by the merger of emerprises and intangible assets with uncertain service kves 1s subject to
mparment test at the end of each year Such test 5 also corducted to intangibie assets that are not ready or its intended use

The recoverable amourt s determmined in light of the higher one of the net amount of the farr value of the assets minus the drsposal expenses and the
current value of the expectad future cash flow of the assets. The Group estimates, on the basis of singje tem asset. the recoverable amount Where tt is difficult
to co s0, the Group determines the recoverable amount of the group assets on the basis of the asset group to which the asset belongs The recognition of an
asset group 15 based on whether the main cash inflow generated by the asset group is independent of those generated by other assets or other group assets
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Where the measurement result of the recoverable amount indicates that an assets recoverable amount is lower than s carrying value, the carrying
value of the asset 1s recorded down to the recoverable amount. and the reduced amount is recognized as the loss of asset impairment and is recorded as the
profit or loss for the current period. Smuhaneously, a provision for the asset imparment 15 made accondingly.

When the Group makes an impairment test of assets, t apportions, as of the purchasing day. the carrying value of the good will formed by merger of
ernerprses to the relevamamgrwpsbyarusombleme:hodWhemilisdrfkuhlodoso,mxzppomonedtothedevzmwmbmmomohsmgmups.
The related asset group or combinaton of asset groups are the asset group or combinaton of asset groups that can benefit from the synergy efect of enter
prise merger. and are smaller than the reporting segments as detarmined by the Group.

When malking an imparment test on the relevant asset groups or combinauon of asset groups containing good will, f any endence shows that the im-
pairment of asset groups or combinations of asset groups is possible, the Group first makes an impairment test on the asset groups or combinations of asset
groups ot comaineng good will cakiulates the recoverable amount and recognizes the corresponding impairment loss Then the Group makes an impaxment
test of the asset groups or combinatons of asset groups containing good will and compares the carrying value of these asset groups or combinations of asset
8roups with the recoverable amount Where the recoverable amount of the relevant assets or combinatons of the asset groups 1s lower than the carrying
value thereof, the amount of the mpairment koss first charge aganst the carrying value of the headquarter” assets and good will whsch are apportioned to the
#5561 group o combinalion of asset groups. then charge it against the carrying vakse of other assets in proportion 1o the weght of other assets in the asset
group or combinason of asset groups with the good wik excluded

Once any of the above losses of asset imparment 15 recognized, & & not reversed in the future accounting penods.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets other than fnancial assets and deferred income tax assets meetng the following condtions are recognized by the Group as non-
current assets held for wale:
(1) Non-current assets which the Group has decided to dspose;
(2) Non<urrent assets on which the Group has signed uncancelable transfer comtacts with a transferee;
(3) The sud transfer is 1o be completed within a penod of one year

Non-current assets or a disposal set held for sale are measured in bght of the net amount of the farr value of the assets minus the disposal expenses,
but shall not excess the onginal book valve of the assets as meeting the condbons of non-current assets heid for sale Where the onginal value 1s higher than

net amount of the fair value of the assets less the disposal expenses, the balance s recognred as loss from asset imparment and is recorded into the proft
and loss of the current period

Estimated debts

The cbligation pertinent to a 8 [ gnized as debts when the foliowing are satisfied dta

(1) That oblgation is a current obigaton of the Group:
(2) s likely to cause any economic benefit to flow out of the Group as a result of performance of the obligation; and
(3) The amount of the obligaton can be measured in a reliable way.

The estimated debts are nibally rreasured in accordance with the best estmate of the necessary expenses for the performance of the current obliga-
Bon, while taking into full consideraton of the risks, uncertainty, time value of money. and other factors pertinent 1o the contingencies. The Group checks the
book value of the estmated debts on each balance sheet date. If there s any exact evidence indicating that the book value cannot really reflect the current
best estmate, the Group adjusts the book value in accordance with the current best estimate.

Revenue

Revenue :s recognzed when its relevant economic benefits may fow into the Group. when the relevart costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured
i1 a reluble way, and when the fllowing condrtions are met

Revenue from selling goods

No revenue from seling goods may be recognized unless the following condions are met smuttaneously: sgnficant nisks and rewards of ownership
of the goods have been transferred by the Group to the buyer; the Group retains nether continuous management nght that usually keeps relation with the
ownership nor effective control over the sold goods; and the refevant amount of revenue incurred or to be incurred can be measured in 2 rehable way The
Group ascertains the total reverue incurred by seling goods in accordance with the recenved or receivable price supulated in the contract or agreement signed
between the Group and the buyer. unless the received or recenvable amount as stipulated in the contract or agreement 5 unfair




O

Baoshan fron & Steel Co., Ltd.

L."\r‘rr—:r [ e — ,93

_— i -t -

Notes to the Financial Statements conunued
31 December 2009

RMB

22)

(23)

(24)

Revenue from providing labor services

If the Group s able to relably estmate, on the date of the balance sheet. the outcome of a transaction conceming the Labor servies it provides. t
recognizes the revenue from prowxding services employing the percentage-of<ompletion method. Otherwise, it rs recognized in accordance with the amourt
of the cost of labor services incurred and s expected to be compensated The outcome of a transaction concemning the providing of labor services can be
measured in a reliabie way means that the following condrbons be met smultanecusly. (1) the amount of revenue can be measured n a relable way. () the
reievant economic benefits are bkely to flow into the enterpnse; (3) the schedule of completon under the transacbon can be confirmed in 3 reliable way,
and (4) the costs incurred or to be incurred in the transaction can be measured in a relable way.The Group ascertans the schedule of completion under
the transaction corcerning the providing of labor services on the basts of the proportion of the costs incurred aganst the estmated total costs The Group
ascertains the total revenue from the providing of labor services in accordanke with the recerved or to-be-received price of the party that recerves the labor
services as supulated in the contract or agreement, un'ess the recerved or to-be-recenved pnce as stpulated n the contract or agreemest 1s unfar.

Where a contract or agreement signed between the Group and ancther party concems both selling goods and providing of labor services. the part of
sale of goods and the part of providing labor services are disbrgurshed from each cther and measured separately whenever 1t is possible. If the part of selling
800ds and the part of prowiding labor services can not be dsunguished from each other, or when the two can be dstinguished from each other but can not
be measured respectvely. they are conducted as sefing goods.

Interest revenue

The amount of iMerest revenue 15 measured and confirmed in accordance with the length of time for which the emterpnse’s monetary funds s used by
others and the actual interest rate.
Royalty revenue

The amount of royalty revenue 1s measured and confirmed in accordance with the: penod and method of charging as stpulated in the relevant contract
or agreement.
Lease revenue

The rents from operatng leases are measured and conSrmed by usng the straght-line method over each penod of the lease term Contingent rents
are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are actually incurred N

Government subsidies

Government subsicies are recognised where there s reasonable assurance that the subsidies will be recerved and all attachng condrions will be complied
with-Where a government subsidy 5 a monetary asset, ftis measured in the I:ght of the recerved or recervable amount, while # 1s measured at 1ts fair valye f L3
s non-monetary When its farr value cannot be obtained in a rellable way. it 1s measured at 1ts nominal 2mount Those subsides pertnent to incomes and used
for compensating the related future experses or losses are recognized as deferred income and inckided in the current profts and losses, while those used for
compensating the related expenses or losses incurred are directly included in the current profits and losses The govemnment subsides pertinent to assets are
recognized as deferred ncome, redeased over the expected useful kves of the relevant assets by equal annuaf instiiments, and included in the current profits
and losses. However, subsidies measured at their nominal amounts are directly included n the current profits and losses.

Leases

The term “finance lease” refers to a lease that has transferred in substance all the risks and rewards related to the ownership of an asset Leases other
than a financing ‘ease belong to “operating fease”
Leasces in operaung leases

The rents from operating leases are recorded by the lessee in the relevant asset costs or the profits and losses of the current penod by using the
straght-line method over each penod of the lease term. Contingent rents are recognized as an expense in the penod in which they are actually incurred.
Leasors in operating leases

The rents from operating leases are recorded in the profits and losses of the current persod by using the straght-ine method over each perod of the
lease term Conungent rents are recognized as an expense n the penod in whh they are actualy ‘ncurred

Employee compensation

The term ' employee compensation™ refers 1o all krds of payments and other relevant expenditures gven by the Group n exchange of the services
offered by the employees. Dunrg the accounting penod of an emp'oyee’ providing services 16 an enterprse, the Group recognuzes the cormpensation pay-
able as habilties Liabilftes are due over one year since the balance sheet date whose drsecunting amount are s:ignif.cant are presented in their current vaiues.
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The expendrtures of the Group on the employee’s medical insurance, insurance, insurance and other social insurances, as

(25)

well as housing accumu’abon fund, are recorded as assets coss or profits or kasses for the current penod.

When the Group cancels the labor relationship with any employee prior 1o the expirabon of the relevant labor contract or brings forward any compen-
sabon proposal for the purpose of encouraging the employee 1o accept a layoff, where the Group has formulated a formal plan on the cancellabion of abor
relatonship or has brought forwand a proposal on voluntary layoffl and will execute it soon and the enterprise 15 unabie to unilaterdly withdraw the plan on
the cancellauon of labor relationship or the layoff proposal. the Group recognizes the expected labil:es incurred due to the compensation for the cancelaton
of the labor with the employes, and records them nto the profit or loss for the curret period

The above prnciples of cancellaton of labor relationsh:p or the layoff proposal apply to internal retrement plan The compensation and socual nsurances
for the penod from the day the retiree stops serving the Group to official retirement date are recognized, when meeting the afore-mentoned conditons, as
payable employee compensation and recorded into the profit or loss for the current penod

Income taxes

Income taxes comprie income taxes of the current penod and deferred income tax of the Group The iIncome taxes, except for adusted good will due
1o business combinabon or income taxes refated to the transactions or events directly recorded in the owner’s nghts and interests recorded in the ownes's
rights and interests, are treated as INcome tax expenses or ;ncomes and recorded 116 the current profis and losses.

The amount of current or previous taxable mcome 1 cakulated according to the tax law prowvisions on the basss of pre-tax accounting profit of the
Group or amount to be returned in the penod.

The current income tax liabilibies (or assets) incurred in the current period or prior penods are measured in Iight of the expected payable or refundable
amount of ncome taxes according to the tax law.

Deferred income tax of the Group are cakulated by balarce sheet approach. on the basis of the dfference between the carrying amount of an asset
or habitty and rts tax base on batance sheet day as well as temporary ¢flerence between the tax base and the carrying amount of an ftem that has not been
recognzed as an asset or liabilty but ts tax base can be determined in ight of the tax law.

Except for the deferred income tax labiltbes ansing from the following transactions. the Group recognzes the deferved income tax liabilies arsing from
all taxable temporary dferances

(1) "l recognrbon of good wal or inibal recognrbon of assets or hiabxirses ansing from the following transactions which are simultaneousty featured by
the followng the transaction 15 not business combinaton and, at the time of transaction, the accounting profts wil not be affected, nor will the taxable
amount be afected.

(2)  The deferred income tax habirties anisng from the taxable terporary differences related to the mvestments of subsiciary companies, associated enterprises
and contractual enterpnses, while the imvesting enterpnse can control the time of the reverse of temporary dffferences and the temporary drfferences
are urlikely 10 be reversed in the exceptead future.

The Group recogn:zes the deferred income tax labikes arsing from a ceductible temporary d-fierence and deductible koss or tax deduction that can
be camed forward to the next year, to the extent of the amount of the taxable income which 1t 5 most likely 10 obtam and which can be deducted from the
deductble temporary difference. unless they incur in the following transactions

(1) This transaction 5 not busiess combinauon and, 2t the tre of transaction, the accounting profts will not be affacted. nor will the taxable amount be
affected ’

(2)  Where the dedLctible temporary difference related to the investments of the subsidiary companies, assocuted enterpases and jont enterprees meet the
following requirements simultaneously, the Group recogn zes the corresponding deferred income tax assets: the temporary differences are likely to be
reversed 1 tre expected future; and 1t is | kely 10 acquire any amount of taxable .ncome tax that may be used for making up the deductible temporary
difierences.

On the balance sheet day, the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax habiities are measured at the tax rae applkable 1o the penod during
which the assets are expected to be recovered or the liabilties are expected 10 be settied, which reflects the eflect of #he e>pectad asset recovery or hability
settlement method on the balance sheet day on the incone taxes

The carry ng amount of deferred income tax assets is reexamined on balance sheet day If tis unlikely to ottain sufficient taxable Income taxes to offsat
the beneft of the deferred income tax assets, the carrying amount of the deferred come tax assets 15 written down Wher 1 s probabie 2o obtain suffcient
table ncome taxes, such write-down amount 1s subsequently reversed. The Group reestimates the uaconfirmed de‘erred iIncome tax assets on balance
sheet day. the deferred income tax assets are confirmea within the Lm1 where 15 likely to obtain suffcent taxable income taxes to reverse all or part of
the ceferred income tax assets

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and ceferred tax | abirtes a~d the balarce c¢rsplayed if #t has a legaly enforceable rght 10 set off current tax as-
sets against curre~t tax hak

tes and if the deferred tax assets anc the deferred tax 1abilites melate to Income taxes are evied by the same taxation authority.
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(26) Significant accounting estimates
Unceruinties of accounting estimate

The following are uncertanties of future key hypotheses and estimates. which may lead to possible significant adpsstments in the amounts of annual assets
and habiles p: in the of the next g penod

Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets (except good will)

The Group determines on the balance sheet day whether ron<urrent assets other than financial assets are impaired. An impairment test 1s conducted
when there is evidence that the carrying value of a non-current asset other than financial asset cannot be recovered Where the recoverable amount of the
relevant assets or the asset groups is lower than the far value less disposal cost. the Group recognizes the impairment The esumate is made on basts of the
balance of the far valve and the cost of disposal less addttional cost attnbutable to the disposal of the said assets, with reference to negovated prxes or
observable market prices of similar assets in fair trad.ng Signdicant management udgment 1s required to determine the future amount of cash fiow and an
appropriate drscount rate is used for the future value of cash flow.

Deferred income rax assets

Delenvduxmnr«ogmzed‘onlw\useduxbmtomezxmmthnmspmbauemnuxzueproﬁvwlbemhbleagmr.mchmemzs
can be uthred. Segnifcam management judgment is required 1o determine the 2mount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely
trmung and level of future txable profits together with fiture tax planning strategies.

Bad debt provision

The alowance method is adopted for bad debt losses. An impairment test & made on an account receivable with signiseant sngle amount If any objective
endence shows that 1t has been impaired, the impairment-related losses are recognized according 10 the gap between the carrying amount of the recervable
and fts current value of the future cash flow and bad debt prowvisions are made. As for other receivables, bad debt provisions are made by the management
using the ageing analysis. a method which 1s used for recervables for whch no mmpairment has been recognized after a test

Prevision rates:
Prowsion rates for accounts recervable (%) Provision rates for other recaivables (%)
Withn | year 5% 5%
i-2years 30% 30%
2-3 years 0% 60%

Over 3 years 100% 100%
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Changes in accounting policies and accounung estimates
Changes in accounting policies

In the previous fnancil report, for long-term equrty investments measured by employing the cost method, the Investment income was recognuzed on
the basis of the amount received from the accumulative net profits that arose after the investad entity has acceptad the iInvestment Where the amourt of
profits or cash drvidends obtained by the investing entity exceeded the aforesaid amount, t was reganded as recovery of intial investment cost. In addition,
the investment income that was not retroactively modulatad on the basss of the cost method and recorded in long-term equity nvestment of subsidiaries
was imrted to accumulated net profit occurred after | january 2007 and the posrtve balance of the profit or cash dividend gained and the afore-mernboned
amount was wretten back as cost at the inal implement of the new standard.

The accounting pobcy has been changed since | january 2009 in accordance with “Interprewation of Enterprise Accounting Standards—Na 3" The net
profit fom invested entiies has no longer been dmded Mo two parts: that reaized before and afer the initial empioyment of the new standards (I January
2007). In the new practice, the investment mcome from long-term equrty investment by the const method is recognized on the baws of the dvidends or
profts declared to distribute by the invested entity, with the exception of the amount paid for the investment or the declared but undsstributed cash dvidends

or profits in the conswderabon The change has had no impact on the financial report of the Group, but has resu'ted in an increase of RMB 623.669.672 70 of
net profit in the Company’s statements.

Changes in accountng estimates

The useful lives of some of the machines and equipment for stainless steel products have been adjusted on the bass of results of on-ste evaluations.
The folowng new deprecuble lives and depreciation rate have been approved by the Board of Directors.

T
Betors After
Category Deprecable hife Depreciation rate | Depreciable bfe | Depreciation rate
Some of the machines and equipment for stamless steel production 915 years 64% - 10.7% 15 years 64%
The impact of the change upon financial report:
The Group
2000 Closing batance Impact of the change for the period Closing balance
before the change Pre-income tax | Impact of mcome tax Post-income tax afler the change
Undrstnibuted profit 22.260995982.52 42563991638 102.640.787 49 322999.1288% 22,583995.11141
Mnortty interest 6031030588 32 6421585712 12843.17142 51,372,685.70 608240327402
Toul 2829202657084 489.855.77350 11548395891 374371 81459 28.666.398,38543
The Company
Closing balance Impact of the change for the period Closing balance
before the change Pre-ncome tax | _Impact of income tax Post-income tax after the change
Undistnbuted profit 18.043.689.285.77 350.256.084 10 8756402103 26269206307 18.306.381.346 84
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3. Taxation

The applicable taxes and tax rates to the Group (overseas subsidiaries excluded) are as follows:

1.Vate-added tax The VAT s levied at the rate of 13% or | 7% of the taxable sales revenue less the deductible input tax.
2. Business tax 3% or 5% of the taxable sales revenue
3. Crty construcbon and maimtenance tax 19, 5% or 7% of actual turnover tax

4_Enterpnse income tax 25% of taxable revenue 4s stpulated in the Enterpryse Income Tax Law, which came imo eflect anuary 1.2008,

and other regulitions; Applicable tax rates for subsdiares according 1o thewr taxable revenue

S Rrver way adminstrabon charge
6. Property tax

7. Indmdual income tax

Based on appiicable rates set by the government

Based on appiicable rates set by the government accond.ng to entrded real estate

The Group withholds personal income tax on the salaries pard 1o indaiduals in ine with tax regulatons.

The taxations of overseas subsidiaries of the Group are based on the relevant kocal laws and regulatons on taxation




5

N e
Baoshan Iron & Steet Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements ontinued)
31 December 2009

L anE N e WV LT DR

93,

RMB
4. Scope of Consolidated Financial Statements
Major subsidanes
Subsdianes obtained through combination under same control
Reg.stered
Subsdary Piace Catogory  Industry caprtal  Businesses Organizaton
{thousand)

Py
Lubao Seeel Tubes Yaran LUC  Mitiaunng  RMB 100000 roducton & silesof 16503431 . 2

steef tubes

. Production & sales of

Huangshs Coating & Galvanizing Huangshi UC  Minulactunng  USD 8000 gahanized sheets 61543578 0
Baostee! Imternanonal Shangha uc Steel rading RMB 2248879 Steel tradng 13221289 - X
Mehan Steel Nanjog Lc Mianuactunng  RMB 6256570  Steel processing & sales 13487285 - 9

Processing & mates of
Ningbo Bao)jz\ Ningbo uc Manufactunng RMB 2.848.380 comd-rolled staniess sheets 61027433 .2
Baosght SoRware Shanghai Lc m RMB 262,244 Software development 60728059 - 8
Baosteel Amenca Texas USA uc Steel trading uso 980  Steel trading Not applicable
Howa Tradng Tokyo. Japan uc Steel rading PY 876,000  Steel trading Not appicable
Baosteel Europe Hamburg, Germany uwc Steel trading EUR 2050 Steeltrading Not appicable
Baosteel Sngapore Singapore uc Steel trading SGD 1,500 Steeltrading Not applcable
Bao-sand Enterpnse Hong Kong uc Steel trading HKD 1,000  Steel trading Not applcable
Baostee! Brazil Trading Ro de : uc Steel trading usD 980  Steel trading Not applxcable

- Producton and sales of
2 .

Baosteel Chern_al Shangha uc Manufactunng RMB 2,110040 1 products 13223068 - 4

Gas supply & inspection,
No.5 Steel Gas Shanghai uc Manufacturing RMB 127718 nsullaton & sales of gas 63083656 - 6

— generauon equipment

Firance. Co Shanghai HC  Fnance ’RMB 500000 Francal & foregn exchange 13220090 - |
Nanong Steel Namong uc Manufacturing RMB 620532 Steel processing & sales 60830768 - 4
Subsdunes obma:ned through esabishment or investment
Special Metal Shangha: UC  Steeltrading RMB S0000  Steel safes 79452819 . 9
Baoyw Tubes Yeing wc Manulactunng RMB 200000  Steel tube production & sales 66325688 - 3
Yantao Baosteet Yamai uc Manufacturing RMB 2000000 Stee! tbe production & sales 66350514 . 9
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RMB

Major subsidianies

Subsrdianes obtained through combination under same control

Amount vested as

Percentage Voting power

Share in mnonty
Consolidation  Equity of minornty  interests to offset

atthe end of period ofshare  percentage i the report (thousand) 10ss6S N Minority
thousand) Irerests

Lubao Sieel Tubes RMB 79.620 1982% 7982% Yes 156800

Huangshs Coating & Galvanaing USD 3150 93 Note! Yes 4251

Baostee Internatoral RMB 2248879 100% 100% Yes 773863

Meishan Steel RMB 4.630,621 7401%  7400% P 2875653

Ngbo Baoxn RMS 1538125 Sa% sa% Yes 845382

Baosgrt Sofware ; RMB 145545 555% $55% ves 433738

Baosteet Amenca UsD 980 100% 100% Yes

Howa Trading PY 876000 100% 100% Yes

Baosteel Europe Euro 2050 100% 100% Yes 58146 T
“Baosteel Smgapore SGD 1500 100% 100 Yes -

Bao sund Erterprise HD 1 000 100% 100% Yes T
Baostee! Brazi Tradmg USD 980 100% 100% Yes o
“Saostee! Chemical T RMB 2110040 100% 100% Yes 194627

No. 5 Steel Gas RMB 127718 100% 100% Yes

Frarce. Co RMB 310500 % e Yes 575898 T
Narttong Steel ' RMB 594582 9582% 9582% Yes 3511

Subsidunes obtained through establishment or investment
“Specal Meut RM3 50000 % 100% Yes

BiopnTubes RM3 130,000 5% 6% Yes 69527

Vartao Baosteel T RMB 2000000 100% 100% Yes

Note 1:  Acoording 10 the charter of Huangshi Coating & Galvanizing. the Company hokis 39 37% of the equity capital of Huangshi Coating &
Gavanizing but controls more than hat of the voting power in the Board of Directors. Accorcingly, Huangshi Coating and Galvanizing is

consokcated.

The scope of the consoldated financul statements is basically the same with that of the previous year with the exceptions of a new subskdiary set
up by Baosteel International and a subsidiary disposed by Baosight Software.

Exchange rates used in the financial statements for overseas entrues:

Average exchange rate Exchange rate at end of perod
2009 2008 2009 2008
usb 68314 706% 8282 68346
Euro 9728 10,1630 97971 9659
P ! 00747 00699 07378 007565
BRL T 34539 35446 39549 29529
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RMB
5. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(n Monetary caprai
T
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Onginal curency Rate | RMB equivalent | Original curency Rate| RMB equivalent
Cash
T 135993440 197948227
Depost with banks ’
—R™B 2679.10085300 391359002515
—usp 23835981432 68282| 1627.568484.14 19357100905 68346| 132298041844
v 164989253822 | 007378|  12172907147| 34815599974 007565| 2633800138
—Euro 2509632837 97971 24587123868 2398851667 96590| 23170508249
—rKD 166677781" 08805 146759786 | 08819 -
—Other currencies : P 3349522138 5119964808
4709.23246653 554581317554
Other monetary captal
a8 1349050605 o 1799085708
Depost reserve i centrai bank by Finance Co - 83419324593 1285820859 65
Toul 555827615291 6851,604.37454
Less Monetary capral other than cash and
cash equivaier _ ~ e
FM::'C’:“ reserve in central bank by 83419324593 1285820859 65
Cash 4724.082.906.98 | 5565 783514.89

Foreign currency translation rates adopted are: | USD for 68282 RMB (Year 2008: 6.8346 RMB), | ;PY for 0.07378 RMB (Year 2008 0.07565 RMB):

1EURO for 9.7971 RMB (Year 2008 9 6590RMB). | HKD for 0.8805 RM3 (Year 2008  0.8819 RMB)

Interests from current deposts are measured on basss of bark interest rates or interest rate as agreed upon between a bank and the Company

8y 31 December 2009. a total worth of RMB 1,557.960.027.69 (31 December 2008: RMB 1.267.317.960.51) of monetary caprtal were deposited

in overseas banks.

By 31 December 2009, other forms of monetary captal of tne Group censist of a credit card depostt of RMB 2,694,566 80.an acceptance bil depost
of RMB 8.921.142.55. and an officer’s cheque and credt depostt of RM3 1,701,327.34
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued
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RMB
Q@) Funds lent to financial institutions 1
2
31 December 2009 31 Dacember 2008 K
Ongeul value 30242.30000 3025090000 4
Induding: Funds lent to institutions other than banks 30.242.30000 30.251.90000 “
Provision for loss (30.242.300.00) (30251 90000) 7
Totat 2
B
Funds lent to financual insttutions refer to funds Finance Co. has lent to commercial banks or other financial insttutes Finance Co lert n 1997 RMB i
20,000,000 00 and USD 1,50000000 (an equivalent of RMB 10.242,300.00 as at 31 December 2009 and RMB 1025190000 as at 31 December 2008) 1
to China Huacheng Finance Compary The No.2 Imermediate Peopie’s Court of Shanghai Municipality sealed up an equity of RMB 58.000.00000 that the 12
guarantor Huacheng Investment Company had heid in Huafang Joint Stock Co. Ltd. in August 2001, but the fund has not been trarsferred to the Finance 1”?
Co.50 far. who has made a ful provision for the fund len. for which chance of recovery seems rather slim The increase or decrease in provision for the 14
loan loss for the year was a result of change in USD exchange rate. 15
15
3) Transactional financial assets :7
?
19
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 20
Transactional bond nvestment - 208.183.567.20 21
Transacbonal equrty nstrument investment 4147301920 . 27
Dervative fnancal assets : 11459875075 24
Trarsacvonal fund invesiment 115,024049.15 618.382.840.90 2%
Crhers 389.880,000 00 - 25
Toul 546.377.068.35 1.141,165.158.85 a7
2%
The management of the Company beliaves that there exists no sigrvficant obstacle in the realization of rs transactonal financial asset investment. 29
W
(4) Note-receivables :l
33
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 24
Trade acceptance 1.823396.528.12 79214986077 33
Bank acceptance 4.850,855,25593 370896228361 3
Total 667425178405 4501.112,14438 17
3
Asat 31 December 2009, total book value of RMB 1,597.793,646.17 (3| December 2008: RMB 692,587,730.76) of the bank acceptance was being B
mortgaged for a short term mortgage loan of RMB 1,597.793,646.17 (31 December 2008: RMB 692.587.73076). 40
ai
The five rotes recevable with largest sums mortgaged (for short term loans) as at 31 December 2009 * 44
43
Issung Entity Date Date due Amount jf
Baosteel Resource 16 October 2009 16 Aprd 2010 39052684887 6
Baosteel Resource 24 November 2009 23 May 2010 194.508.172.13 47
Baosteel Resource 23 December 2009 22 june 2010 180,691,533 86 48
BNA |5 Decemoer 2009 15 January 2010 100,00000000 4[’
BNA 15 Decermver 2009 29 January 2010 10000000000 54
963726554 86 2
. A
As at 31 December 2009, there were no notes recervable due from any shareholder hokding 5% or more of the Company’s shares or voting power [
(same as by 31 December 2008). 33
3¢
A7
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Trade-receivables

The credtt penod of notes receivable 1s usually one month and notes recevable are not interest beanng

Age:ng analysis of the trade recenvables.

31 Decernber 2009

31 December 2008

Wrthun | year 5.628978.700.95 5375221504 77
1.2 years 16822966347 95035.38703
2.3 years 36.660937.97 24.330.705.88
Over 3 years 150,743,183.00 16463122032
5.984.612.485 39 5.659219.21800
Less bad deb? provssion for trade-recenables 418.325206 24 390028.336 21
Toul 5566.287.279.15 5.269.190.881.79
Changes in bad debt provision for trade-receivables
2009 2008
Opening balarce 39002833621 43348246337
Provsion for the year 253512075 16 9740199561
Reversal in the year (228,562,186 63) (106405815 20)
Transfer-out due to disposal of subsdares o ’ (17956050

Wirtting-off (1.81871583) (33.301.855.67)
Writing-off recovered 5059.108 66 .
Foregn cumency transtaton diflerence 10656867 (368891 40)
Closing baince 41832520624 39002833621

31 Decernber 2009

31 Decomber 2008

Book value | Porcentage I Bad debt provision | Book value | Percontage | Bad debt provision
Recervable with signcant single amounts 155070720699 26% 165.649.716 56 ! 1.729.623 64459 3% 158440967 17
Recervable wrih insignificant angle amounts '
401 . 2 9,595 % 1587369
oot with ¢ rable credit nsk 443390527840 : 74% 25 67548968! 392959557341 69% 231587.369.04
598461248539, 100% 4I8.325.20624i 5.659.219.21800 100% ' 39002833621
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RMB
Provisions for bad debts for receivables with significant single amournts and those with insignricant amounts but subjected to independent impairment 1
tests as at 31 December 2009, 3
1
Carrying amount 8ad debt provison Provision rate Reasons 1
Trade receivable with large sums 145795525308 7289776265 5% Notel 5
.
Trade recenable wah longer ages 927519539 92,751,95391 100% Note2 -
1.550.707.206. 9% 165649.716 56 B
Notes: 1. The provision rate tor notes receivabie with an gge no more than One year, for which no evidence is found for possibie dficutty in "
recovering, is 5%. 10
1
2. A 100% provision is preperad for notes with longer ages and cificulties in recovering. 12
. ik
Prowisions for bad debts for recervables with significant single amounts and those with insigrvficant amounts but subjected to independent impair- 14
ment tests as at 31 December 2008: 135
- 1%
Camyng emount Bad debt provison Provision rate Reasons 17
Notes recenable with large sums 1,653.876.502.54 82693,825.12 5% Notel 1%
9
Notes receivable wth longer ages 75.747,14208 75.747,14205 100% Note2 I~.)
P
1729623644 59 158440.967.17 2
Notes: 1. The provision rate for notes recavabie with gn age PO more than one year, for which no @wdence @ found fox possible difficutty in 2
recoverning, is 5%. 23
2. A 100% provision is prepared for notes with longer ages and ditficutties in recovering. :
2
26
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 7
Total of top five debts 145795525308 165387650254 <P
9
Ratio against total receivable 24% 2% L,
Debt duraton Within | year Within | year i
u
As at 31 December 2009, a total book value of RMB 600.000.000 00 of trade-recervables was being mortgaged for a short term loan of RMB 31
600,000.000.00 by means of bank guarartee. a4
As at 31 December 2009, the balarce in the account included a total debt of RM8 16,225,115.48 (31 December 2008: RMB 8,433405.29) of ‘:
it
shareholding institutes or affhated parties who own 5% or more of the Comparry’s shares or voting power: Refer to Note 6."afflated party relation- ey
37
ships and transactrions”, for detads. 2
39
0
41
4
43
44
EX]
26
47
48
Yy
an
3
L2
A%
4
<5
N3
A7
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) Payment in advance
31 December 2009 31 Decomber 2008

Book value Percentage (%) Book vale Peroentage (%)
Within | year 359289551580 88% 454990922479 9%
12 years 48479739553 12% 3840021131 1%
2-3 years 17901937.13 967605993
Over 3 years 3770327.33 282181745
Total 4.099.365,175.79 100% 4.600.807,31348 100%

As at 31 December 2009, there was no payment in advance due from any sharehokder holding 5% or more of the Company’s shares or votng

power (same as by 3| December 2008).

As at 31 December 2009, large sums of payments in advance with ages over than one year were mainly made to pay for large equipment,

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

Total of top fve debts 1.392038.121.52 775554.487.73
Ravo against total recevable 34% 17%
Debt durabon Wirthin | year Within | year
7 Interests recevanle
2009
Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
Interests recenable 14.759.478.14 196906,237.65 (205.96362653) 570208926

The ages of utterests recenvable in the Group were all within one year as on the balarce sheet date.

(8) Other recevables

Ageing analysis of other recevables s as

follows

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

Withen | year 698.957.470.89 654 .489,539.70
1.2 years 29268489.29 B4.34821385
2.3 years 47.416,854.04 289471430
Over 3 years 133339.456 81 137.146015. 45
. 90898227103 87887848330
Less:bad debt provision for other-recervables £55,125,16275 142663855 66
Totat 753.857.10828 736214627 64
Charges in provision for bad debts of other receivables are as llows:
2009 2008
Open'ng batance 142,663.855 66 14824447022
Provsion for the year 2581804581 566849347
Reversal in the year (12.46692592) (6.82887272)
Transfer-out due to disposal of subsxuries (348990.70)
Writng-off (889.812.80) (407124461)
Closing balance 155.125.16275 142,663855.66
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RMB
31 Decsmber 2009 | 31 Decarmber 2008 !
Book vae | Percentage | Bao cebt provison| _ Book vaue | Percentage | Bad devt provsion
Receivabie with sgnfcart single amourts 59622955198 66% 12382851035 58128144812 6% 11757220850
Recenable with insgricant single amourts but H
| ! 2 7.
o et T 31275271905 34% 3129665240, 29759703518 4% 2509164716 —
[ “sossezazi03]  woox|  issusie27s] erssreasszo 100% 14266385566 7
8
Provisions for bad debts for receivables with signricant single amounts and those with insignificant amounts but subjected to independent mparment tests T

as at 31 December 2009

Bad debt

Camying amount Provision rat s 12
myng ul provision VIS0 1 Reaso! .
Crher recenvables with large sums. 472401.041.63 - 0% Note | 14
Other recervables with longer ages 12382851035 12382851035 100% Note 2 15
596.229.551.98 12382851035 ';
Notes: 1. Provisions wers not prepared for bad debts due 0 the fact these estimates wem for customs deposits and input VATs of affiiated h
transactions, which have very low risk in recovering. 10
2. A 100% provision is prepased [or Notes with longer ages and ddficutties in recovering. a0

21
Provisions for bad debts for other receivables with sgnificant single amounts and those with insignificart amounts but subjected to independent impaimment a2
tests a5 at 31 December 2009 2%
24
Bad gebt . 23
Camying amount orovson Provision rate Reasons %
Other receimables with Lirge sums 46370923962 . 0% Note | 27
23
COrher recenabies with longer ages 117572.20850 117,572208 50 100% Note 2 ‘“_
25
581,281 44812 117,572,208 50 W)
Notes: 1. Provisions were not prepared for bed debls due 10 the fact these estimates were for customs deposhs and nput VATs of affisated SL
transactions, which have very low nsk in recovering. Q2
2. Aful emount of provision was prepared due to the age as well as the difficulty in recovenng. 4
33
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 3
Toul of top bve debts 47240104163 4637092301 7
22
Rano aganst total other recevables 52% 53% 3y
Debt duraton Within 2 years Within | year an
4
As at 31 December 2009. the balance in the account did not include debts of sharehoiding insttutes or afStated parties who own 5% or more of 4l
the Company’s shares or voting power (same as by 31 December 2008) 43
44
4%
44
47
44
49
sy

3
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Inventories
31 December 2009 31 Dacember 2008
Raw material 9.360,371,80298 14.15333321522
Work in progress 8738,985.35148 1047202733607
Finshed products 7.993,194.30830 12.802.185.768.54
Spare parts and others 443026295072 412152225455
30522.814.45348 41,549.068574.38
Less: provisons for reductions in the value of nventones 1.060.643,070 06 5.9504.477.698.64
29.462.17138342 35.644,59087574
Changes in provisions for inventories in the penod are as follows:
Raw matenal  Work in progress  Finished products Spare mr:;rz Total
Opening baance . 2.589.822.791 60 1299.776,259 80 1933,552.165.06 81326482 18 530447769864
Provision in the year 10431920017 45400269296 28993488291 2071476844 868971.544.48
Reversal in the year (97874.11406)  (181052.32795)  (1278.23443506) (386853823) (1561029415 30)
Witing-off in the year (2530344.764.80)  (1.111,729.22258) (508.822.798 66} (129642837)  (4.152.193.21441)
Foregn currency transition difference 41645665 41645665
Closing bance 659231129 460.997.40223 43684627090 96876284 02 106064307006
Provisions for invertories in the year
Basis for provision for Reason for reversal of provision for Ratio of reversed sun againgt

decling n value of nventory

aecing in vaue of invontory

closing balance of inventory

Raw material

Lower avermory cost than net reaizable Rise n market price 105%
Work i progress Lower nventory cost than net reakzable Rise in mariet prce 2.19%
Finghed products Lower inventory cost than net reatzable Rsse in market pnce 1692%
Spare parts and others Lower inventory cost than net reakzable Rise in'market pnce 0.08%

Loans granted and cash advarxes

31 Decernber 2009

31 December 2008

Loans 3.182373.101.13 1.886,746.00000
Drscount 974953892 17 28,127.09268
Prowsion for loss of borrowngs {25.050.000.00) (7.120.000.00)
Towal 4.132276993.30 1907.753092.68
Changes in provisions for loss of short term-. mediem- and long-term bormowings:
2009 2008
Opening balance 7.12000000 4.600.000.00
Provision for the year 17.930.00000 2.520,000.00
Closing balance 25.050.000.00 7.120.000.00
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RMB
(n Financial assets available for sale 1
:
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 N
Firanaal bonds avalable for site 10,35392000 43972000000  °
B
Equety Instruments available for sale 1015.666.601.34 400462 984.66 “
Others 30,000.00000 20000.000.00 7
Toul 105602052134 860,182.984.66 L
9
Long:-term bond investments avadable for sale: 10
11
Annual Intal Interests  Accumutated or 12
Book value rate  investrment cost Date cue ntheyear receveaimerests 0SNG DA I3
Corporate bond  10,000,00000 480% 10.000.00000 6juty 2010 480,000.00 192000000 10,35392000 1
15
15
(12) Long-term equity investments 17
1=
Incluaing: Cash 19
1 1 !
31 Decemnber 2008 ncrease Docroase rocoveq 3! December 2009 y
Cost method 938490.67040 - 938490670 40 2
Equity method 290306446169 38407003746 © (25.73799523) (25.737.99523) 326139650392 28
Equity transferred from ofd system trade 794948918 7949489 18 f )
nght due 10 non-tradable share reform 24
384950462127 38407003746  (25.737.99523) 4.207836.663.50 a3
2
Less mparment provisions for long-term 72246764 72246764 -
equrty investments 7
384950462127 38334756982 (2573799523 4207.114.195.86 2
24
W
0] Long-term equity investments measured on basis of cost method 3
2
Percentage Current  Provision for 13
1 1 December 2009 31 December 2008 3
nvesiess of equity %) ° 3 per dwvdend impaiment
8aovale Myung Co., Ltd Note 50 103,282.21300 103.28221300 1934171245 15
Tarywan Baoyuan Mechica! Industry Co. Ltd. 15 9,000,000.00 9,000,000 00 1.500,000.00 R
CISDI Engneenng Co., Ld 8 9.508999.34 9.508.999.34 748604293 7
3
Jinchwan Group Automaton Engreerng Co Ltd 7128 1.000.000 00 1,000000.00 -
Dandong Hanma Refractonness Co, Ltd 20 20.000,000 00 20.000,00000 831.656.76 an
2Zhongpmg Ivestment Consutancy Stock Co, Lid s 3.000,000.00 300000000 666024.47 a1
Hanyang Components Co. Ltd 20 331172000 3.311.72000 ‘f
4
Anhu Muishang Co., Ltd 353 3.000.000.00 300000000 44
Henan Longyu Energy Co., Ltd 1296 370.269.254.56 37026925456 6563991136 43
Shanghai Luojing Minng Port Co. Ltd 12 88.734.096 00 88.734.09600 8056.841.32 46
Yongsmei Group Co. Ltd. 10 279,000,000 00 279.00000000 9926219300 :Z
Henan Zhenglong Coal Co, Ltd 491 45569.71427 45.569.71427 9
Guangzhou Huiren Auto Service Co.Ltd 15 21592323 21592323 $6443 17 36
China Resources Land Limeed (3eging) 009 161875000 161875000 93,12000 51
Others Insgnicant 98000000 980,00000 2100000 f;
B
Totat 938490,670.40 93849067040  202232477.84 72246764 34
Note: As the Company does nat exert actual control or significant influence over the operating policies and financial decisions of Baovaie Mining Co., 58
N3

consicered 'ong-tem eauity investment and measured on bass of cos: method.
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O] Long-term equity investments i1 joint ventures measured on basis of equity method
Ratio sganst . Invesiment cost
Initral amount of .
registered Total addtion of Increase/(decrease) tnvestment cost
[

mested company - Duration capnal of 'mm investment Mranster-ot 31 December 2009

invested due to disposal
BNA 20 years 50% 1.500.000,00000 1.500,000.000 00
Bao-lsand Erterpnse  Long.term 50% 143,084,132 00 143.084,132.00
Nagara Machinery 20 years Note 50% 12372143929 109.080.14798
Shipping-Baosteel 20 years 50% 99.965.000 00 99.965.00000
- 1852.12927998

1.866.770571.29

Note: The net kss of Niagara Machinery was recognized on basis of its book value of kong-term equity and other factors that impact on
its long-term equity and the imit was a balance of zero, because the Group does not bear responsibiility for extra kosses of Niagara
Machinery in line with its charter. The Group's accumuated unrecognized investment losses as at the end of 2008 totaled RMB
2.578.521.08. As the Company discontinued operations in the reported period, s shareholders’ equity remained unchanged.

(in) trvestments on associates measured on basis of equity method

Ratio aganst Investrrent cost

invested dus to d.sposal
STAL Precsion 50 years 4000% 122.00454193 129.452.880.00 251,457,42193
Weidng Co 20 years 3800% 46,170,000 00 34200.00000 80.370,000.00
Remwer Software 20 years 3% 513159100 513159100
Hewrun Pingbao 50 years. 40.00% 120.000.00000 200.000.000 00 120,000,000 00 320.000.00000
Tianjin BCM 50 years 4000% 5600000000 $6.000.000.00
Baopang Shuppng 20 years 4000% 1600000000 16,000,000 00
Waxi Baoma 50 years  Note 5100% 32522976 15 32.522976.15
Zhongyou Baoshun 30 years 3500% 191250983 191250983
399.741.61891 363.652.880.00 120.000,000.00 763.394.49891

Note:  As at the balance sheet date, the investment from the Group accounts accounted for 51 per cent of the total of Wuxi Baomit and
hatf of the directors on fts board were from the Group. The board was chaired by ore of the directors appointed by Mitsui & Co.
Ltd. In accordance with the articles of Wuxd Baomit. the chaiman has the final say when votes for and against a decision are equal
in number and a decision i3 impossibie on basis of the articles. As a result, Wuxi Baomit has been considered an associate of the
Group and measured on basis of the equity method.

Where the equity method of accounting 1s adopted, there is no significant difference in the accountng polkies of the Group and s associates and
joint ventures and no sigrviicant imits exdst reganding cash reafization and investment income repatriation from these long-term investments.
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Baoshan tron & Steel Co., Ltd. . LRI -
Notes to the Financial Statements Continuedi
3| December 2009 .
RMB
1
Adjustment of equity 3
. Investment preparation Investment in
Crangeinprofi  Ceshdwidend  Transfer-out °‘2‘n°:‘;’n"°zs'; noomse  Transfor-out ot ventues
and 10ss in the year received  duetodisposal, 4 9 2008 oueto  |O@IMNCrEAse’ 31 December 2009 ¢
in the yeer disposal gecrease 7
12356174991 14361242719 70.750.00 - (@295639234) 164065603485  *
9
77.284981.70 . - 385.410456.35 (381.164.60) - (4454249925) 483952,089.10 : ,
N\
(109.080.147.98) . 1
99.965.000.00 12
20084673161 - - 419.942.735.56 (310414.80) - (4749889159) 2.224573.12395 B
14
13
14
17
1%
19
p
2
Adpustment of equty b
21
Investment preparaton Investment in 2
Totalchange n <
Change nproft  Cash dwdeno Transter-out Increase/  Transter-out associates o
gan and loss T a5
and 1035 N the year receved  duetodisposal . 2000 decreass dueto o9 Z‘:cw 31 December 2009 2
0 1he year aisposal 27
4270553353 (5465920.00) 227.069.385.18 3.749.28 . 40.509.70 478567.71681 2%
1349224413 . . 9.124,327.59 - . 162,744.17 89.657071.76 a4
111507.79 . . (1643344 75) E . R 348824625 e
3
79.744.34 . . (43.176.34) . 319.956.823.66 9
49359036 : (9.486,87324) . - 224000000 48.753,126.76 3z
5.503871.72 (5275441 53) . 1122064256 - - 579.303.72 2779994628 4
114246534 (14996633.70) . 34,153496 65 . . . 6667647280 -;“
i
101416 . . 1146582 . . . 192397565 ,7'
6352997137 (5.73799523) 27040592347 374928 . 302295759 1036,823.37997 i
1y
40
41
42
a3
44
KE
an
a7
44
a4
[y
3
Se
31
34
33
. e
<7
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd

Notes to the Financial Statements continued:

31 December 2009
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(v) Financial iIfformation of joint ventures and associated entites

Baosteel NSC/Arceior Automotve Steel Sheets Co, Ltd. (BNA)

Niagara Machinery Products Co . L1d. (Nugara Machinery)
Shanghai STAL Precsion Stamdess Steel Co. Ltd. (STAL Precison)

Shanghai Remwer Software Co ,Ltd (Renwe: Software)
Tiann BCM Distnbubon Co., Ltd. (Tanjin BCM)

Wuxi Baomt Steel Processng and Delivery Co., Ltd (Wuxi Baomit)

Bao-kland Enterprse Co. Ltd. (Bao-istand Enterprise)

Shangha China Stipping-Baosteel Steet Processing Cp., Ltd. (Shipping-Baosteel)
Shanghat Baostee! & Arcetor Laser Weiding Company Ltd (Wekiing Co)

Heinan Pingbao Coat Co, Ltd (Heinaa Pingbac)
Shanghai Bacjang Shippng Co. Ltd. (Baojang Shipping)
Shanghai Zhongyou Baoshun Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (Zhongyou Baoshun)

Joint venturas
Regstered  Percantage
Typo :;::' :L:g;lsemalw Business Cumency lm?sz":,' of ?;Z pztcv::gn::
BNA UC  Srangrai Dai Zhinao Manoticturing RMB 3000000 0% 0%
Bao-idand Enterprse  LLC Hong Korg Not apphcable Shp durtenng HKD 3.300 S0% 50%
Nagira Machnery  LLC  Orario Canada Not spphcable | Manufactunng cAD 17500 S0% 0%
Shpping baosteel  LLC Stanghai ZhangYong Manutacturing RMB 199930 0% 0%
Associates
nt
Type :;13‘ 'L:ga:se Matve Business Currency 399;2:; pet:feequa?; p\:;?g‘zgewg
thousand
STALPrecson  LLC Stanghai oe Wei Manufactunng UsD 6560 0% 0%
Weking Co WC Stanghn Hou Xiangdorg  Mamubictumng RMB 211500 8% 38%
Rerwes Software  LLC  Shanghar Song funhar T UsD 1,500 4133% 41.33%
Henan Pingbao e Xuchang ChenJansheng  Mining RMB 800,000 0% 0%
Tanyn BCM UC  Tamn Pan Zhn on & steel wadng  RMB 140,000 0% 0%
“Bacyang Shpprg LLC Shanghar Yan Hepng Trarsportavon RMB 40000 0% 40%
Wioa Baomet uc  wa Ogwara Shnchi _Iron & stee tradeg, | USD 7700 SI% Refer to Note (i)
Zhoogrou Baoshun  LLC  Shanghar U Ruoping Manufictunng RMB 5000 5% 3%
As at end of 2009 As at ond of 2009 2009 Annual 2009 Annual
Towal assets Total kabilities Busness revenue Net proft
Joint ventures
Bao-Istand Enterprse 1392.898.174.40 41696403300 68231471320 154569.96340
BNA 5.122,601.046 44 170570748290 893897384226 17933275314
Nugara Maghinery 137.545399.43 14270444160
Shpping Baosteel 19993000000
Tou! 685297462027 126537595750 962128855546 33390271654
Associates
STAL Precison 141240993038 21599063836 71045829168 10676383383
Welding Co 542,590439.42 306,605.776 88 57650211320 3550590561
Rerwe: Software 934642410 50643802 1423276013 26979867
Henan Pingoio 1754.367.10842 954475.049.26 19936085
Taryn BCM 20024679776 78363.98087 24001527317 123397590
“Baoyang Shppig 8038927895 1088941325 107236460 33 13759679 30
Wiz Baomet 469.153.441 87 33841525991 79623618655 224012812
Zhongrou Baoshun 556007524 6390195 289760
Toul 4474064296 14 190571035850 244468108506

159.975.579 88




Baoshan lron & Steel Co.. Ltd. SN T
Notes to the Financial Statements «Continuedi
31 December 2009
RMB
(13) Irvestment red estates )
Subsequert measurement is made on basis of cost method
4
Houses and buikings <
Ongnat prces
| pouary 2009 0398202238
Trarster from foad assets 71232156 :
31 December 2009 20469434394 )
Accumulated deprecaton & amortzation L
I fanary 2009 6722723037 :i
Accrual 627959687 T
Transfer from foed assets 652.199.45 13
31 December 2009 74.159.026.69 e
ook e i s
31 December 2009 13053531725 19
I January 2009 136,754.79201 2
The management of the Company belreves no provision was needed for impaiment of the investment on real estates on the balance sheet date il
23
24

a3
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Baoshan lron & Steel Co.. Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements ontinued

31 December 2009

RMB
(14) Fixed assets
Houses and Mechanical Transponghon Office and othar Total
buidings equpment vehcles equipment

Orignal prce:

1 Jaraary 2009 4601963625010 148678468607 16 1618424760563 1504525172042 225927604183 31

Purchases 5931876014 29612315539 113:857.256.40 8075857220 550067744 13

Transter from consructon-nprogress 726168542785 BOI4737A35A2 135443712649 278767904623 19.419.539.03559

Re.cassdeation 7673349482 (1400,120.17248) 4950839095 127387828671

Purchase from associates 264686.10 264.686.10

Sates 10 assocutes (241156277 (2029.17841) (4440.741.18)

Drsposs (408.11357343)  (1DA2897.12505)  (O7TO239.11)  (34437047457)  (189308357216)

Amount ransierred 1o real estate (712321 56) @1232156)

Otrer reducvons (3130201069)  (125891.71244) (670213219)  (12605502061)  (28995087593)
" Diterence n foregn currency transizton (2625939.20) 14850037 (6087517 (10927596 @747.58996)

31 December 2009 5297321852526  IS4418439.50996 1759758497300 1871729754052 2437065405487
Accurmuhited deprecation.

1 Janwary 2009 1733856612397 7618041377774 1230784160483 1086094B.19157  116687.769.698 11

Proveson o the year 233906528354 761873096977 137556021449 172871802034 13062074488 14

Re.dasseaton (52891783)  (514567.22394) 2256619558 492529946.19

Purchase from assocates 25338340 25338340

Sales 10 assoqutes (1902451.53) (159290081) - (349543234
T Wrangoff (251894041 64)  (B69.557.149.72) (F148757195)  (32162165443)  (153456041774)

Amount transferred 10 real estate (652.199.45) (652.19945)

Other reducvons (8861957) (2011833530 (88513 61) (44593507)  (1164140355)

Diference in foregn currency transiation (B4337745) 33.18006 (4929383 78.75999) (93825121)

31 December 2009 1942152180004 8239334223780 1361364263551 1276030319201  128,188.809.865 36
Net fred asset

31 December 2009 3355169672522 7202509727216 398394231749 595699434851 115517.730683.38

1 Jamary 2009 28681070.12613 7149805482942 31B7640600080 418430352885 109239.83448520
Prowsion for smpaimment

| ary 2009 1724036402 31376798589 41100665 54446801 5196382457

Re-dassicaton (51.64400) 5164400

Witing off from deposals (86.20698) (4477000) (4.15600) (135.13298)

31 December 2009 1724036402 3363013491 366236.65 59195601 S182869159
Net foced asser

31 December 2009 3353445636120 7199146713725 398357610084 595640239250 [1546590199179

1 Jancary 2009 866381976211 7246428684353 387599439415 4.183759.06084  109,187.87066063

As a2 31 December 2009. 2 total value of RMB 3557.625.76 (2008: RM8 | 1.605,405.44) of fixed assets were temporanly unused

Asat 31 December 2009.the property-user rights of the buiklings and plants, which are worth RM8 5.488.516,696.50 (2008: RMB 5.433,11 8.836.35)
1n total. are stll in the process of being transferred to the Group The management sees no legal or other cbstacles in obtaining the certificates when
regstraton formaliues are performed and related fees are paid




Baoshan Iron & Steel Co.. Ltd,

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

31 December 2009

RMB
Book vatue of operaung leases of fixed assets as on the balance sheet date
Houses and Mechanical Transportation Office and Total ‘,
buildings equipment vahicles other equipment 3
Closing balance 8981068.22 9425544 52461664 9.599.940.30 N
Opening balance 1156009242 138124134 23493721 13,17627097 A
(153 Construction-in- progress :
)
MY
31 Decermber 2009 31 December 2008 "
Book baiance for Book value Book balance n for Book value 12
impaiment impairment .
Technical revampeng and
44 . . X 909, 14
o re 13,746832.781.17 13.746.832.781.17 1627590935826 16275.909.35826 -
16
Technical revamping and W7
Names of projects nfrastructure construction I
Openmg batance 16.275.909.358.26 P9
Increase n the year 1689046245890 <0
Foed a55es transterred i the year (1941951903599 2!
Closing balance 1374683278117 oo
) 24
Budget amoum 51.996,374.960.82 P
Captal source Seif possessed funds, bank loans and bonds  *
Investment.budget rao o000% !
o
The increase in the construction-in-progress included RMB 234.335,290 51 of payment for caprtalized irzerests.The capalzation rate used for the :l]
U
amount of caprtaized borrowngs ranged from 4 374%-5.6187% -
3
As at 31 December 2009, the balance of the value of construcon-in-progress included a total sum of RMB 160,346,205 63 of capitalized borrowing, 3
33
The rmanagement of the Company believes no provision was needed for constructons-in-progress on the balance sheet date. M4
33
36
(16) Project materials °
37
32
1 January 2009 Increase in the year Decrease n the year 31 Decomber 2009 9
Specal materuls 35862.67341 6.449.360 45 (35922282 30) 6.389.75156 40
Specul equipment 84353390773 171,705.319.31 (714358076 81) 300.881.15023 41
Equipmen in transt 23510448611 160,141.892.42 (12687.397.31) 382.556.981.22 4
43
Teul 111450106725 338296.572.18 (762.967.756 42) 689.829.88301 a4
46
17
g
a4y
30
A
1
a4
Se
57
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
31 December 2009

privroees

- s ae s P

RMB
(17) Intangible assets
Landuse ngt  Computer software Others Total
Ongrul prce:
} Jarary 2009 644755887506 39.312540.46 9829433297 6585,165.748 49 i
Increase in the year 201659097718 3.307.601.51 41367.197 67 2061.265.77636
Other reductions in the year (2.388.15272) - (2.388,152.72)
Foregn cumency transtabon differences (84857) (84857)
31 December 2009 846176169952 4261929340 139.661.530.64 864404252356
Acoumuated Amortzation:
I Janwary 2009 54162444155 26,154.706.07 5283503896 620.614,186 58
Provision in the year 156.836.810.16 821090219 2191643603 186.964,148 38
Witingoff (645517 36) (645517.36)
Foresgn currency transizon differences (449 04) (449.04)
31 December 2009 69781573435 34.365.159.22 7475147499 806.932.368.56
Book value
31 December 2009 776394596517 825413418 64,910,055 65 7.837.110.155.00
| January 2009 5.905.934.43351 13.157.834.39 4545929401 596455156191
As at 31 December 2009. the Group was going though the procedures for land-use nght certficates with a book value of RMB 279.172,169.55 31
December 2008: RMB250.803.868.12). The management of the Company sees no legal or other obstackes in obtaining the certéicates when regsstrauon
formalities are performed and related fees are paid
The management of the Company betieves no provision for impairment was needed for the intangible assets on the balance sheet date.
{18) Long-term deferred expenses

2009
Recording into
R st o =
Fees for decorations 4575224992 122001056 (17.467.75097) (557.246.00) 2894726351
Leasing expenses 444872807 782871 12 (1.778.08085) 345351834
Others 7522.330.84 616,121 44 (6053.36056) 5268070 213777242
Total 57.723.30883 261900312 (25299.19238) (557.246 00} 5268070 3453855427
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements «Continued
31 December 2009

RMB

(19) Deferred income tax assets/liabilines 1

Recognized deferred mcome tax assets: A\

ol

1 January Racording into Recording mm@rg:g o 31 December 4

« mency

2009 profit and loss. into equay difterence 2009 o

Provision for asset impamment 156957555248  (1,162714.11304) - 406861 43944 !

&

Unreaized proft deducbon i nternal transacbon 104,134,87349 104,13487349 9
Dierence in residuals of fixed assets $352492470 8.167.914.36 - (90223) 6169193683 0
Loss from change in r value 13725299.38 (14226128) (13593.03810) "
Termnation benefit 63724,469.70 (3857.862.58) 59.866.607.12 :i
Deducoble loss 4844445978 290.198.909.11 338.443.368.89 14
Others 3048564744 53039.32295 - (53441 44) 8347152895 1%
Toul 177948035348 (710.17321699) (13583038.10) (54.34367) 1.054.669.75472 16
17
Recognued deferred income tax labilties: 18
19
1January  Recording into Recording o acon;]ng MO 31 Dacember 0
o ency 21
2009 profit and loss ino equrty exchange difference 2009 5
Payment of 1ax unpaid for nvestment ncome 119.175.12039 (5248246 08) 11392687431 23
Gains from change in fair value 90.326,18054 (28297.044 56) 87.023.659.11 149.052,79509 24
Unreakzed profit deducton in miternal transaction 219703847.13 ©  (219.703,847.13) &
26
Others 245246400 959509 045297 249250206 5o

P
Toul 43165761206 (253239.54268)  87023.659.11 3045297 26547218146 1%
24
There 1s no decuctible deferred income tax assetsliabiltues o

3
Timing differences and deductble losses of unrecognized deferred income tax assets: N{
2
u
31 Decerrber 2009 31 Docomber 2008
Provison for asset impairment 7046085843 15871031684 1z
Oeductble oss 84421712674 126931374997 6
Others 2531144771 17,394,168 61 7
Toul 939.989.43288 144541823542 :;
Deductble losses of unrecognized deferred mcome tax assets due by periods: :’;
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 <
a1
2010 261.069.75503 601.677.67744 .
2011 3554941486 102,181.85107 a3
2012 44.100.644 49 44,100.64449 a6
17
2013 425517.129.10 52135357697
48
2014 77980 18326 a4
Tou! 844217.12674 1269.313,74997 30
31
52
A
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co.. Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements «Continued

31 December 2009

RMB

Q20

@n

Timing differences for recognized deferred income tax assets:

Timing affecence

Provision for asset mpairment 1671476039.85
Unrealzed proft from eriermal wamsacbons 41653949396
Deducutle foss 138379806369
Otrers 1253568586 55
Toul 472538218405

Timing differences for recognized deferred income tax habirties:

Timing cifference

Payment of tax unpawd for investment Income 455707497.24
Gains from change in far value 671536222.00
Others 804036148
Total 1,135.284.080 72

Other non-current assets

31 December 2009

31 Decembor 2008

Loans recervable from Bao-Island Enterprse 117.905,780.14 117.905.780.14
Depost 29844075 6032479 38
Others 3.460.10657 352201308
Totat- 12166432746 127.460272.60
Asset :mpairment provisions
Provision for  Prowision for Provision for loss p'ﬁ‘:" e:‘;’x; wi'm: Total
bad debts depositJoss  from inventones mpasment Investrment
imparment
Opening balance $32.692.19187 3737190000 590447769664  51.96382457 652650561508
Provsion i the year 279.330,12097 17.930.000.00 868971544 48 72246764 1.166,954.133.09
Reversal n the year (241029,11255) (1.561029415 30) . (1802058527 85)
Wring off in the penod (270852863) (4.152.19321441)  (i35,13298) (4.155036,876 02)
Recovery from writing off 5.059.108 66 : 5059.108.66
Foregn currency translation difference 106,588 67 9.60000) 41645665 51344532
Closing balance 57345036899 5529230000 106064307006 5182669159 72246764 174193689828




Baoshan iron & Steel Co, Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements Cominued:
31 December 2009

Rm8B

@7

23)

(24)

@5)

(26)

Short term loans

31 December 2009 31 Dacember 2008
Credn loars 22064.136,139.78 2336156931071
Guararmeed loans ] ; 1250000000 49,969,880.00
Loans by pledge 219779364617 €92.587.73076
Totat 2427442978595 24104.126921 47

At the balance sheet date, among the Group’s short term foans. the amual interest rate rarges from | 7062% to 4 374% for short term koans in
RMB (2008:2 4% to 7 2%),and from LIBOR+0 4% to LIBOR+H0.7% for short term loans in USD (2008: LIBOR+0 4% to LIBOR+ | 8%) The annual interest
rate in Euro ranges from LBOR+0.35% to LIBOR+065% (2008. LIBOR+0 35% to LIBOR+0.45% )

The foreign currency translation rate 1s RM3 68282 (2008 6.8346) vs | USD; RMB 007378 3. | JPY (2008:007565): RMB 97971 vs | Euro (2008
96590)

As on 31 December 31.2009. a total of RMB1.597.793.646.17 of plecge for the short term loans are unexpired discounted bank acceptarce bills

A total of RMB 600.006000 00 15 predged by recevables through business guaramee. As at 31 December 31, 2009, they are ccllateralized by guarartee
letters ssued by Mtsu & Co Ltd.

Customer banik ceposits ana deposts due 1o banks and other finar-cial instituaions

31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Currem depost 147.301.946 55 455.770.186.79
Fixed deposn 6.871,30873190 8.801.070.000 00
Toul 701861067845 9.256,840.186 79
Loans frem other banxs
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Loans from domesuc banks 34,141,00000
Transactona! francial habiices
31 December 2009 2008c12u310
Dervatve financal tubires 6.285024 95 11.500444.73

As a2 31 December 2009. the dervative financial liabrirtres were interest rate swaps to evade exchange rate risks.

Notes payab'e

31 December 2009 31 Decomber 2008

Bark accepuance bills of exchange 1.200314,389 24 201546681171
Cominercal acceptance bills of ex:;ur-\g_e 3.655041.60313 223577591397
4,855.355.99237 425124272568

The above-mentioned notes payable will be due in 2010 As at 31 December 2009, no balance in the account s due from sharenolding insttutes or
affikated parties who own 5% or more of the Company’s shares or voting power (2008. None)

o

.,
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Baoshan Iron & Steel Co. Ltd. L O
Notes to the Financial Statements Continued)
31 December 2009
RMB
Q7n Trade payable
31 December 2009 31 Decembar 2008
Account payable for equipment 77569325749 408829099246
Account payable for aw matenals 17.806.920.183.15 1453338465126
Total 18582.61144064 1862167564372
Trade payable 5 not imerest-beanng and 15 uswally paid within a penod of three months
As at 31 December 2009. the balance of the account included RMB 290.697.606.18 (2008: RMB 9.735,047.05) which were attnbutable to share-
holding instautes or related parties who own 5% or mors of the Company’s shares or voting power. Refer to Note 6, “related party relationships and
transacbons ™, for details.
As at 31 December 2009, trades payable with an age over one year, totalng RMB 163,335,593.80, were uncleared constructions fees for technical
revamging and infrastructure projects, which Last for a long penod.
(28) Advance receipt
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Advance recerpt 1104541238255 9.219,197.161.95
As at 31 December 2009, the balance of the account included RMB7.007.876 45 (31 December 2008: RMB622.571.78) whwch were attnbutable to
shareholding instautes or related partes who own 5% or more of the Company’s shares or voung power. Refer to Note 6, “related party relatonships
and transactions”, for detaiks.
The ages of payments in advarxe in signiicant amount in the Group were all within one year as at 31 December 2009.
29 Fmployee compensations payable

1 January 2009 Increase Decrease 31 Decetznoboo;
Salanes, bonuses, dlowances and subsidres 103123588218 519460250026 (506265728042 1.163.181.103 02
Wellre expenses . 14107761747 (14107761747)
Social insurances
Incuding Basc pension msurance 201003533 78498561560 (7183944.591.18) 305105975
Medwal srsurance 2154234 385727027 85 (385.408.099.60) 34047059
Unemployment insurance 11402663 6621490090 (66223.19343) 105734 10
Work mpury msurance 190,13645 1834443017 (18325591.70) 20897492
Matemtty nsurance 19225654 1828535449 (18620,180.40) 5743063
Ermployment for the njuwred 75250838 2830116683 (28301.16683) 752508 38
Ansty fund 25327092888 179.37067652 (426308541.71) 573266366
Oters 2878665 44 3225822095 (3411560213 102128426
Housing accurmulabon fund 10424493 15728547341 (257285.473.41) 10424493
‘::;;;’:::’a“’:::':;ﬁ‘ 11182573716 204.368375.13 (180.118.95030) 136075.16199
“Compensavors for cancelizbon of ibor relatorship 26067571938 98238365 70 (13829155503 220622.53005
Others 5265567383 83582.14060 (7256078241) 6387703202
Tota ] 1716,327.357 44 749264186688 (761383902603 1595.130.198 30

As at 31 December 2009. the total employee compensation payable amounted 2o RIM3 982.397.188.61 (RMB 982,397.18861 in 2008), inc'uding
unpaid portion which was accounted in ine with work efficiency




Baoshan lron & Steel Co., Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements Contmued
31 December 2009

(30)

3N

(32)

Taxes and fees payable

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

VAT (359.176.289.40) (2257115686 29)
Business ax 1277864822 21.064064 26
Enterprise income tax (784411.96947) (1.768022983.79)
Indndual income tax 117.323.28196 8342676377
Property tax 18224.286 80 S. I06.SVSIT
City construcbon and maintenance taxes 10894,365 64 17.145481 52
Others 37.996.94288 67.55037171
Toul (946370,73337) (1799441237 31)

Detalls about methods to provisions of taxes and fees payable and tax rates are presented in Note (3)." Taxation”

Interests payable

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

Imerests payable for convertible bondis 4222221222 4222222222
Imerests payable for medium term notes 146,482,19178 E
Others 51.752131.77 31350809877
Toul 24045654577 355.730 32099
Dmidends payable
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
China Onent Asset Management Corp. 8.850,086 58 6.787.40000
Sumeomo Corporation Ltd ’ 403759646 7.559.349 60
Coming (Hong Kong) Lt 2582.44305
Mtz & Co.Led 891.621.34 421675567
Antwa Hushang Co., Lid. 68370209
Others 52202221 70446526
Total 16683.769 64 1995167262

..
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(34)

Other payables

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

Guarartee and depost Sees

49205317035 48797383657
Advanced fund 18688006005 1410846807 78
Transportaton and port cues 15120228730 14833097852
Prof for sles promobon 9037291705
Construczon fees payabie 127006824 6289976860
Rerts 27105209

Land compensanon 2188178400 1560000000
Return payable 290253636 39116506
Rebef fond 1301693234 1301693234
Cormmesion expense 2198687967 194371276
Oters 10477353084 17923439346
Toul 1016.238.301 24 114084851414

As at 3} Decermber 2009, the balance of the account did not include any fund (same at 31 December 2008) which were attributable to sharehoiding
wstitutes or affihated parties who own 5% or more of the Company’s shares or voting power

The age of the following other recevable in significant amount o the Group is over one year as at 31 December 2009:

Category Amount payable Reason for delay
Guramee and pledge 7246833021 Longer penoc of contract term:
Non-curren: habilives due within ane year

Note 5 31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Long-term loan due watin | year (35) 114.126,334.34 1.181.586.686.20
Long-term payabte due within | year an 2.868,833.680 10 2868833680 10
Toul 2982960014 44 4050420366 30
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(35) Long-term borrowings 1

31 December 2009 31 December 2008 ?

Creda loan 5294932,13433 1420188477241 l

@

Top five debts :
Ciosing amount Opening amount ‘: ,

Bank Starting Enang Cumency Rate (%) Ongina! Transiated Onginal Transtated \
cumency RMB curmency RMB ”
BOC 51412009 51412012 usb 3LBOR+0.4% 100.00000000  682.820.000.00 1
BOC 57872009 5181012 uso 3LIBOR+0.4% 10000000000  662.620.000.00 - - 12|
B8OC 572002009 512012012 usD 3LIBOR+0.4% 10000000000  682.820.000.00 - . I
€13 w1200 6102012 USD  3UBOR+04% 10000000000  682.820.00000 . "7
E8C 672502009 &25n012 usD ILIBOR+Q 4% 100.000.00000  682.820,000.00 ;5
Toul 3.414.100,000.00 B 14
pit]
23
Long-term borrowings due within one year 2
23
31 December 2009 31 December 2008 24
Credt loan 114126,334 34 118158668620  <°
25
&7

2
Top five current long-term borrowings due within one year ‘f;
2
Closing balance Beginnng balance o

3

Bank Stant End Cul Rate (%) ?
Tency ) Ongnal Transigted Ongnal o ated AME IS
curency RMB currency =
[ole} 37182008 9/182010 Euro FBOR+(305% 5.750.384.74 5633709434 5.750.384.74 5554296620 34
CcCB 1172004 1272012010 [Vise] UBOR+12% 4,800,000.00 32.775.360.00 4,800,000 00 32.806.08000 15
[de:] 41292004 1272012010 usD UBOR+1% 3.400.000 00 2321588000 3.400.000.00 23237.64000 36
SMBC 711712007 3012010 RMB 486% 1,798,000 00 - 5.354.00000 i
38
Toul 114,126,334 34 116980.686.20 5
The long-term loars of the Group as on the balance sheet day were all credit loans The applicable formgn exchange rates are RMB 68282 (2008 :?
RMB868346) v. | USD:RMB 007378 (2008. RMB 0.07565) aganst cne 1PY; RMB 9.7971 (2008: RMB 9 6590) against one EURO, and RMBO 8805 (2008: O
08819) aganst one HKD 4‘1
a4
45

Bank credit-granting quota

As at 31 December 2009, the remaining bank credit-granting quota of the Company was RM8 89.105 billion The management of the Comrpany 47

believes that this quota and the cash fow from operating activtres wou'd be adequate for the current | abilries due in the coming year
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(36) Bond payable
1 January 2009 Increase Decraase 31 December 2009
Convertble bonds 7785.029.71821 357419285.11 . 8.142.449,003.32
Medium term notes . 9.924,707.256.30 . 9.924.707.256.30
Tot! 778502971821 10282.126.541 41 18.067,156,259.62
Balance of bond payable as at 31 December 2009:
Adjustment to
. Total of Value after Ciosng vatue
Ouration  Issuing date canying value separation aucumu';awe rl‘: ' the period
08Baosteel Bond (126016) 6 years 20 June 2008 10.000.000,000.00 7.601,824,59529 54062440803 B.142 449003 32
medium term note (0982075) 3years  25May2009 500000000000 Not apphcable (37.161.995.16) 4.962.838,004.64
medium term note (0962097) 3 years 30 june 2009 5.000.000.000 00 Not apphaable (38.130.74854) 4961869251 46

Less Current portion of bond payable

18.067.156.259.62

. Approved by China Securities Regulatory Commussion (CSRC) in the document of {2008)793.the Company rssued. on 20 june 2008, RMB 10 biton
convertible bonds with attached warrants with par value of RMB 100 per bond and a duration of six years (from june 20, 2008 to june 20, 2014).The
inquary coupon rate range was 0.8%. The dwidend was paid once a year on June 20,and the principal was returned once and for all when the ume expired

The purchaser of the bond was able to obtain |6 copies of stock purchase warrants issued by the ssuer, the duraton of the warrant was 24 months
from the date of ts being listed on the market. The number of the bond remained unchanged in the reported penod.

The exercising penod was the last five trading days of the duration.The exertise proportion was 2 to |.meaning two shares of the bond represent
one share of the Company’s stock and the inctial exercrse price was RM3 12 50 per stock, which was adjusted to RM8 12.16 per stock. In the kck-up
peniod. the exercrse price and proportion would be adjusted accondingly when the cut off of the dvidend or rght of the previous frscat year rs carrred
out When the uses of the funds from the bond issuance are found to be greatly different from those the Company promesed in the prospect, which s
consudered an alternation of the uses of the funds according to relative regulations of China Securties Regulatory Commession or is confirmed by the
commession, warrant holders are entitled to buy the bonds at the price of 1ts book value plus the cument interest The fir value of the labxirty componem
of the X/W (ex-warrant) on the day ¢f issue is measured on basis of the prces of similar securtbes, while the rest is recogruzed as the value of equity
and recorded in sharehoiders’ interest,

in May 2009. the Naonal Association of Financial Market Istitutional ivestors (NAFMIN approved the regrstration of RMB 10 bedlion medium term
note in China by the Company. The note can be rssued within the following two years and by instalment The Company issued on 25 May 2009 the first
tranche of three-year medium note (09Baosteel MTN1) worth RMB S billion, with a coupon rate of 266% a face vale of RMB 100 and a fixed inmterest
rate The second tranche (09Baosteel MTN2). with the same worth, coupon rate, face value. interest rate and matunity, was launched on 30 June 2009.
The medium term notes are tradable at the inter-bank bond market.

(37) Long-term payat'es

Item Note 5 31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Payable to Luopng assets 796127462146 10.413.565674 58
Less Current porton of long-term payables (34) 2.868.833,680.10 2.868833680.i10

5.092.440.941.36 7544731994 .48

The deivery price of Luojing assets and businesses, which the Group acquired from Baosteel Group Pudong Steel on | Apnl 2008, was RMB
14,344,168.400 50.The payment will be made by interest-free mortgage within a penod of five years, with 20% of the tota! or RMB 2,868.833,680.10, paid
each year The first sum has been paid The rest will be paid on 31 December every year since 2009, with the last sum on 31 December 2012

The long-term payable in the Group are subrect to the intial measurement acconding to its far value and s subsequent value will be made at the
amortzed cost As at 31 December 2009. the book value of the long-term payables in the Group totaled RMB 8,606,501 040 30 and the unrecognized
financirg charge to be amortzed was RMB 64522641884
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(38) Special payables

Type Opening balance increase

Decreass

Closing balance

Govemment appropration 1887892071 121.706,33855

(29.67092781)

11091433145

39 Other non-current hiabilities

Type 31 December 2009

31 Decamber 2008

Deferred income 368408656 13

157.019.84806

Others 221083494

1.826.605 67

Toal 37061949107

158.846.45373
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RMB

(40)

Share caprtal

The regrstered and pard-up caprtal of the Company totals RMB 17.512.000.000 with par value of RMB | each The share class and structure 1 as follows:

Change in the year
Opening balance New share Share transfered Closing baance
! issued Sonus share from reverss | Sub-total
Shares with condronal rght l
RMB ordinary share [ 17512000000 . . . | 17512000000

As at the end of 31 December 2009, Baosteel Group hokls 12.953,517.441 common shares of the total non-restncted RMB common stocks

I accordance with the reform program revewed and approved on the 2005 First Intenm Shareholders’ Meeting held on 12 August, 2005, the
Baostee! Group. the only non-tradable shareholder of the Company, shall make tradable rts shares in the consideration of a payment of 22 shares for
every ten tradable shares the holders have regrstered on the day of regstration and a European style warrant of subscription nght wrth an expiry penod
of 378 days tll 10 August, 2006, and an exase pnce of 4.50.The non-tradable share of the Group shall circulate on market when credrts are made 1o the
accounts of the shareholders After the implement of the program, the total caprtal stock of the Company s still 17.512.000.000 and financial indexes such
company assets, debts, owners' rights and interests. and tncome-per-share remain what they are

Baosteel Group has made the following promses for the above purpose The Group shall not sell the new shares and ts obliged to drsclose the
related mformation within the six months after the mplementation of the programy within the twelve months since 1t 15 entitied the nght to trade ts
shares, the Group shall not sell or transfer the Company’s shares, and only twenty-four months after the enttlement the Group's shares shall be Isted on
the market. the total sales of the Company's shares the Group has conducted in stock exchanges within the thirty-six months since it s entitled circulating
right of fts shares shall not be more than five per cent of the total share of the Company axd the prce shall not be fess than 5.63 per share and within
the three years since the entilement, the shares cf the Company that the Group owns shall not be less than 67 per cent of the total of the Company.
However, new shares of the Company that the Group has acquired after the reform program shall be out of the province of the above limitations in
regard of trading and transfernng.

Baosteel Group has also promsed that, if the A shares of the Compary fal at a level below 4 53 per share. the Group shall inject no more than RMB2
billion in the aggregation to purchase the general pubik shares of the Compary by means of competitive prcing at the Stock Exchange of Shanghai. The
Group shall not sell the newly owned shares and 15 obliged to disclose the related information within the six months after the promotion program Up
10 21 September. 2005 the Group had fulfilled the promse of RM8 2 bilion inection, with fts hokding of the Company amounting to 446.565.849 shares

In order to further the non-tradable share reform program so as to prevent the Company’s shares from iratonal fluctuating and protect the inten
ests of the investors. Baosteel Group made further efforts by promesing the Company and rts sharehoiders that. in case that the shares of the Company
drep to a level below 4.53 per share sox months after the above- mentioned two-month penod, the Group shall ingect another sum of no more than RMB
2 bliion in the aggregation, together with the remaining of the first ijection if & has not being used up. to purchase the Company's shares by means of
competrave priing at the Stock Exchange of Shanghai until the prormsed sum has been used up or the Conpany’s shares rise at a level above 4 53 per
share The promese shall be fuffiled before the China Securtiies Regulatory Commission exempts the Group from the duties in purchasing the shares of
the Company and the non-tradable share reform program wll be approve by the Company’s Shareholders’ General Meeung The Group shall not seil
the newly purchased shares and «s obliged to disclose the related informaton withn the six moriths after the supporting program The document No
[2005]95 rssued by the China Securtties Regulazory Comsmession has agreed to exempt the Group from the duties in the purchase referred to Up to 31
December 2005.412.183,690 more shares were purchased by the Group Dunng | to S January, 2006, the Group increased s shares of the Company
by 79.596,591 Up to 5 January 2006 the Group had futfiled the promise of the second RMB 2-biliion ijecticns. wrth its bholding of the Company's shares
amountng to 491.780.284

On 15 April, 2006, the sxx-month duraton as the time limit for share selling for the 446,565.849 shares of the Company owned by Saosteel Group
with a first njecten of RMB 2 billion expired and the shares could be traded on the stock market. On 30 August. 2006, the European warrant was expired
and sore shareholders with tradable shares purchased 5542559 shares of the Company ‘rom Baosteel Group On 16 Octoter, 2006. the sox-month
duration as the tme ima for share se'l:ng for the 491,780,281 shares of the Compary owned by Baosteel Group with a second injection ef RMB 2 brllion
expre and the shares could be traded on the stock market.

With the promsse that “total sales of the Company’s shares the Group has conducted in stock exchanges within the thirty-six momths since t 1s
entrtled circulating right of fts shares shall not be more than five per cent of the total share of the Company”.in the year of 2007 the 875.600.000 con-
ditional shares of the Compary held by the Group were ccnverted to nenconditional ones, and the Group cecreased the Company’s non-conditionat
shaes by 761.346.130

Up 0 19 Augus? 2008, a total of 11,900.917.441 conditonal shares of the Company that Baosteel Group held were allowed ta arculate on market.
maxng all the shares of the Compary unconcruonal shares, of whih Baosteel Group owns 7397% In the reported penod. Baosteel Group nerther bought
no~ sokl any of the shares ¢f the Company  held.
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[C1)) Caprial reserves 1
Note 31 December 2008 Increase Decrease 31 December 2009 N
Capial premum !
Reserve from conversion of state-owned share 5.726556.609.73 - . 5.726.556,608.73 A
Share premium 27,370337,39558 . 27370,337.39558 7
Others N
Provision for equity investment ) (1.558481.16) 7449928 (381.164.80) (1,865,146 68) ‘1’
o
Cringe in fr value of avaiabie-for-sile I 7331682372 38236950074 . 65570632446 11
fnancal assets .
Impact of change in fair value of aailabie-for.sale (6075934735) (9191591083 L (15267525818)  qs
fnancial assets upon income tax -
Convertible corporate bonds 230247297702 . . 34nM0 :'
B
Other captal reserves o) 116630661844 21750267914 (33700.78) 1383.775.596 80 1o
Toul 3680669259598  S08030768.33  (41486558) 3731430849873 17
2
(1) Changes in this year's reserve for equity nvestment are manly dus 1o the changes in the accounting of the capital reserve of associates and Jant :q
vantures by the equity method.

(2) The change in far value is mainly due 1o change in capital reserve resutted from change in the fair value of assels available for sale heid by the
Group

P

(3 Other changas 1n capital reserve for the Group in the reported perod are mainly contributed 10 by the refund trom the funding of the post construe - 25
tion in gocordance with the relevant regulations of the Ministry of Transport and the Ministry of Finance on cofiaction of port construction fee. Z
2

(42) Special reverse 2'3
27

28

Opening balance Increase of year Decrease of year Ciosing balance B}

Fees for securtty in operaton - 22.585557 62 (14270.699.66) 831485796 K]
K}

(43) Earmungs reserve i
33

24

Opening balance Increase of year Decrease of year Closing balance P

Sutory earnings reserve 677047179379 507.687.142 82 . 7278.158.93641 36
Drscrevonary earnings reserve 10041.924,13357 507,687,142 82 . 10549.61127639 37
Toul 16.812.395.927.36 1.015,374.285 64 - 17827.77021300 :’)
According to the Company Law and the Charter of the Company. the Company allocates 10% of rts net profit as a statutory earmings reserve until 40

the reserve has accumulated 1o reach 50% of the Company's registered caprtal 41
42

The drscretionary eamings reserve is allocated after the statutory eamings reserve. As is approved, the discretionary eartngs reserve can be used 43

to make up the loss from the previous year or converted into the Company’s share capdal 4
ds

4n

47

4%

ay

Sy

si

32

3
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(44) Undistbuted profit

2009 2008

Undrstibuted profa at beginning of year 20.935.302.00395 21.620.790.256 82

Net profit 581622739310 6.459.207.46021

Decrease of the year (4.167.534.285 64) (7.144695.71308)

inchuding Surphss reserve (1.015,374285.64) (1.015495.71308)

Drdend distributed (3.152.160.00000) (6.129.200.000.00)

Closing balance of the year 22583.995.111.41 20.935.302.00395

(45) Minority interests

Mincrty interests of major subsid.anes of the Group:

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

Yamtai Lubio 156,807.72103 159.469.347.00
Huangshi Coang & Galvanizng 64.251,34895 59.192.655.64
Subsidanes of Baostee! Intemational 77386281827 683.754,359.32
Meshan Steel and s subsidunes 2875.652.766.64 2991561364 48
Ningbo Baoxan and fts subsidiarves 84538162500 76061899454
Baosght Software and rts subsdunes 43373849596 36802549383
Finance Co 575.698.14791 55253577362
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(46) Business revenue and business cost 1
Business revenue ;
4
2009 2008
Revenue from princpal businesses 147282020262 18 199.254.340,394 44 ‘
Revenue from other businesses 104434364776 1077.433425.15 g
Toul 148.326,363.90994 200.331.773819.59 b
4
Revenue and cost from principal businesses: i
u
2009 2008 I
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost ‘4
Sales of goods 145,.934261072.47 132.283.67543423 197.338034.50993 173,618.137.226 96 ::
Others 1,347,759,189.71 1.105,72437129 1916,305.88451 1.768.761.96097 1%
147.282020262.18 133,389.399.80552 199.254,340,394.44 175.386,899.187.93 17
"
Principal businesses by industry: 19
<0
2009 2008 7
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost il
RMB thousand RMB thousand AMB thousand AMB thousand ha
Iron & steel munufactunng 125637.716 114536.566 165,015,943 147.176.141 24
Sales of won & steel products 129.682.540 126,586,662 172,658,672 169242794 4F
25
Others 9222.745 8.193932 10,101,447 9.263477 ;
p;
Offset between ndustnes (117.260.981) (115927.760) (148.521,712) (150.295.513) 2%
147282020 133.389.400 199254340 | 175,386.899 29
k8|
Pnncipal businesses ty product: k)
a2
2009 2008 k]
Revenue Cost Reverwe Cost 24
RMB thousand RMB thousand RMB thousand RMB thousand kR
lron & steel 143202073 130,742,802 197338,034 173618.137 k)
Others 4079.947 2646598 1916.306 1768.762 37
33
147282020 133,389,400 199.254.340 175,386,899 1
Pnncipal businesses by regon :?
2009 2008 4
43
Revenie Cost Revenue| Cost e
RAMB thousand RMB thousand RMB thousand RMS thousand =
Domestic 133326620 121,690,748 174711917 155117257 m
Overseas 13955.400 11,698652 24542423 20269.642 a7
147282020 133.389.400 199254340 175,386,899 B}
Toul revenue of 1op five customers 18,066,783.876 29 19.900077.791.47 “
0
Rato agamst total operatng revenue 12% 10% 5
sz
s
34
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(47) Operating ta~es and surcharges
2009 2008
Business ux 7382700553 84506019.95
Crty consruction tax & educatonal surcharge 446,722.11339 74309481375
Tanft 9.766.10525 362,78529875
Others 39.319.067.96 28.749.634.19
56963429213 1,219,135.766.64
Refer 1o Note 3, Taxation™, for relevant criteria and tax rates for the above ftems.
(48) Fnancial expenses
2009 2008
Interest expenses 1.898.990.980.15 3.296.931.394.55
Less: apralzation of interests 23433529051 7429268169
Less: income from interests 3372923167 157.140673 12
Exchange gan (3.652.851 60) (1.023548453.03)
Others 4822985550 5379153086
167550346187 209574011757
(49) Asset imparment loss
2008 2008
Loss from bad debte/(reversal) 3830100842 (10.164,198 84)
Loss from borrowings 17.930.000.00 252000000
Loss from long-term equity investment 722467 64
Loss/(reversal) from provision for inventones (692.057.87082) 5901512.351.09
Total (635.104.394.76) $.893.868.152.25
(50) (Loss)ncome from change in fair value
2009 2008
Transactional financial assets (112.619.13319) 904922359
Transactiona! financial Labébes 521541978 (5.628232.96)
Total (107.40371341) 342099063
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51 Investment income 1

2009 2008 3

Investment income of long-1erm equity nvestment n cost method 20223247784 15190701424

Stock mvestmer ncome ' 492459.555.16 maies

Bond investment income/(loss) (2.114,18453) 90.804.935 87 B

Zund investent come 431494059 3,534,166 78 ¥
Loss from denvative financial Instruments 1o avord nsts (8:66142183) (11494700322) ‘]’ .
Recognzed net proft and loss recetved from associates and joint ventures 264.376,70298 24723365420 n
Profr(Loss) i equity transfer investment 1161368527 12
Others 84379154 329632917 12
Toul 95345186175 677.165950 60 1

Top five ivestors whose investment iIncome from long-term equrty ivestment accountts for more than 5% or frghest proportion of the pre-tax profit on

the basis .of the cost method:
Investee 2008 Reason for the change
ongoheng Coal & Eiectrcrty Holding Group Co. Ltd 99262.19300 655029700 Cash ddend
Heran Longyu Energy Co. Ltd 6563991138 9402856842 Cash atend
Baovale Mewg Co. Ltd 1934171245 19.849.53600 Cash crdend.
Shanghar Luoying Mineng Port Co. Ltd 805684132 . Cash cndend
"CISO1 Engneenng Co. Lt 748604293 900000000 Cash dvdend
199.786,70108 129428401 42

Top fve investors whose investment income from long-term equity Investment accounts for more than 5% or highest proportion of the pre-tax profit on

the basss of the equity method:

2008 Reason for the change
BNA 123561 74991 144026124 52 Investment gain by equrty method
Bao-sland Enterprse 77284981.70 114.770020.50 irvestmen gain by equity method
STAL Precsion 4270553353 54.190639.40 Investment gain by equity method |
Weking Co 13492244 13 25483205 Investment g by equy method
“Baogang Shopeg 5503871 72 5861601 69 investment gain by equity method

26254638099 319.1032i8.16

As at 31 Decernber 2009, no significant mrs existed reganding investment income repatnaton
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(52) Non-operating income
2009 2008
Government subsdies 318,053634.15 221,670980.22
Income from compensauons 63.113.05957 36.386518.37
Others 11443256646 21441995486
Toual 495.599260.18 47247745345
Government subsihes recorded into current gains and losses:
2009 2008
Tax refund 121.622,12349 109.844 944 57
Awards from government 19.38487361 27567550.7
Supporung funds 118,079,171 46 30.414707.03
Others 5896746559 5384377791
318053634 15 22167098022
{53) iNon-operating expense
2009 2008
voss from drsposal of non-curment assets 34202203790 323906.661.47
Induding Loss from dsposal of fixed assets 34202203790 : 323906.661 47
Donavons 38.848,308.09 2274241400
Others 7393975988 275631.795.22

Totat 454810.10587 622.280.870.69
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54) Income tax expenses 1
2009 2008 N
Current income tax expenses 741,420,003 48 2.389.402.53842 N
Deferred ncome tax expenses 457.933.674.31 {836.130.02090) ;‘
1,199.353.677.79 155327251752 7
Relatonship between income tax and total profit T
it
2009 2008 1
Total profit 729455539587 8.154.365.637.43 12
Taxaton by LTR (Note 1) 182363884896 203859140936 1
Adjustment 10 previous Wxaton (36.984.04237) (234,17341500) 1:
Tax-free revenue (13441045833) (119.69183123) 14
Undetectable tax expense 36962.548.79 2609173117 17
Impact of change in tax rate (1202243471) @us75420)
Previous tax loss used ) (83014.02749) (1.22351342) 2‘3
Unrecognized tax loss 793797462 142,602.12004 21
Surcharge preference (328.867.75393) (290.705.021 87) 42
Others (7388697775 1er92e7 %%
“Tuxation by ETRs of the Group 119935367779 15327281752
Note 1. The income tax of the Group s based on the amounts of taxabie income the Group has obtaned in Ching at the tax rate appicable 10 the 24
penod. Taxation on the taxabie ncome obtaned o other countries is measured on bawis of local laws, iNterpreLations and CoNventions, and 27
tax rote spplicable. 2%
24
(55) €arnirgs per share :‘il
The bask earnings per share are calculated by dividing the current net profits belonging to the shareholders of ordinary shares by the weighted ::
average number of ordinary shares rssued to the public. 1’4
The basic earnings per share is calculated as follows: 33
34
2009 2008 37
Proft i
Currert net pro‘a attributable to the shareholders of ordinary shares 5816227.393.10 6459.207.46021 ::]
Shares 41
Wesghted average number of ordnary shares issued to the public 17.512.000.00000 17.512,000,00000 42
43
The Company issued RMB 10 brflion worth of convertible bonds with attached warrants with a maturity of stx years from June 20 2008 The inquiry 44
coupon rate was 0.8% and subscnbers receved 16 call warran's for every bond taken up, with the option price set at RMB 125 per share. an expiry as
penod of 24 months and the exercise proportion of 2:1. The exercsse price was 2djusted to | 2.16 per share due to dnvdend distnbution on 15 jure 2009 an
As the A-share of the Company was lower than the pnce of the warrant up to 31 December 2008 and n 2009 fts diluted potential was not considered a7

As no diluted potentials were detected for s A-shares n 2008 and 2009. the dited eamings per share was not drchosed.
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(56} Other comprehensive income
2009 2008
Gain/(Loss) from financal assets avadabie for sale 902.210.15379 (806.991.323.32)
Less' Income tax impact from finanaal assets avaiabie for sle 100.606.697 21 (247503837.99)
Net amount recorded in previous comprehensive income but transferred 10 current profits and losses 485,077507.55 122404 844 41
316525949.03 (681892.329.74)
Difference m forergn currency transiaton (74027.23) (52.611894.13)
Less. Net amount recorded n previous comprehensive Income but transferred 1o current profts and losses
(74027.23) (52.611894.13)
Share in investee’s other comprehensive ncome on basss of equity method (381.164.80) (20.099.315.00)
Less:income tax impact from the share in ivestee’s other comprehensive ncome on basrs of equity method
(381,164 80) (20099.315.00)
316070757 00 (754.603538.87)
57 Notes to cash flow statements
Other cash recesved relating to operating activites
2009 2008
Income from non-operatng actuvibes and government subsd.es 78236553860 5823553907
Other cash pad relating to operating activibes
2009 2008
Sales expense 1,179.241,057 38 1.627249548.13
Admnstratve expense 1.388.668.363 82 3283.839582.34
Others 34313001833 29644894651
291103943953 5.207.538076.98
Other cash received relaung o investing activibes
2009 2008
Income from nterests 3372923167 157.140673.12




Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd.

TS SRRE I e Wbl I o

Vi bl S
Notes to the Financial Statements «Continued
31 December 2009
RMB
{58) Cash flow from operating actvites
2009 2008

Reconalavon of net proft to cash flows from operatons

Net proft 6095201 71808 660109311991 (:

Add: Prowsion for impairment of assets (635,104.394.76) 589386815225 7
Deprecation of fixed assets and mvestment properties 13068.354,08501 1447547943469 s
Amortziuon of imangble assets 186.964.14838 16050430199
Amortzaton of longterm deferred expenses 25.299.192.38 25.370.14331 'il;

Net loss on disposal of fixed assets, imang:ble assats and other kong-term assets 34202203790 323.906.661 47 12
Loss from change in fax value (less: profi) 10740371341 (3.42099063) N
__ Finanaal expense 1627.273606 37 204194958671 :’ !
___ Iocome from ivestmen (953.451.86175) (677,165.950 60) " i
___ Increase i defermed income tax assers (less increase) 71117321699 (100664630785) 17 I
Increase in deferred income tax labibes (less' decrease) (253239.542.68) 17051628695 ¥ |
Decrease in iventories (less: inrease) 6.874.06090649 (2.367.655.886 00) ‘l: ;
Decrease in operatng recenabies (less: increase) (3435,167.86270) 350545514641 20 H
Increase in operating payables (less: decrease) 23233301799 (12899.70165277) 22 )
Net cash fiow from operating actwites 23993121981 11 1624355204584 : .
wo
(59) Cash and cash equivalents 2 !
2i '
2009 2008 s i
Cash 4724082.90698 556578351489 Y
“Inclucing Cash reserve 135993440 197948227 :‘I'
Realzable bank depost 4709.232.466.53 554581317554
Other realzable monetary funds 13490506 05 1799085708

Cash equnalents 10000000000 706,781484 78

Induding. Funds from monetary market 100.000,000.00 70678148478

Ciosing balance of cash and cash equivalent 4.524.082.906 98 627256499967
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6. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(1) Parent company
. Legal Registerad  Sharghokding (%)  Voting power (%) Organization
Com| Ty
pamy o Regsteredin represeNtative Business capital in the Company _in the Company  code
Iron and steel
Baosteel Group RMB51083
N
Comorston ILC Shangha Xu Leang mamfactunng & 7397 7397 13220082
processing
(2)  Subsidiaries
Refer to Note 4 for details of the subsidunes of the Company
(3)  Joim ventuies and associates
Refer to Note 5(12) for details of the joint ventures and associates.
(4)  Others related panies
Entties affhated to the Group in business:
Related parties Relationship Organization code
Bao-Istand Trading Co. Ltd (Bao-Istand Trading) Brother comparies #6080030-0
Baosteel Metal Co, Ltd. and #s subsduries (Baosteel Metal and rts subsidiarves) Brother companies 13223304.1
Shanghai Baosteel Engneering & Technology Co. Ltd. and rts subsiduries .
(Engneenng & Technology Co.and rts subsdiaries) Brother companies 630833939
Fortune Trust Co. Ltd (Fortune Trust) Brother companies 63124192.7
Fortune Investment Co. Ltd (Fortune Investment) Brother companies 13222881-6
Baosteel Group Baoshan Hotel (Baoshan Hotel) Brother companies 133427542
Baosteel D Co. Ll and nis (Baosteel D and s ves) Brother compames 13343894.6
Baosteel Group Shanghai No 2 tror & Steet Co. Ltd and s subschanes (No 2 Steel and fts subsidianes) Brother companies 13320566-7
Baosteel Group Shangha: No | Iron & Steel Co.. Ltd. and s subsdianes (No | Steel and rts subsidunes) Brother companies 13220760-1
Baosteel Group Shangha: Pipes Co, Ltd. (Shanghai Pipes) Brother companies 63057927-2
Baosteel Group Shanghai Mershan Co. Ltd. and rts subsidunes (Mershan Steel and s subsdunes) Brother companies. 13226493-X
Baostee! Group Shanghas Pudong kron & Steel Co. Ltd.and rts subsiduanes (Pudong Steel and s subsdunes) Brother companies 132212910
Baosteel Group Shanghai NoS Iron & Steel Co. Ltd and fts subsidiaries (No. 5 Steel and s subsidanes) Brother companies 13220240-5
Baoszee! Group Xinpang Bay Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. and nts subsidunes (Xingang Bayi and s suwadunes) Brother companies 22880110-1
Baostee) Group Resource Co.Ltd.and 1ts subsdanes (Baostee! Resource and s subsdunes) Brother companies 79144036-X
Shanghai Baostee! Industrial Examinatron Co., Ltd. and s subsidanes (Examination Co. and its subsdares) Brother comparues 13349253.9
Nangng Baon Sieel Wires Co, Ld. (Baon Wires) Brother comparues 608979034
Shangha Baostee! £ 3 &M, Co. Ltd. (E & Mantenance Co) Brother companies £3083350-9
Shanghi Instrtute of Steel and Iron (Insttute of Steel and lron) Brother companies 133427200
Zhanjung Longreng Logistes Co, Ltd. (Zhanjang Longteng) Brother companies 79779551-6
Nangoo Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. (Ningbo Steet) Brother companies 744976137
Bao-Island Enterprses Limited Jort verture 38783.0
BNA Joirz vemure 71785178.5
Weiding Co. Ltd. Assodated Companses 755717333
Tumn BCM Assogated Companies 600894976
Baggiang Shipping Assocated Companses 631791135

Henan Pingbao Assocated Comparues 76314008-7
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(5)  Related transactions between the Group and Baosteel Group and its relaied parties:
(1) Sales to related partes
Related party Notes avE mg’nﬁ * avg tmx i
Baosteet Group (1 12544 001 18484 00!
No 1 Steel and s subsidanes (b 150.802 010 529,781 026
No 2 Steel and ris subsklanes (b 143747 0:0 269.693 013
No 5 Steel and ris subsdanes ()b 12,630 001 733N 004
Pudong Steel and its subsidianes. (O] 71765 005 1282.151 Oos
Stanghai Ppes e . 19.301 001
Baosteel Development and s subsiduaries o 2038.300 137 4,604,545 230
Engineenng & Technology Co. and fts subsxdares (b 53858 004 242213 012
Baosteel Metal and rts subsidunes (Hb 949571 064 1007.383 050
BNA My 7718220 520 9501.329 474
Meshan Steel and s subsdunes (b 950.734 064 1,634,856 082
Baon Wires b 577 P 180,261 009
Bameution 8 Maitenance Co and ds subsdanes [0l 59.883 00; 150,966 008
Examination Co. and 1ts subsidares (b 164356 o1 199989 010
Baosteel Resources and s subsxiunes [OL] 2097335 141 4714521 235
Welding Co. (b 235616 016 110822 006
Tungn BCM (b 153,137 [l [o] 19 -
Zhanjang Longteng (b 180,750 012
Others (b 21,746 001 43028 002
Toul 15015571 ot 24562813 1227
(2)  Purchases from related parties
Retated party Notes AMB mgg (%) RMB‘mUzsg?; (%)
No. | Steel and ts subsidares @ 162,342 014 253508 014
No. 2 Steel and rts subsiianes @9 1828 4591
No S Steel and s subsichares @n 353 151521 009
Pudong Steel and fts subsiduries @a 650 1041736 059
Engineering & Technology Co and s subsidares M 1316373 098 1072476 061
Baosieel Development and fts subsdanes @ 1079.194 [o]: 1620230 092
Baosieel Metal and s subsxdunes a 42229 003 56632 003
BNA 2 8.396.783 615 1108116 630
Exameaton Co. and s subsdianes 2 9422 001 11244 00!
Examination & Mamtenance Co. (03 205884 ots 370859 021
Meishan Sieel and nts subsduanes @a 1245278 093 1240256 071
Baosteel Resource and as subsidurees 2 5031714 375 12648682 719
Bao-knd Trading @ 2474677 184 1254723 071
Bao-lsand Enterprse (02} 335046 019
Xunjiang Bayi and s subsiduries n 1,184.669 - 088 1698466 097
Others @ 120873 009 10171 006
Teal 21293269 1582 32931257 1873
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(3)  Labor services provided to related parues

Category Notes AV mousan A toxsand
Transportabon services Gn 70779 81317
Techncal supports 3p 107,114 82,630
Toul 177,893 163,947
Category RMB mgﬁ AMB rmﬁ
Baostee! Group 53672 6982
Welding Co. 58 92_4
Fortune Trust 350
Examinavon Co. and fts subsdanes 4,150 1,190
Xmyang Bay: Steel and ris subsddunes 15300 16,390
Pudong Steel and fts subsidunes 3893 16,164
Baosteel Development and rts subsidianes 8231 8034
Engneenng & Technology and s subsrdianes 6361 40%
Baosieel Mewl and fts subsidraries 1.856 438
Meishan Steel and s subsianes 13323 6316
Baosteel Resources and s subsdares 10309 37518
Examinanon & Mamenarce Co. 48950 IW
BNA 51,652 52132
Others 2648 12612
Tow! 177893 163.947
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(4)  Labor services recetved from related partes:
Category Notes AMB mouiggj AMB mouzsggg
Exammnaton & maintenance fees paxd (@) 466.138 1,655.112
Processing fees pad *b 303.067 286,559
Trainng fees pad (4 29.392 33360
Logestes fees paxd (4x 2816.698 2482648
Transportation fees paxd (4)e 782451 635258
Project fees pard @t 572,153 819615
Wiarehousing and shpping fees paxt (4 804681 140224
Totsl 5050.580 6052.796
Rosted party RMB mofsﬁ AMB mouzsggg
8aosteel Group 34.407 41613
BNA 145951 124455
Exarnination & Maimenance Co. and fts subsicianes 767617 883443
Engmneenng & Technology Co.and fts subsidaries 446742 544081
Mershan Steel and s subsidianes 831,093 952711
No | Sceel and s subsidanes a3 779215
Pudong Steel and s subsihanes 101,594 127936
Bao-stand Emerprise 286,709 24114
Examinazon Co and ity subsdianes 553.480 566203
Baosteel Oevelopment and s subsduries 1.153.626 1425154
No. 5 Steel and rs subsiduanes 124,889 302046
Others 120,029 81825
Total 5.050.580 6052796
(5)  Related transactiors between the Group and Baosteel Group and tts related companies
Catogory Notes FMB bousar A toung
Leases paid for plants and land 5(a) 421745 131893
Income from leasing plants 5(a) 36540 37261
Income from financal servces 5(b) 113938 273665
Expenses on finanaal services 5(¢) 104.329 370.140
Imerests paid for Phase 3 assets 5(d) 16.000 48,000
Interests pawd for entrusted (via Finance Co.) koans from the Group S(e) 33056 147.373
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(e)

Sales of products 1o the related party

1n 2009.the Group mainly soid BGC energy.raw matenals and spare parts at market prces for 2 10tal amourt of RMB 12,544 4 14 (2008:
RM3B18483.984)

Since the Group purchased them on | May 2005, the Group has provided steel and ron Products and other materals for No.| Steel,
Na2 Sieel, No5 Steel Pudong Steel, Meishan Steel.Technology and Economics, and Baostee! Development as well ther subsdianes at
the market price. Since 12 july, 2006, when Baostee! Trading was founded, the Group has provded #t ores at market price. In 2009, the
Group soid to these subsidianes, joint ventures and assocates a vakie of RMB 11,105.477,834 (2008 RMB 16,513.140.986) of major
Pproducts and byproducts and a value of RMB 3.168.175,338 (2007: RMB 6246,751.483) of other muteruls.

The sales of drinking water. industrial water, purrfied water, fered water, electnaty. and other types of energy the Group made to some
of Baosteel Group's subsxdanes and associates at the market prce touled RMB695.696.960 in 2009, as compared 10 RMB 677,149.696
in the previous year.

The totl value of spare. parts the Group sokd to some BGC subsiduries reached RMB 33,676,677 i 2005, compared to RMB
1127286831 n 2008

Purchases from related parties

The Group has been purchasing spare parts frem No S Steel, Meshan Steel. Technology and Economic Co. Baosteel Development and
their subsdiaries, 3s well as Examination & Mamenance, materuls, such as steel and ron products and raw matenaks, from the BNA,
Meishan Steel and its subsidiaries Baosteel Development and its subsiduanes, Baosteel Trading and its subsdwries, and Pudong Steel and fts
subsidanes. and energes from No. | Steel. All purchuses have been conducted at market pces The speaisc assets. spare parts. matenals
nd energes the Group bought from the afore-memoned companies n 2009 totaled RMB 1409.292.132 (2007, RMB 1,345,167 325).
RMB 1575499201 (2007: RMB 1,997.801467). RMB18,165.099,748 (2007 RMB 29.358.1 11 972) and RMB 143378699 (2007-RMB
250.176.638). respectivety. at market prices.

Labor provided 10 related partes

The Group provided transportabon services for Biosteel Group, BNA, Meshan Steel and s subsidianes. Examination Co. and fts
subsiduries, Baosteel Resources and its subsic:anes. and Pudong Steed and s subsdunes based on contracted prxes.

The Group has provided BGC, BNA and Xinjang Bay: Steel and its subsiduries with ressarch projects, quaity examination and testing
and other technial services. at comtracted prices.

Labor recetved from related partes

E &M 3

Co. Menhan Steel No. | Steel, Mersteel, No. S Steel Engineerng & Technology, Baostee!
Development as well as their subsdiaries provided the Group with services of equpment and spare parts repar and maintenance
and emergency fepair for production facities, equipment and machinery, electrical facirties. meter and measurement apparatus planmt
structunng, and site development and construction. The service fees were based on market prxces.

No.5 Stee) and fts subsidiaries have served as a provicer of spare parts processing for the Group at negotiated pnces. Baosteel-NSC/
Arcetor, Meishan Steel and s subsiduries, and No. | Steel and «ts subsdianes have prowded supplementary materal processing for the
Group at negotiated prces.

Baosteel Group provided training to staff of the Group at negotiated prices.

Baosteel Development, Meishan Steel, No. | Steel, and No. S Steel as well as their subsidianes have provided. at the contracted prices.
services including cleaning, environmental safety, trafic control, food supphes, property
medical care and hygiene as well as production octsourcng,

§¢ and P non e.

Bao-Isiand Enterprise, Meishan Steel and its subsidunes, No. | Steel and rts subsidianes, Baosteet Development and ts subsdranes, and
No. 5 Steel and its subsidunes are paxd by the Group at comtracted prices for ransportation serwces.
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Eng neenng & Technology and ts subsdunes have provided engineenng design sernces, construction, installzbon and management for
the Group, with service fees based on contracted rates Baosteel Development and Meishan Steel as well as the:r subsidianes have Seen
wohed N the cONStruction, supervison. and cost Consuttation and audrting work of the Group, with fees based on contracted rates.No.S
Steel and its subs:cianes have provided services of pipe installabon and cable Lying at the contracied price.

Examinavon & Testing and Baosteel Development, along wath their subsdiunes, provded matenal warehousing and transporaon at
negotated prices

Other related party transacbons

When founded. the Comparty sgned a twenty-year agreement with 3aosteel Group for the lease of the plant site land In September
2001, the Company sgned a further twenty-year lease agreement with Baosteel Group for the use of the and for the plant see for
assets acqurred in Phase 3.In November 2002, the Company signed a new twenty-year lease agreement with Baosteel Group for the
Lnd use of the plart ste for assets n custody due to acquistions In the past year, the Company made an actual reral payment for RMB
364.412,336 (2008: RM3 125.010.000) to Baosteel Group.

The Group keased houses 10 such related partes as Baoshan Hotel and Baosteel Development and rts subsidianes at negotated pnces.
Meanwhile Baosteel Group, Baosteel Resources Co ., Ltd. and its subsidianes ako leased housed 10 the Group at negotuted prices

The Group provded, via Fnance Co, one of ts subsdianes. loans, discount and entrusted financing services and recerved interest income .
discount Income and fees from entrusted faancng.

For Renmints loans, the interest rate was the rate set by People’s 8ank of China; discourtt rate was deoded on bass of the drscount rate
set by People’'s Bank of China;and prices of fnancg services were ones agreed upon between the involved sides

The Group recered depostts from Baosteel Group and nt subsidunes and paxd them interests at the RM3 interest rate as set by the
People’s Bank of China.

In accordance with the Supplemerttary Agreemert of the Acquistton of Assets for Baosteel Phase 3 Projects, the deferred interest related
10 acquiston payments by the Group 1o Baostee! Group shall be pard in the st tve worlang days of December each year from 2002
10 2009 The amou of interests in the penod was RMB 16000000 (2008: RMB 48,000.000).

According 10 the contract sgned by the Group and Baosteel Group, the Group paxd. via an account Finance Co. one of fts subsctanes,
Baosteel Group entrusied ioan interest every quarter of a year The interest rate was decided on the basis of the market finanang rate
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(6)  Balance of receivables and payables of related parties
Notas rocanianio S iousane B et
Baosteel Development and s subsdunes 385786 105,452
No 2 Steel and s scbsdares 84086 97674
Meshan Steel and 15 subscianes 475641 T 36790
No 5 Steel and ts subsic.anes 2852
Baosteel Resources T 8768672 T
Tiargn BCM - “mn - 23846
N 2148659 B .
"Others R 4768 T
Tou! 2125166 616,136
Baosteel Group 16225 8433
“Baosieel Developmert and s subsidares 67294 4972
Meshan Steel and fts subsdunes C T 93907 72,266
Pudong Steel and tts subsdanes. - .—SI_OGI 23787
No S Steel 2nd s subsdianes 5720 o 3,989
Xmnjung Bay Steel and s subsdanes T 32774
Baosteel Resources and 25 subsdanes 28481 o 8.466
Fortune Trust 10734 o 453
“Baostee Metal and 15 sbsdanes 18838 - 14872
Enginecrng & fechnology and rs subsidiares T 6889 105.869
Examnaton Co. and fs scbsdunes e 7237
Examnation & Matenance Co and ts subsidanes 25,194 ) 10859
Zharyang Longieng T 158,149 T
BNA T 06109 728,165
Wekding Co T T e 2140
Otrers ) 228

Total 1307813 1202.736
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Baosteel Development and rts subsdunes 14,796 14831
Meishun Steel and s subsidanes 3055 57435
“Yiriang Bay Steel and 5 subsduries 146,159 148237
MI Resources and s subsdunes 182016 668
Engineermg & Technology and s subsdiaries 264.948 Si1891
Exammnaton Co. 4192 55_8;
BNA 762470 469.359
Ningbo Steel 200.668
Others 2473 4660
Total 1580777 1212667

Other recenvabies

31 December 2009

31 Dacember 2008

AMB thousand RMB thousand
Mershan Steel and s subsdanes 161,545 114925
Engineerng & Technology Co.and ts subsidiaries 1.058 931
Weldng Co 1,610
Others 2217 1779
Tout 166,430 117635

Loans grantod and cash advances

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

AMB thousand AMB thousand
Pudong Stee! and its subsitanes 1,200 000
Xirguang Bay Steel and ns subschanes 1,000 000 1000000
Baosteel Resources and ns subsiduanes 1007.939 292487
Baosteel Meta! and s subsddanes 32,622 118,346
Engineenng & Technology and fts subsidanes 226,000 273185
Examnavon & Mantenance Co 60.000 90000
Nogbo Steel 76.800
Henan Pingbao 180.000 35,000
Others. 17.000 73400 i
Towt 3800.36- 1883418 :
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Rece:pt ¢f deposts and deposis from other tanks

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

RMB thousand BMB thousand
Baostee! Group 5787826 8816641
1o § Steel and s subsdanes i 153,159 58265
Fortune Investment 300,096
Fortune Trust B 610,309 197
Engineenng & Technology and s subscanes i 46148 717
Baostees Insttute 31263 13572
Others 81518 . 159,075
Toul 7010319 9.248.47:
Baosteel Development and fts subsdures. 16,656 60,432
"Meshan Steel and 15 subsclanes 109246 14531
Xingang Bay: Steel and s subssdunes - 269930 225598
‘Baostee! Resources and s subskiares 471534 - 992747
: g neerng & Technology and s ubsidanes 2519 - 100,795
| Exarwnavon & Mantenance Co 4816 36337
i BNA 27993
' Others 11.209
Torl 1173903
Baosteel Group 290698 9735
Baosteel Development and rts g.tymunes. o 476444 423698
"No. | Steel and s subsdares - 43841 25023
Mestan Steel and £ subsdanes 515383 ’ 123088
Pudong Steel and g subsdlanes 6899 70209
No' Steel and s subsdares %715 )
Baosteel Resources and s subsdanes. 438341 352316
}T\gl?genng & Technology Co and fts subsdines 430100 281,347
Examunaton Co. ard fts subsdanes 114449 139518
Examinaton & Martenance Co 97135 185,160
Bao-sund Enterpraes T 6171 i 92236
Yy 188258 146030
Bao,ung Shipp.ng 24134 27.581
Bao-lstand Trading 391420 167,387
Others 67460 76778
Toi 3117448 2487936




L
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. L_ [ L.

Notes to the Financial Statements onmued
31 December 2009

RMB

Baostee! Group 7.008 613
Baosteel Development and its subsdunes 37 44,345
No.2 Steel and s subsitares 14,78} 12929
No. | Siel and its subsdunes 18.409 37555
Mershun Steel and s subsdanes 137.166 103590
Pudong Steel and s subsiduries 153 5573
No 5 Steel and rts subsdanes 1419 1324
Baosteel Resources and nts subsidanes 5,181 1124
Baostee! Metl and 15 subsdunes - 195,543 65279 A
Tanpn BCM 32082 12,115
Owers 13315 8921
Toul 738.774 293378
Omer syaios e v e asan
Baosteel Development and fts subsctunes 3375 2327
Messhan Steel and rts subsidianes 2301 1755
Baosteel Metal and 1ts subsdunes 1.202

No 5 Steel and s subsic:anes - 1388
Baosteel Resources and its subsdunes - 5.000
Engneering & Technology and s subsdanes 5771 5,004
Baostee! Instxute - 1107
Others 144 145
Toul 12,793 16726
Imerasts payable & D;;?mﬁ ¥ mlm
Baosteel Group 26752 40280
Na 5 Steel and 1ts subsdianes 1093 570
Others 1.319 728
Toul 29.164 41578
Long-tem borowings a D:aeénbe' 2009 & mﬁzgg
Baosteel Group (v Finance Co)) . 3.500000

Recetvables from and payables to related parties conceming related party transactions other than those under notes receivable, loans granted and
cash advances. notes payable. deposts from or to other financial institutions. and fong-term borrowings are free from interests, pledges, and maturtty. Refer
1o Note § (37) for information about fong-term payables to the controtter:
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7. Contingencies
Up to the balarxe sheet date. the Group had no contingencies that need to be drsclosed
8. Commitments
Captal commiments 31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Coreracted but not provded 8933.081.11515 17.368880532.53
Approved by the Board but not comracted 926477947343 16.768706.817.98
18.197.860588 58 341375873505+

The capitai commitments by the Group up to 31 December 2008 has been fulfilled as promsed

9. Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date

As approved by the fourth meeting of the fourth Board of Directors held on 31 March 2009, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dwdend

payout of RMB 2 0 per 10 shares (pre-tax), with total of dmdend payable of RMB 3.502,400,000 00 The proposal has been submitted to the 2009 General
Shareholders’ Meeting for approva'




139@

Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Lud.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
31 December 2009

e
| R N

S utd

I46

o

DU P

10.

m

2)

3

4}

Other Significant Events

Leases
As leaser
Stgnificant operating leases

Mirurnum remts for unchangeabie leases as specified in lease agreements with leases:

31 December 2008

31 Dacember 2008

I year and witin | year 26392085427 183880.408 33
2 years and 1.2 years 24347025359 14030775942
3 years and 2.3 years 23822686500 13167544570
Over 3 years - 192392462200 113167574200
Totat 2.669.542.594 86 1587.539.355.45

Asseus/liabilities measured at fair value

2009
Gansand tossas  Accumulated falr Impaimment
Begnrning balance from change value recorded nthe od Closing balance
in far value N 6quity pen
Finanaal assews
Finanaal assets measured at Qir values with s -
vanaton recorded Into the profits and losses cf 114116515885 (112.619.133.19) 54637706835
the current penod
incuding Dervatve firancal assets 11459875075 (114,598.75075)
Fnancal assets avalable for sale 860,182,984 66 316525949.03 1056020521.34
Touat 2008,348,14351 (112:619.13319) 316525949.03 1,602,397 589.69
Francal llabdmes 1150044473 (5.21541978) 6.285.02495
Financial assets and liabilities in foreign currency
Gains and losses  Accumulated fair Impairment
Begnning batance from change value recorded in the period Ciosing balance
in fair vahe n equity Pe

Financial assets
Financial assets measured at far vakses
with #ts vanation recorded into the profits 114,598,75075 (114.598.750.75)
and losses of the current period
Indluding: Derivative finandal assets 114,598.750.75 (114.598.750.75) - -
Loans and receivables 3.206.719.426.08 - 354093068103
Teral 3.321.318,17683 (114.598,75075) 354093068103
Financual liabilives 1038029.832.31 - 1098405532 65

Annuity plan and its major change

In accordance with the “Reply to Baosteel Group’s Applicaton for Tnal Enterprise Annuty Plan” (SASAC [2008]1268). by the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Adminsstrason Commssion of the State Council (SASAC). and the "Announcement of Preporton in Emterprise Annutty Plan” by the
Human Resource Department cf Baosteel Group, the system of annuety plan was practsed in the Company from | January 2008 The portion responsible
by the employer is 4% of the base amount of the indvidual (salary i the previous year with Iimits of the lowest and the highest), while the portion by
the indvidual 15 1%-7% of the base amour+ (1% of pnmary porton and o more than 6% of addtional portion). The said anncity is managed by Baosteel

Group’s subsict ary-Fortune Trust Co ttd in 2009
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Segiment reporting

The businesses of the Group are managed and organized according to the nature of each business and products and services t provides. Each seg-
memt makes a business unrt, facing risks different from those in other segments and benefiting from products and services different from those of others

The business segment 1s dvided into steel and iron, trade and others according to the idustry where the Company and ts subsidiaries belong The
steel and iron segment consists of steed and iron producing units and trade segment ccmprses trade units, while others include, among others, the finarce
unrt. the chemical industry unt the information unit The d:strict segment s dvided into domestic segment and intemational segment according to place
where a product s marketed The business segments inciude:

Segment Branches and subsidianes included

fron & steel manufacturing The Company, Mershan Steel, Ningbo Baaxin. Yantai Lubao, Huangshi Coating & Gahanuzng Yantai Baosteel Baoyin Special
Steel, Nartong Steel and other steel and ron producing unts.

Iron & steel rade Baosteel Imenatonal and fts subsiduries. Specul Metal Baosteel Amenca, Baostee! Europe, Baosteed Singapore, Howa Trading,
Bao-lsand Emerpnises. Baosteel Brazi Trading and other tradmg subsdunes;

Others Finance Co., Chemical Co. Baos:gm Software. No S Steel Gas and others,

The saless to no indmidual custorner of the Group has accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue.

For drsclosure of the Group's operating data, the revenues are classified and disclosed in the region where the customers are situated, and the assets
are classified and disclosed in the region where the assets are sguated.

The actual price of a transferred transact:on among segments s based on current market price, with reference 1o the prce at which a simmdar trans-
ation is conducted with a third party.

As day-to-day activities of the Finance Co. are financial in nature, the investment income of Finance Co.has been included in the segmert business
income Financial expenses, loss from asset impairment, profit and loss from changes in farr value and investment ncome (excluding Finance Co.) have
been excluded from the segment business profit The deferred income tax assets are not included in the segmertt assets, while short term borrowings,

current portion of non<urrent assets (excluding current portion of the long-term payable), long-term borrowings and deferred income labilues have
not been 1cluded in the segment Labilities
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() Business segment
2009 iron & Steel Trade Others Ofiset Total
RMBthousand  RMBthousand  AMBthousand  RMBthousand  RMB thousand
Busess revenus 126524817 129823714 9723985 (117489.708) 148582812
Inciuding Extermal ransacoon income 20680.540 123987123 3915.149 148582812
Transaction income among segments 105844277 5836591 5808836 (117489.704)
Business cost 119842627 128212402 8591.159 (115969.036) 141.077.152
Business proft 6682150 1611312 7.8 (1520,668) 7.505.660
Total assets 188621277 30746541 15870738 (39.150.443) 200088,113
Total kabities 63044.195 22752535 9792401 (25614611 £9.974520
Complementary information:
Capral expenses 18140371 523361 911923 19.575.655
Deprecaton or amortzation expenses 12686617 288512 305488 13280617
Loss from asset impairmen 683297 (268844) (10069) T (1039.488) (635.104)
2008 Iron-8 Steel Trade Others Ofiset Total
RMBihousand  RMBinousand  RMBthousand  RMBthousand  RMB thousand
Business revenve 165836712 172767562 11227840 (148827.182) 201004932
Including External transaction income 32760440 163642.635 4601657 201004932
Transacton noome among segments 133076272 9.124727 6626.183 (148827.182)
Busmess cost 154106727 171316781 10077001 (150475.691) 185024818
“Business prokt 11729985 1450781 1150839 1648509 15980.114
Totl assets 189.307.380 32.638295 18825258 (41529276) 198241657
Total kabirues 53042745 217925988 Tnsssn (26550.062) 62264193
Complementary information:
Capral expenses 8742212 708280 909.509 30,360001
Depreaiton or amoruzation expenses 13977883 293739 389.732 14,661,354
Loss from asset impavment 4595329 42053 88472 789531 5693868
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{b) Information of the Group
2009
Domestic market International market Ofiset Total
AMB thousand RMB thousand RMB thousand RMB thousand
External transactions income 134627412 13955400 148582812
Tow! of non-current assets (Note) 138,780,838 221223 (975.649) 138026412
Note: Non-curment assets balong 1o the region they are situated, excluding fnancial assets and deferred inCOMe tax assats.
2008
Domestic market International market Offset Total
RMB thousand RMB thousand AMB thousand RMB thousand
Extemal Transactons ncome 176462509 24542423 - 201,004.932
Total of non-current asses (Note) 133618285 237385 (990.899) 132864771
Note: Non-curment assets baong to the region they are situated, exduding financial assets and deferred income tax assets.
ncome from extemal transactions includes
2009 2008
RMB thousand RMB thousand
Lnvestment mcome of Finance Co. 57543 366.923
tems not cortained in segment business income, segment assets. and segment Labilities:
Rems not comained i segment business Incorme:
2009 2008
AM3 thousand RMB thousand
Financal expenses 1675503 2095.74!
Losses lrom assets impairment/(reversal) (635.104) 5893868
Losses and profts from changes in Gir value 107.404 (3421)
Investment ncome (exchudng Finance Co.) (895.909) (310.243)
Tout 251894 7675945

ftems not contained in segment assets:

31 December 2009
RMB thousand

31 December 2008
RMB thousand

Deferred ncome tax assets

1054670

1.779.480

kems not comtained In segment liabilities

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

RMB thousand RAMB thousand
Short term borrowangs 24274430 24 104,127
Current portion of non-current Labirties (exciuding long-term payables) 114126 1.181.587
Long-term borrowings 5294932 14201,885
Deferred income tax labiues 265472 431,658
Toul 19.948960 39919.257
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Financial instruments and risk analysis

The financal instruments of the Group mainly inchude monetary funds, transactional financial assets. purchases of resale financial assets, loans granted
and cash advances. short term borrowings. acceptance of depostts and deposits from or to other financial insttutions. These financial instruments are for
financing for and investment on the Group’s operation The Group owns other types of financial assets and kabilibes, such as trade and notes receivable
and trade and notes payable, by a vanety of means.

The Group engages in derivative transactions, mainly including forward contracts and interest rate exchange contracts. for the purposes of manage-
ment of the operavon of the Group and avoidance of currency rsks and interest rate risks

The Group's pnce risk exposure relates to market risks and financial risks These risks are dealt with by foflowing means: () a stnct systematic proce-
dure and a sound decision-making mechanism, which are being tmproved dynamacally; (2) an information managesment system of financial irstruments for
transparency and follow-up services in Enancial transactons; (3) a system of process-control and inspection and review. and {4) improving the feasibilty
and saemfic nature of decisions-making by means.

Accounting policies of the Group concerrng dervatve financal instruments are specified n Note 2 (16)

(a)

Market risks

Market msk are related to potential change in faxr value of financial mstruments from fluctuation in foremgn exchange rates (currency risk), market
interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prces (price nsk), whether such change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or
fts issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

Foreign-exchange risk

The term “Foreign-exchange nsk” refers to the risk of fluctuation of the fair value of the future cash flow of the financial instruments caused by the
change of foreign exchange rate.The Group's foreign currency nsk exposure relates to fluctuations in exchange rates between the Renmunbi and other
currencies in which the Group conducts business.

The large demand of iron ores of the Group 15 pnmanly settied in USD, which results in 3 relatively great defcn in USD income and expense. In
view of the practcal situation of more bilateral fuctuations in the exchange rate of RM8 against USD and changes in the trend of unilateral appreciavon,
with a view 10 evade the rsk of exchange rate fluctuason of labilites in USD. the Company conducts fnancing activizes in USD matched with forward
exchange contracts, pnontizes and selects fnancing actvtres in USD and financing activibes in RMB according to the comprehensive financing cost ratio
with the most preferential financing cost rato in RM3 currently avalable as the benchmark At the same time. the Company practices dynamic research
on the exchange trend of RMB against USD. the financing activities in USD will be ceased if the comprehensive financing cost ratio of USD s higher than
control target of inerest rate.

With the concepbon of controlling the target by interest rate, the comprehensive finanang cost level in the repayment penod was locked up at the
begnning of the period. In other words, the interest expense. exchange gainsflosses, and delivery gainsftosses from the comespondert forward exchange
trading are corsidered as a whole. In the lock-up period. the operation has no significant impact upon the fluctuation of the performance of the Company.
however. t may have temporary influence in different penods due to re-esumations of exchange rate.
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Price risk

The Group’s pnce risk exposure relates to financial assets and liabilities whose values fluctuate as a result of changes i market prices. They are
principally available-for-sale assets and financial assets cammied at fair value through profit or loss,

Such Investments are subject to prce risk due to changes in market values of instruments ansing ether from factors specifc to ndvidual instruments
or their ssuers or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

Equity price risk

Equity price rsk refers to potental loss in fair value of equity secunty resulting from adverse changes m a particular stock or stock index. As at 31
December 2009, the Group was exposed to equity pnce risks from individual equrty investments which belong to transactional equity investment (Note
5(3)) and investment avalable for sale (Note 5(11)). The excharge traded investment of the Group is at Shanghai Stock Exchange and Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and rs measured on basis of market Guota on the balance sheet date.

The stock mdex on the day nearest to the balance sheet date at the following stock exchange and the highest and lowest closing prices in the year
15 as follows:

31 December 2000 HighesLowest 2009 31 Decembor 2008 Highest/Lowest 2008
Shanghar—A share ndexes of
4
Shanghar Stock Exchange 3437 desuisde 1912 577111793
Shenzhen—A share indexes.
of Shenzhen Stock Exchange 1261 1296/600 582 1,6601480

The following chart represents the sensitvity of the pre-tax profit and equity against every 5% change in fair value of equrty mstruments (on basis
of the book value as on the balance sheet date), while all other vanables remain constant and before any impact of taxation is considered. From the
perspectve of sensitivity analyus, the impact upon equity instrument investment avallable for sale can be regarded as one upon the change in fair value of
the investment, without taking into consideraton of possible deduction in proftt statements

Book value of Increase/cecrease of NCroase/decrease
equity investment pre-tax profit n equity”™
RM3 thousand RMB thousand RMB thousand
2009
Investments at followng stock exchanges:
Shangha—lnvestment avadable for sale 830891 - 44.545
——Investment held for sale 41473 2074
Shenzhen ~—Investment available for sal 124776 . 6239
Book value of Increase/decrease of Increase/decrease
equity invesiment pre-tax profit in equity”
RMB thousand RMB thousand AMB thousand
2008
Investments at folowing stock exchanges:
Shanghar——mvestment avatable for sate . 39438 . 19.719
——lnvestment heid for sale
Shenzhen——Investment available for sat 6082 . 304

* The retained earning was not included.
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Interest rate visk

“Imerest rate risk” refers to the nsk of fuctuztion of the fair value or the future cash flow of financial instruments caused by the change of the interest
rate. The Group s exposed to interest rate rsks pnmarily associated with s Labilibes whose imterests are cakulated at a floating interest rate. The pobcy
of the Group is to manage interest expense by means of combining habdrtres wath fixed rates and those with floating rates

The interest rate of an RMB borrowing of the Group 15 adjusted, when 1t 1s due or on any date as is speafied in the contract. i line with <ormespond:ng
base iterest adjustment by the Chinese People’s Bank The risks of some long-term foreign currency bormowings with floating rates are managed by interest
rate swaps. which locks in interest nsks. while the rates of most short term foreign currency borrowings are locked in for the whole penod at the beginning,

interest rate nsks of the financial instruments of the Group as presented in terms of dates to maturity and actual interest rates

Securities
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Transactional . Transactiona "
( ol assets Financial assets for sale f al assets Financial assets for sale
Within | year 208,183.567.20 -
Over | year 1035392000 . 439.720.000.00
Toul 1035392000 208.183.567.20 439,720.000 00
Actual rate (annual) 480% 156-6.28% 351%56%
Other financial assets
31 December 2009
Funds lent to Purchases of
other financial nstutions resale financial ossets Y granted Entrusted asset
Within | year .
Over | year - 4.132.276.993.30
Towl 4.132.276.99330 -
Actual rate (annual) 1.26%-576%
31 December 2008
Funds lent to Purchasas of .
oiher fnancial institutions resae financel assels Loans graniod Entrusted ssset
Within | year - -
Over | year 1.907.753.092.68 -
Toul 1.907,753.092.68
Actual rate (annual) 4.62%-7.84%
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Financial liabilities
31 Dacember 2009
Assets sod
Bomowings|  under agreements Acceotanc °; Bona payale|  Long-term payable
10 repurchase
Wiathin | year 24.388556.12029 7018.610.67845 2.868833.680 10
Ovwer | year 5.294932.134.33 18067,156,259.62 5092440941 36
Toul 29683488254 62 701861067845 18.067,156.259.62 796127462146
Actual rate (annual) 1.706%-5913% 0.36%225% 299%562% 4%
31 Decémber 2008
Assets sokd
Bormowings under agreements Aocepd ?; Bond payable Long-term payable
10 repurchass epos
Within | year 25285.713607 67 294,000,000 00 9256.840.186.79 286983368010
Over | year 1420188477241 7.785029.71821 7544731994 48
Toul 39.487598,38008 294,000,000.00 9.256.840,186.79 7.785029.71821 10.413565674.58
Actual e (annual) 24%-72% 1.001% 0.36%333% 562% %

(a)

(b

Financial risks

Credit risk

Credrt risk 15 the risk of economc loss resutting from the failure of one of the Group’s obligors to make payment of any pnncipal or Interest when
due in the case of fixed income investments or. 11 the case of an equity investment, the loss in value resutung from a corporate failure

The Group is exposed to credit risks pnmarily associated with rts trades receivable, payments in advance. and loans gramted and cash advances.

The credrt of each customer is reviewed and the receivables are monitored for possible risks of bad debt The Group seeks to manage s credrt risks by
carmying out transacbons with widely recognized third parties with high reputation The advance payment in full amount is used sakes transactions or the
full amount is usually paxd upon receipt of the shipping documents when the down payment method is used. For a minonity of customers, credtt ne and
penod of payment are measured in credrt assessment, but the bank acceptance s encouraged in setthng accounts, while in purchasing transactons the pay
on recexpt method and the credit payment method are generally preferred. For constructors. suppliers of equipment that requires a long period of build-
Ing or provders of materials in short supply, a down payment can be made after their credit lines and period for payment are decided in an assessment.

The Loans gramed and cash advances of the Group are afl managed by Finance Co.and possible debtors are lmrted to member units of the Group
with credit 5o that credt rsks are managed within a reasonable degree.

Other credi nisks to which the Group is exposed from financial assets and habilities pnmanly associated with traders who break contracts Without
a guaramee available or a means of credit enhancement. the greatest risk the Group is exposed 10 15 koss of the book value of a fnancal instrument The
Group has not provide any form cf guarantee which may put it in 2 stuation of risks As at 31 December 2009 only 24% of the recervables were due
from the top five dettors, the Group 5 nat found to be exposed to signdicant intensive credit risks.

Liquidity risk

Uquidtty sk rs the nsk of not having access to sufficient funds 1o meet the Group's obiigations as they become due. The Group seeks to manage its
liquidity nsk by ensunng its financing avalabiirty and flexatuity by means of trade finance. convertible bonds, kong- and short term borrowings, and other
interest-beanng actvrties and adequate credt-grarting quota from major financial Instrtutes o as to meet short- and long-term fund demand of the Group.
The Group monitors its short- and long-term fund demand so that fts cash reserve and realizable market securtty are kept adequate
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Fair value

Methods and assumptions used by the Group to estimate the fair value of a fnancial instrument
(a) Investment with a fixed date of maturity: the Group adopts the mariet quoted price to determne the farr value of the said investment When
the market quoted prie is not accessibie. the Group estimates the price on the basss of the latest transaction or the current cash flow of the avadable

pces or inmterest rates of similar nvestment.

(b) bwestment funds and equrty securtties: the Group adopts the market quoted price to determine the farr value of the saxd investment, while those
of some unmarketed investments 1s determined reasonably by s cost.

(<) The book values of all assets and labiltbes approxamate their fair va'es

@ Other events bearing upon investors

The Company acquired from Pudong Steel. a whotly owned subsidiary of the Group, Luojing assets and related businesses in 2008. Luojing assets
cover an area of 3228 mllion m” for which Pudong Steet has paid some 1nftial experses, but not the land transfer expense, for which the Company needs
o pay RMB 2.8 billon as prelimenandy estimated. Baosteel Group promises:

(3) Baosteel Group and/or Pudong Steel will help the Company to go through the transfer procedures and other matters as required by the Com-
pany reasonably.

(b) In the event of the total actual expense exceeding RM8 28 billion for the procedures, Baosteel Group or Pudong Steel shall fully cover the
exceedmg amount in tme, by means of paying the Company or government (as is required)
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Notes to the Company’s Financial Statements

Trade receivable

The credit peniod of trade recenvabie is usually one month and trade recenvable are not interest-bearing,

Ageing analysis of the trade recenable s follows.

31 December 2009

31 December 2008

Within | year

$.936.609.19992 5.866218.889.01
12 years 8229983537 9516578.82
2-3 years 83367528
More than 3 years 7687759778 8141415306
6.096.620.308 35 5.957.149,620.89
Less bad debt provision for notes recervable 366.247211.14 368314691 55
Toul 573037309721 5.588834.929.34

Changes in vad debt provision for receivables:

31 December 2009

31 Decempar 2008

Openng balance 36831469155 40117041029
Proviion for the year 159.220351.79 486826386
Reversal for the year (160.696.31503) (37.668875.96)
Bad dedt wrting-off for the year (591517.17) {55.106.64)
Totat 36624721114 36831469155
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Book valuo | Percentage| Bad debt prowson Book value | Percentage | Bad debt provision
:"““"”" with sgaubcant sngle 154632294645 s8% 25034991521 | 354395682781 59% 249,157,626, 34
Recervable with insigruscant singe -
amounts but with considerable credt | 2.550296.361.90 42% 11589729593 | 2413.192.79308 41% 119.157.065 21
risk features in combinaton
6.096 620.308.35 100% 366247211.14 | $957.149.62089 100% 368.314691.55
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Provisions for bad debts for recenables with significant single amounts and those with insignificant amounts but subjected to independent impairment tests
as at 31 December 2009

Canrying amount Bad dett provison Provision raie Reasons
Trade receivable with targe surms 346944634867 17347231743 5% Notel
Trade recewable with longer ages 7687759778 76.877597.78 100% Note2
354632394645 25034991521

Notes: 1. The provision rate for trede recevabie with an age no mMore than one year, kr which no evidence is found for possbie difficutty n recovering,
i3 5%.

2. A 100% provision is prepared for trade receivable with longer ages and dificutties in recovering.

Provrsions for bad debts for recevables with significant single amounts and those with insignificant amounts but subjected to iIndependent impaiment tests
as at 31 December 2008

Carrying amount Bad dett provision Provision rate Reasons
Notes recenable with large sums 3468209.685.76 17341048429 5% Notel
Nates receivabie with longer ages 75.747.14205 75.747.14205 100% Note2
3.543956.82781 249.157.62634

Noies: 1. The provision rate for trade recevable with an age no more than one yeay. for which no evidence is found for possible difficutty n recovenng,
is 5%.

2. A 100% provision is prepared for trade receivabie with longer ages and dicutties in recovonng

31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Toul of top fve debts 3.469.446 34867 346820968576
Rato against total receivable S1% 58%
Debr duravon Withn | year Within | year
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(2)  Other receivables
Ages of other receivables
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Wirthin | year 18896600371 4949121046
1-2 years 1378046007 78.770978.6%
2-3 years 45,35528042
248.101.74420 128262.189.15
Less' bad debt provimon for other recenabies 9.24091513 347049332
Toual 238.860.82907 12479169583
Changes in bad debt provision for other recenvables:
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Opening baance 347049332 3980689 37
Provision for the year 11,587 68602 208190254
Reversal for the year (5.817.26421) (2.591.312.77)
Bad debt wriing-off for the year - (785.79)
Total . 9.240915.13 347049332
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
Bad Bad
Book value | Percentage debt provision Book value | Percentage et provision
Recetvable with signricant single amounts 20441027637 0% - 79.835.194.23 62%
Recenvable with insignificant single
amounts but with considerable credrt risk 4369146783 18% 9.24091513 4842699492 38% 347049332
features iIn combination
248.101.744.20 100% 9.24091513 128262.189 15 100% 347049332

Provisucrs for bad debts for other recenvables with significamt single amounts and those with insignricant amounts but subjected to independent impairment
tes's a5 at 31 Decermber 2009

Camying amount  Bad debt provision Provision raie Reasons
Other receivables with no risks in recovening 20441027637 . 0% Note |

Note 1 Provisions were not prepared for bad debts due 10 the fact these estimates were for customs deposils and input VATs of afilated
transactions, which have very low risk in recovering.

Provisors for bad debrs for other recevables with significant single amounts and those with nsignificant amounts but subjected to independent imparment
tests as at 31 December 2008

Carryng amaunt Bad dodt provision Provision rate Reasons
Orher recenvables with no reks n recoverng ! 79.835.194.23 . 0% Note i

Note 1:  Provisions were not prepared for bad debts due 10 the fact these estimales were for cusioms deposts and input VATs of affliated
transact.ons, which have very low rigk in recovering.

31 December 2009 31 Doecember 2008
Tetal of top five debts 212,222,10762 103025.652.55
Rano against total recenvabie 88% 80%

Debt duravon Wrhin 2 years Withn 2 years
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Long-term equiry investment

31 December 2008

Increase n the year

DOecraass in the Inctuding: Cash

year dmdend received

31 Decamber 2009

Cost method 21548232391 .14

1.390.000.000.00 {15.250081.87) 2292298230927
Equty method 2365.396.161.14 24324559962 (5.46592000) (5465920 00) 2603.175.840.76
23913628552.28 1.633.245599 62 (20.716001.87) 25526,158,15003

Less Impairment provisons for
long-term equry imvestmerntt

2391362855228 25526,158.15003
Long-term cquity invesiments in subsidiaries ineasured on basis of cost method
Invested enttty Percentage of ”‘“") 31 December 2009 31 Decamber 2008 Dividend received
Yarai Lubao 98 361.404905.16 361404905 16
HGJ“‘M":’:D:“"‘ & P37 4065647739 4065847739
Baosteel Imematoral 100 601388655267 601388655267 57476135007
Mershan Steel 740 7438982988 14 7438982988 14 1922922681
Ningbo Baoxin 54 119996537757 1199.96537757
Baosight Software 555 27566436308 27566436308 2911121400
Baosteel Amenca 100 187.561,180 98 187.562.18098
Howa Trading 100 22197578012 221975780 12
Baontee! Europe 100 32863198158 32863198158
Baosteel Singapore 100 15488336409 154.883,36409
Bao-lstand Enterpeise 100 8196765027 97.117.732.14
Bacstee! Brazi Tradg ’ 100 72864773 7864773
NosS Steel Gas 945 120755597 59 12075559759
Specal Mewr 100 50.000000.00 50.000,00000
Baosteel Cremial 100 300622781974 3.006227.819 74 28589249073
Finance Co e 568270003 65 56827000365 124200000 00
Baoyin Tubes 65 130,000,000.00 130,000,000 00
Yartai Tubes ) 1600000000 00 40,000,000 00
Nantong Steet 9582 94852031051 51852031051
ot 2272998600027 21355236082 14 1033.194281 61

Other long-terin equity investments in subsidiaries measured on basis of cost method

Por ’

Invested enty e-oontage o ”;;'5 31 Decomber 2009 31 December 2008 Dividand received
Brovale Minng Co .0 Note | 50 103282213.00 10326221300 1934171245
Shanghai Luopng Mining Port Co ., Ltd. 12 88.734.096.00 88.734.096 00 805684132
Oters 98000000 36000000 2100000
Tou 19299630900 19299630900 2741955377

Note 1 As the Company does not exert actual contrat or significant nfluence over the operating polcies and financial decisions Baovale Mining,
the Company only receives certain fixed payment in acoordance with relative agreements and. thexelors, the investment in Baovale was
considersd long-term equity nvestment and measured on bass of cost method.
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(iii}  lnvestments on joint ventures measured on basis ot equity method
" Investment cost
Ratio against Inttial amount of
Increase/(decrease)’ investment cost
Invested entdy Ouration regos’lered c:gllal mvestmr; Transfer-out 6us 10 31C mber 2009
disposal
BNA 20 years 50% 1.500,000.000 00 1.500.000.000 00
Bao-Isand Enterprise Long-term S0% 143084.13200 143084,132.00
1.643084,132.00 1.643084,132.00
{iv)  Investments onassociates measured on basis of equity method
Investment
Ratio against Initial amount of Total addition of cost Increase/  Investment oost
Invested emty Duration registered capital investment . : (decreass)y 31 December
of nvested RMB Transter-out due 2009
10 disposal
STAL Precrson 50 years “0% 122,004,54193 129.452,.880 00 . 25145742193
(v} Financial information of joint ventures and associated entities
stered
Pr1ace of Reg Percentage  Voting power
Type . Legal person  Busmesses Currency capital
reigteration RMB thousan of equity held  of the Group
Joint ventures
BNA UC  Shangha Dar Zhitao Manufactunng RMB 3000000 50% 50%
Baodsand Emerprse  LLC  Hong Kong Not apphcable  Ship chartering HKD 3300 50% 50%
Assocates
STAL Precison uc Shangha) X Wei Mamfacturng usD 96560 40% - 40%
Total assets as Total katwities as Busness revenue Not profit
atend o 2009 at end of 2009 in 2009 in 2009
ot ventures
Bao-Isand Enmerprse 1.392898.174.40 41696403300 682.314.71320 154569.963 40
BNA 5.122,601.046.44 1,705.707 482 90 8.938973.84226 179.332.753.14
Total 651549922084 212267151590 962128855546 33390271654
Assocutes
STAL Precrson 1.412.409.930.38 215990,638.36 71045829168 106,763.83383
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Adjustment in equity
= ; Investment in
ange nvestment prepar;
Chang i proft Cash dmdend o e = @ ‘"‘*‘) aton joint vertures
4 rease/(decrease . 31 Dacember 2009
and loss in the year recatved 31 Decermber 2008 n the yeer Tot increase/(decrease)
12356174991 143612427 19 70.75000 (2.956,392 34) 1640656034 85
77.284981.70 385410456 35 (381.164 80) (44.542.49925) 483952089.10
200,846.731.61 529.022.89354 (310.414.80) (47.49889159) 2.124,608.12395
Adustment in equity
Investment prepasation Imvesiment in
Chang in profit Cash amvigend n ;:u?]a::longs: E—— associates
ransier-out due 1o
and ioss in the year roeved 2000 U010 totai increase/(decreasey o Decomber 2009
42,70553353 (5:465.92000) 227.069.385 18 374928 4090970 47856771681
(4} Business revenue and business cost
Business revenue
2009 2008
Revenue from prncipal businesses 115611,725520.67 149.895.884.030.27
Revenue from other busnesses 67664798507 633219.350.69
Tout 116,188373.505.74 150.529.103.380 96
Toul revenue rom top fve customers. 60975.114.781.80 7574769422867
Rato i 101! business revenue S2% S0%
Revenue and cost from pnncipal businesses:
2009 2008
Reverwe Cost Revenue Cost
Sales of goods. 115611.725520.67 105.083929.432 66 149.895.884.03027 133491.131.075.71
Prinupal businesses by industry:
2009 2008
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
RAMB thousand AMB thousand RMB thousand RMB thousand
Iron & steel manufactunng 115611.726 105083929 149,895,884 133491131
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RMB
Principal businesses by product
2009 2008
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
RMB thousand AMB thousand AMB thousand RMB thousand
ron & steel products 115611,726 105.083.929 149,895,884 133491131
Principal businesses by region:
2009 2008
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
RMB thousand AMB thousand AMB thousand RMB thousand
Domestx market 107.078.822 97402.155 134228565 119.957268
Overseas market 8532904 7681774 15667319 13533863
Total 115611.726 105083929 149,895,884 133491131
(5)  Investinent gains
2009 2008
Loss from dervative instruments in sk preventon (4.764392.18) (114,507 444 75)
Recoguzed net proft and o from oint ventures 243552265 14 31298678442
_and assooates
Profit and loss from transfer of equiues 90359157
Income from equrty mvestments 1.060.613.835.38 198581.646.14
Toul 1299.401,708.34 397.964.577.38

Top five investors whose investment gains from long-term equity investment on the basis of the cost method accounted for more than five percent or

heghest porton of the pre-tax profit:

Investee

2009 2008 Reason for change
Baosteel Imermabonal 574.761.35007 Cash dmwdend
Baosteel Chemical 285.892.49073 173062971.77 Cash dwdend
Finance Co. 124,200,000 00 Cash dr;;i_e-nd‘
é‘aoscgm Software 2911121400 2183341050 Cash dradend
Meshan Steel 19.229226 81 6327500000 Cash dndend
1033.194 281 61 258.171,38227

Top five Investors whose ivestment gains from kong-term equrty investment on the basis of the equity method accounted for more than five percent or
heghest portion of the pre-tax profit:

2009 2008 Reason for change
BNA 123.561.74991 144,026,124 52 Imvestment gains on equity basis
Bao-isand Enterprse 7728498170 11477002050 Investroen gains on equity bass
STAL Precsion 4270553353 5419063940 Investment gains on equity basis
24355226514 312986.784.42
As at 31 D« 2009. no signifs Iimits exrsted regarding investment income repatniation.
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(6)

(7)

¥)

Bank credit-granting quota

As at 31 December 2009. the remaining bank credit-granting quota of the Company was RMB 88.966 billion. The management of the Company
believes that this quota and cash flow from operating activities would be adequate for the current Labilries due in the coming year.

Cash lows trom operating activities

2009 2008
Reconakaton of net profits 1o cash fiows ansing from operating actvibes
Net proft 507687142816 5.077478565.37
Add: Provigon for impairmen losses of assets 495.685.046 06 410242141483
DOeprecanon of fixed assets and real estate invesuments 10905,019.03032 12.182.207.69851
Amoruzamon of intangible assets 9451689243 81,782.694.69
Amortizanon of long-term deferred expenses 13,675.804.20 1245244175
Proft or Josses on the dsposal of fixed assets. intangible assets and other long-tem assets 85,948,606 84 14907597634
Incorme from changes n far vakie 11459875074 (283.67847745)
Financul expense 164726336448 174895592026
Investment income T (1299401.70834) (397.96457738)
Increase n deferred ncome tax 76224657691 (964.302.026.56)
increase in inveones. 256936373078 2284,562060.76
Increase in operating receivabies (7662.197.90867) (3.71655158529)
Increase in operatng payables 496377998374 1.339.860008 32
Net cash flows from operatng activibes 17.767 369,597 65 21.615700314.15
Cash and cash equivalents
2009 2008
Cash 1.767.579.044 85 3.182690.342 86
Including Cash on hand ) 11502489 103077.68
Depostt avaiable for payment at any time 1766.161.041.16 3.180.767.02098
Other monetary assets available for payment 130297890 182024420

Balance of cash and @sh equivalents at the end of period 1.767.579,044 85 3.182.690.342.86
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RMB
1. ROE and EPS
EPS (RMB)
2009 ROE FME)
Basic Dwted
Net proft atrnbutable to ordinary sharehoiders of the Company 627% 033 Note
Net proft attnbutable to ordmary sharehokders of the Company exduding non-recurnng 589% 031 e

Note: The Company ssued RMB 10 bdion worth of convertibie bonds with attached watants with a matunty of six years from June 20, 2008
The inquiry coupon rate was 0.8% and subscribers receied 18 call wamants for every bond taken up, with the opton price set at RMB
12.5 per shere. an expiry period of 24 months and the exercise proportion of 2:1. The exaxcise price was adusted 10 12.18 per share due
10 dvdend distribution on 15 June 2008. As the A-share of the Company was lower than the prce of the warrant up to 31 December 2008
and in 2008. ts diuted patential was not considened.

As the Company owned no potential ordinary shares that likely possess dilution in the subsequent periods in 2008 and 2009, diluted earmings per
share was not drsclosed

Including: Net prot atnbutable to ordinary shareholders of the Company excluding non-recurning profit and loss

2009 2008
RMB thousand AMB thousand

Profit attnbutable to ordnary shareholders of the Company 5816227 6459.207
Add/(Less) non-recurnng profit and loss. )

Loss from drsposal of non-currert assets B 342022 312293

Governmert subsdies recorded i current gains and losses ) (318054) @161

Net proft and loss of combined subsdines under same control before combination - 3‘;01‘3_!

Investment income from deposal of inancal assets avaitable for sale (4'2-7-,8I8)

Non-operabng income and expense other than the above (64.758) 47.568

Income tax impact 117290 (29.280)
Net proft attnbutabie to ordnary shareholders of the Company exduding non-recurrng profit and loss 5464909 6.9;8_.5

As day-to-day actmties of the Finance Co. are financual in nature. the company’s transactional financial assets, profit and loss from changes in fair value
transactonal fnancizl babilities, and investment income from disposals of transactional financial assets, transactional nancial labiltues and avadabie-for-sale
financial assets were not induded in the non-recurnng gains and losses.

Non-recumning kems were recogrized by the Group in accordance with " Explanatory Notce on Information Drsclosure of Compantes Issung Public
Securthes No. | —Non-recumng Gains and Losses” by CSRC ([2008) No 43)
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Analysis of Changes in Financial Data in the Statements

The bond payable was RMB 10.282 billion more than that of the previous year, arise of 132% mainly due to the effort made by the Company
1o optimize the debt structure and to lower financing cost. In addition, medium term note worth RMB 10 billion was issued in the period

As compared with that of the previous year, the operating revenue decreased by 26%, or RMB 52.005 billion. fiscally as a result of more than
20% drop in comprehensive sales price of steel products. The sales of steel products also experienced certain decrease in the period

The operating cost went down by 24%, or RMB 41.562 billion, as compared with that of the previous year This was mainly due to the price
drop in fuel and raw materials such as ore, coke and stainless materials as well as the measures taken by the Company to reduce consump-

tion and lower costs. In addition, the sales of steel products also experienced certain decrease in the penod.

The administrative expense dropped by 19%, or RMB 1.084 billion, as the result of the effort made by the Company to better control the
costs.

The loss from impairment of assets was RMB 6.529 billion less than that of the previous year. a decrease of |10%. This was mainly due to
the reversal or recovery of major part of prowision for inventory loss as a result of recovered shipments and prices of steel products, and
lower prices of raw materials purchase.
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XI. Documents on Record for Reference

/ /) SIS SSL LSS SIS S LS [ LSS LS S/ LSS LSS LSS LSS LSS S S S LS I ID:

Financial Statements with signatures and seals of the legal representative. Financial Controller and Chief Accountant of the Company
2 Original copy of the Auditors’ Report with the seal of the accounting firm and signatures and seals of certified public accountants
3 CSRC-designated newspapers in which the Company's disclosures available and their manusaripts

Board of Directors,
Baoshan lron & Steel Co, Lto

Chairman Xu Lejiang
31 March 2010




Confirmation in Writing by the Senior Management of

Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. for the Company's 2009 Annual Report

In accordance with article 68 of *Securtties Law” and the requirements in *Circular on Property Handling the 2009 Annual Reports of Listed
Comganies® of Shanghai Stock Exchange. we. as the senior management, believe the Company’s 2009 Annual Report has truthfully reflected the
Company's financial status and operating resutts after comprehensively understanding and reviewing the Company’s 2009 Annual Report.

W hereby guarantee that the 2009 Annual Report is free from false statement. misleading information or grave material omission, and assume
relevant separate and joint responsibilities in regard 1o the truth, the accuracy and the integrity of the contents of the Annual Report.

Signatures by the Senior Management of the Company.

Ma Guoquang
L Yongdang
Jrang Licheng

Lou Dingbo

Zhou hanfeng :

9 March 2010

Zhao Zhouli

Zhu junsheng

Chen Ying

Pang Yuanlin




Confirmation in Wriiing by the Directors of the Board of

Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd. for the Company's 2009 Annual Report

In accordance with article 68 of "Securities Law” and the requirements in"'Circular on Property Handling the 2009 Annual Reports of Listed
Companues” of Shanghai Stock Exchange, we, as the Directors of the Board, believe the Company's 2009 Annual Report has truthfully reflected
the Company’s financial status and operating results after comprehensivety understanding and reviewing the Company’s 2009 Annual Report

We heseby guarantee that the 2009 Annual Report is free from fakse statement, misleading information or grave matenal omission, and
assume relevant separate and joint responsibriities in regard to the truth, the accuracy and the integrity of the contents of the Annual Report

Swgnatures by the Directors of the Board of the Company:

Fiile
L Hes

3t March 2010

He Wenbo
Wu Yaowen
v
Kathenne Tsang
T
frip
Edward C Tse
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